Town of Reading
Meeting Posting with Agenda

Board - Committee - Commission - Council:

Finance Committee

Date: 2023-03-01 Time: 7:00 PM

Building: Reading Town Hall Location: Select Board Meeting Room
Address: 16 Lowell Street Agenda:

Purpose: General Business

Meeting Called By: Jacquelyn LaVerde on behalf of Chair Ed Ross

Notices and agendas are to be posted 48 hours in advance of the meetings excluding
Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays. Please keep in mind the Town Clerk’s hours of
operation and make necessary arrangements to be sure your posting is made in an
adequate amount of time. A listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be
discussed at the meeting must be on the agenda.

All Meeting Postings must be submitted in typed format; handwritten notices will not be accepted.

Topics of Discussion:

This meeting will be held in-person in the Select Board Meeting Room at Town Hall, and
remotely via Zoom:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://usbweb.zoom.us/i/89658757687

Meeting ID: 896 5875 7687

One tap mobile
+16465588656,,896587576874# US (New York)
+16465189805,,89658757687# US (New York)

Dial by your location
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
+1 646 518 9805 US (New York)
Meeting ID: 896 5875 7687
Find your local number: hitps://us06web zoom. us/uw/kb7kGDoNSA

AGENDA:
e Liaison Reports
Discussion on Projected Use of Free Cash
Budget Presentation: FY24 School Committee Recommended Budget
Future Agendas
Approval of Minutes: January 18, 2023

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed
at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting.

Page | 1



¥Z0°29L°2T PCOY6T'ET  $E20'LTO'ET  FRO'LS0PT +Z0'£81°ST vZ0'L26°6T  SBT'0EL'LT
000'005‘Z 000°00S'T 000°00S‘C 000'00S°Z 000°00S°C 768'681'0 OF8'981'9
000°'0£6°¢ 000'0£6°C 000°0£6°C 000059t 0o0‘obe’sL ZSO'ETSE 000’0s2’s

yidird L1474 3T0T 707 44 0T ) £474
6Z5'060°90 TEZ’/6Z4'9 16T'86%E'L PPT6L6°L zZ0L'99€’6 69Z°'S9OTPT 9PT'6LE'TT
£98'8%8°8 L8P'EES’S T1S'¥PTE’S TPP'8TT’S v/2°L08'L 6£6'T85'¢ 097°292'z
YTETTP'O9ZT 896°006°T2T 064°I26'8TT WEL'//6'SIT  T6b'2ES'TTIT 986'CTE'R0T  OFT'SPL’E0T
C6E'GEG'VYT SIL'OEE'ST T08'CTL'ST S8S'Z60°9T LL6'ELT'LT 8bT'SY8'IC 90E'IP9'6T
000’002 000’002 000°00¢ 000°002 000°00¢ 000°002 000’002
ZOE'2/6'T £69'€E67T 8//'568'T 195'0+8'T Z256'982°T ¥Te's81LT TET'TITLT
PZO'L9LCT PTO'L6T'ET PCO'LTI'ET PZO'LSOPT HTO'LBT'ST tZ0'LT6'6T SBT'O0EL'LT
000°05€- 000°0s¢E- 000°0SE- 000°05€- 000°SZE- 000°G2E- 000°00¢£-
000'085'Z- 000°'08S'T- 000'08S'T- 000'08T't- 000°087'c- 000'084°¢-  000'0S6°Z-

0on‘0gL- 000'89¢%-
000's06'2- 2s-
000°05b-

000'005‘Z 000'00S'T 000'00S‘C 000'00S°Z 000°00S°C 768'681'0 OF8'981'9
vZO'Z6TET bTOZTZYET PTOLSO'PT PZOZ8TIST +20'£26°67 G8T'0SL'/T SPE'EHL'PT

ZZ0¢ 9¢0cC Sc0cC ¥e0c EcOC Zc0C TZ0C
Jea) |eosid J1eaj |edsid  JeeA |edsid Jea ) |eosid Jlea) |eosid JEBA |EDSId Jed ) |edslid

pajoalold pajosloiy pejoalold pajosloiy

Bupessdp g8z Bunessdg %0gz  Bupesadg vig) 7

Bupessdo %001

JeaA jo pua ,ysed 9344, PRUIMID
suonesado wolj aoueleA ajqeloaey
pasn shiding AglisaQ/yseD oo.4

ML 04/ JBA0 SBAISSDY SS20X3]

{0 4 S2NuUaASY pa31afodd) UWIT SAIDSDY %/
{ pawnsse asealdll % £) sanuaAay Uoialold

seAlasay pajpafoid |10l

SaAIS59Y WODNI
souejeg uonezjjiqels

JE9A JO PUS ,SeD B8.),, pPBlIIIeD

(shidins ABIBAD WIDJY) JB3A JUBNDasSQNS
@bpng sieaA Jusnbasqng
{1 |udy) 1e3A JuBLIND
ymodb pews J0(L god) 483A Jusn)
{1 uer) JeaA jualng
{INLS 22Q) JeaA juauuns
{INL AON) JB3A JUaLIND
(W1 3120) 423A 3UaLIND
1104 ,yses asdy, bBupnpad saj0a Bussw umoy

Jead jeosiy ul

suonesado wo4j aouelieA 3|qeloaey

JeaA jo Buluuibaq ,4ysed 9314, DaIHE)

asn |enden swi-suQ m uonoslold suljeseg
WYseg asu4, paymua) ut sabuey? jo siskjeuy
spasnyoessely ‘Buipeay Jo umo|



¥ZO'ZPO'TT  #TO'LLP'TT  $T0'Z06'TT  #TZO'LEC'TT 4e3A Jo pua ,ysed 334y, payIMaD

000°00S‘¢ 000'00S'T 000°00S‘Z 000°00S5°'C suonesado woly aouelIeA ajqeloned
000°0£6'T 000°0E6°C  000°0£6'CT  000°0E6'Z pasn shiding Agjiang/ysed so.d
TEO? OE0C Y44 k:1{r 4

S0S'ZTTY'S STZ'00T'y  LTIS'TLL'Y 01S'PEY'S PN 0/ JOAC SBAIDSDY S530X3
£/9'656'6  T6E'699'6  8S/L'/BE'6  6ZEPIT'S {£0° & SONuUSASY po3osfold) JLIT BAIDS9Y %l
YET'8/2'THFT O09T'PET'BET SEROTI'PET v69'FP0T’0ET { pawWINsSse asealdul 9% E) SanusAaY Uol1da(old
8L6°TBE'ET 9IT'OLL'ET SLZO'GST'PT GES'EPS'PI sealesay pajpafold =301
0o0’00¢ 0007007 0o0’00¢ 0007002 S9AISS9Y WODNI
¥S6'PET'T TEO'E60'T  TS02S0'T SIR'TIOZ souRlRg UONEZIIGRIS
PEZO'LFO'TT PTO’'LLV'IT PZO'LO06'TT PTO'LEE'TT 1e8A Jo pua ,ysed esdy,, paIHIe)
000°0G¢E- 00070%5¢- 000°0G¢E- 000705¢- (snjdins AellaAD WoY) JesA 3ushbasgng

000°08S'T- 000°08S’T- 000°085'T- 000°085'C- 32bpng sJesA jusanbasqns

{1 |udy) 1e3A JuBLIND
ymodb pews J0(L god) 483A Jusn)
{1 uer) JeaA jualng
{INLS 22Q) JeaA juauuns
{INL AON) JE3A 3UaLIND
(W1 3120) 423A 3UaLIND
1104 ,ysed s34y, Bupnpal sa30A BuRssW UMOL

Jead jeosiy ul

000°00S’¢ 000'00S'C 000°00S‘CT 00D'005'C suopjesado wody souelien ajqeloney
eV TT bTOL06°TT H20'/4£€'2T  +T0'£92°2T Jeah jo BuluwBaq ,ysed 991y, DaYIUD
1£0C 0EDC 6c0¢ 8c0¢
JEBA |EOSId JBBA |BDSIJ JEDA |EOSId JED, |BISId
pajosloiy pajoalold pajosloiy pajoafoly

asn |enden swi-suQ m uonoslold suljeseg
WYseg asu4, paymua) ut sabuey? jo siskjeuy
spasnyoessely ‘Buipeay Jo umo|



5,859 &, 160 2.75% 2.80%
Town of Reading
Budget Summary One Yr One Yr One Yr One Yr
222123 2:.46 PM Projected Chng Projected Chng | Projected Chng Projected Chng
No. EY23 EY23 EY24 EY24 EY25 EY25 EY26 EY26
Revenues |
A1 |Total Property Taxes 84,397 951 35%| 87348419  35%| 83168564 21%| 91,211,086 23%
A2 |Total Other Local Revenues 7,790,000  11.4% 8,775,000 126% 9,465,000 7.9% 9,675,000 5.4%
A3 |Total Intergov't Revenues 15,166,883  2.6%| 15545030 25%| 15,933,656 25%| 16,331,997 25%
A4 |Total Transfers & Avallable 4178657 76% 4309289 31% 4354 370 1.0% 4388 875 0.8%
|A98 Revs before Free Cash $111,532,491  4.02%)| $115,977,738  3.99%]| $118,921,500  2.54%| $121,906,958 2.51%
A5 |Free Cash | 2539000 -38% 2580000 1.6% 2,580,000 0.0% 2,580,000 0.0%
A6 |Extra for Capitzl 686000 -97% 70000  20% 700,000 0.0% 0 -100%
|A99 Net Available Revenues $114,757,491  3.74%| $119,257,738  3.92%| $122,204,500  2.47%]| $124,486,958  1.87%
Acrommoedated Losts
B |Berefits 19837500 39%| 20682688 43%| 21762666 52%| 22917330 5.3%
C |Capital 3,113,500 -21.3% 2963000 -4.8% 2770000 6.5% 2,918,500 5.3%
Debt (inside lewy) 3,250,958 65.5% 3,380,604 40% 3,763,238 11.3% 3174275 -157%
D |Debt (excluded) 2727408  -23% 2686112 -15% 1279700 -52.4% 0 -1000%
E |Energy 2,035,000  1.2% 2,260,500 126% 2561218  11.8% 2,657,939 38%
F [Financial 1092000 8.1% 1,132,000 37% 1,157,000 22% 1,182,000 22%
G |Education - Out of district 5580000  25% 5803200 40% 6,035,328 4 0% 8,276,711 4 0%
H |Education - Vocational 870,000 104% 904,800  4.0% 1140992  26.1% 1,186,632 4.0%
J |Miscellaneous 3430064 27% 3508805 23% 3,589,822 2.3% 3,608,169 3.0%
K |Community Pririties 0 00% 150,000  00% 150,000 0.0% 150,000 0.0%
L1 |Accommodated Costs $ 41936420 3.43%|$ 43501799 373%| S 44210064  1.63%| S 44,159,586 -0.11%
L2 |Net Accommodated Costs  § 41,936,420 3.43%| $ 43,501,799 3.73%| $ 44,210,084  1.63%| $§ 44,159,586 -0.11%
5 3,022 $ 2,382 $ 4,532
Uparating Losts
OC1Municipal Gov't Operating 25262939 385%| 26457537 400%| 27185119  275%| 27947430  280%
adjustments 177,000 1,087
adjustments (EF+RF) 1,196,040  3.94% 1243882 4.00% 1278083  275% 1,313,875 2.80%
TOTAL Muni Govt OPER 28635979  4.55%| 27,701,419 4.00%| 28464305 275%| 29,261,305 2.80%
0C2ASchoal Operating 45053363 385%| 48051498 400%| 49372914  275%| 50911534  280%
adjustments 250,000 151,925 150,000
TOTAL School OPER 48,203,363  4.41%| 48,051,498 4.00%| 49524833 3.07%| 51,081,534 3.10%
OC4Operating Budgets $ 72839343 446% § 75752916 400% § 77,989,144  295% § 80,322840 2.99%
Municipal Gov't Operating 36.6% 36.6% 36.5% 36.4%
School Operating 63.4% $3.4% $3.5% 83.6%
TOTAL SPENDING |$114,775,783 4.08%| $119,254,716  3.90%)| $122199,207  2.47%| $124,482428 1.87%
Muni Govt OPER $ 26635979 455%(8 Z7 701,419 400%($ 28464306  275%| % 29261306 280%
Muni Govt ACCOM $ 5577000 326%(% 5931750 636%|5 6285455 6.01%|5% 6498075 3.33%
Muni Govt TOTAL $ 32212979 4.32%|$ 33,633,169 441%|$ 34,752,800  3.33%| § 35759380 2.90%
School OPER $ 46203363 4.41%(5 48,051,498 4.00%($ 49524839  3.07%|$ 51081534  3.10%
School AGCOM $ 5580000 246%(% 5803200 400%|5 6035328 400%|5 6276741  400%
School TOTAL $ 51783363 4.20%| $ 53,854,698 4.00%|$ 55560167 3.17%| $ 57,338,276  3.20%




A Town of Reading One Yr One Yr One Yr One Yr
Revenues - Details Projected Chng Projected  Chng Projected Chng Projected Chng
No 222123 2:.46 PM FY23 FY23 FY24 FY24 FY25 FY25 FY26 FY26
Property Taxes
Tax levy {within levy limit) 81558766  46%| 84536301  37%| 87623455 37%| 9095179 3.8%
New Growth $ AN5674 -433% 950,000 3.7% 1,110,000  168% 1,125,000 1.4%
Tax levy {debt exclusion) 2727408  -21% 2686112 -15% 12718700 -524% - -100.0%
Abatements and exemptions {803,897)  25% (823585) 25% {844,555) 2 5% {865,709)  25%
A1 |Total Property Taxes 84,397 951 3.5%| 87343419  3.5%| 89,168,564 2.1%| 91,211,086 2.3%
Other Local Revenues
Motor Vehicle Exclise $ 3945000 52% 4180000 60% 4,465,000 6.8% 4,650,000 4.1%
Meals Tax $ 440000 205% 515,000 17.0% 560,000 8.7% 580,000 54%
Penaliesinterestontaxes $ 270,000 350% 326000 204% 355,000 9.2% 380,000 7.0%
Payments in lieu of taxes $ 400000 67% 435000 B87% 465,000 6.9% 480,000 32%
Charges for services $ 2125000 136% 2300000 82% 2,475,000 7.5% 2,645,000 6.9%
Licenses & permits $ 165000 320% 180,000 91% 195,000 8.3% 215,000 10.3%
Fines $ 80,000 166.7% 100,000 26.0% 110,000 100% 125000 136%
Interest Eamings $ 0 235000 175% 585,000 148.9% 675,000  154% 725,000 7.4%
Medicaid Reimbursement $ 130000 625% 155,000 19.2% 165,000 6.5% 165,000 0.0%
A2 |Total Other Local Revenued 7,790,000 11.4% 8,775,000 12.6% 9,465,000 7.9% 9,975,000 5.4%
Intergovernmental Revenue
Slate Aid 15,165,883 26%| 15545030  25%| 15933656 25%| 16,331,997 2.5%
A3 |Total Intergov't Revenues 15185883  2.8%| 15545030 2.5%| 15933656 25%| 16,331,997 2.5%
Operating Transfers and Available Funds
Cemetery sale of ols 25000 00% 25000 0.0% 25,000 0.0% 25,000 0.0%
RMLD payment 2627442  99% 2587000 24% 2,600,000 0.5% 2,600,000 0.0%
Enterprise Fund Support 1,196,040  3.9% 1,243882 4.0% 1,278,089 2.8% 1,313,875 2.8%
School Revalving Funds 100,000 0.0% 100,000 0.0% 100,000 0.0% 100,000 0.0%
Premiums Reserve for Debt 5175 -26% 3407 -M% 1,281 -62% 0 -100%
Overlay surplus 325,000  8.3% 350000 77% 350,000 0.0% 350,000 0.0%
Ad |Total Transfers & Available 4,173,657 7.8% 4,309,288  3.1% 4,354,370 1.0% 4,388,875 0.8%
OPERATING REVENUES 111,532,491  4.02%| 115977738 3.99%| 118,921,500 2.54%| 121,908,958 2.51%
A5 |Free Cash 3225000 -51% 3,280,000 1.7% 3,350,000 2.1% 2,600,000 -224%
TOTAL REVENUES 114,757,491  3.74%| 119,257,738 3.92%| 122,271,580  2.53%| 124,506,958 1.83%
Town of Reading
Acc. Costs - Summary One Yr One Yr One Yr One Yr
2/22{23 2:46 PM Projected Chng Projected  Chng | Projected Chng Projected Chng
No. FY2s  FY2s | FYa4  Fya| EY25  FY25 | FY2  FY28
B |Benefits 19837500 39%| 20682688 4.3%| 21,762,666 52%| 22,917,330 5.3%
C |Capital 3,113,500 2,963,000 2,770,000 2,916,500
Debt (inside levy) 3,250,958 75% 3,380,684 -03% 3,763,338 3.0% 3174275  68%
D |Debt (excluded) 2,727,408 2,686,112 1,279,700 -
E |Energy 2,035,000 1.2% 2,200,500 126% 2561,218  118% 2,657,939 3.8%
F |Financial 1,002000 B81% 1,132,000 37% 1,157,000 2.2% 1,182,000 2.2%
G |Education - Qut of district 5,680,000 25% 5803200 40% 6,035,328 4.0% 6,276,741 4.0%
H |Education - Vocational 870,000 104% 804,800 4.0% 1,140,992  26.1% 1,186,632 4.0%
J |Miscellaneous 3430054 27% 3508805 23% 3,589,822 2.3% 3,698,169 3.0%
K |Community Priorities $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 150,000
TOTAL Accomm. COSTS | $ 41,936,420  3.4%|§ 43,501,798  3.7%| § 44,210,064 1.6%| § 44,159,586  -0.1%




Town of Reading One YT One Yr One Yr One YT

Acc. Costs - Details Projected  Chng | Projected Chng | Projected Chng Projected  Chng

B FY23 FY23 FY24 FY24 FY25 FY25 FY2% FY26
B1 [Confributory Retrement $ 5785500 3.9% 6,140,000 6.1% 6,539,100 6.5% 6,964,142 6.5%
B3 |OBRAfees & OPEBstudy  $ 40,000  0.0% 40,000 0.0% 40,000 0.0% 40,000 0.0%
B4 [OPEE contribution $ 500,000 400.0% 500,000 0.0% 500,000 0.0% 500,000 0.0%
B5 [Workers Compensation $ 385000 2.7% 380000 13% 400,000 2.6% 405,000 1.3%
B6 |Unemployment Benefits $ 75000  0.0% 75000 0.0% 80,000 6.7% 85,000 6.3%
B7 |Group Health / Life Ins. $ 11922000 1.0% 12397688  40% 13,048,566 5.3% 13,763,189 5.4%
B8 [Medicare / Social Security $ 1,000,000 0.0% 1,005,000 05% 1,015,000 1.0% 1,025,000 1.0%
B3 |Police / Fire Indemnification  $ 130,000  0.0% 135000  3.5% 140,000 3.7% 145,000 3.6%
B88|Acc. Costs - Benefits $ 19,837,500 3.9%| § 20682688 4.3%| § 21,762,668 5.2%| § 22,917,330 5.3%
C98|Ace. Costs - Capital $ 3113500 -21.3%|5 2963000 -48%|% 2770000 -6.5%| % 2,916,500 5.3%
D1 |Debt Service - Principal 4,919,000 20.4% 5,220,000 6.1% 4,080,000 -218% 2,380,000 -417%
D2 |Debt Service - Interest 1,059,366 57 9% 846,806 -201% 963,038 13.7% 794275 A75%
D3 Excluded debt (2727408 -23% (2686 112)  -156% (1270 700)  -524% - -100.0%
Total Included Debt $ 3250958 665%(% 3380694 40%[5 3763338 113%|% 3174275 -157%
Premiums for general fund $ - #DIVIOL] § v - HOIVIC! | § - HDIV/C!
D89l Acc. Costs -Debt $ 5078386 257%|% 6066808 1.5%|% 5043038 -169%|§ 3174275 -371%
E1 |Street Lighting (DPW) $ 130,000 -13.3% 135000  3.5% 140,000 37% 145,000 3.6%
E2 |Electricty (FacCORE) $ 890,000 1.9% 1,080,000 213% 1,112,400 3.0% 1,156,896 4.0%
E3 [Natl Gas (FacCORE) $ 650,000 2 4% 676,000 40% 859,080  330% 935,043 4 (%
E4 |Water/Sewer (FacCORE) $ 200000 B65% 209500  4.8% 214,738 2.5% 221,000 2.9%
ES |Fuel - vehicles (DPW) 3 165,000 0.0% 180,000 152% 195,000 2.6% 200,000 2.6%
|E99 Acc. Costs - Energy $ 2035000 12%| 5 2200500 12.8%|% 2,561,218 11.8%| 5 2657939 3.8%
F1 |Casualty Ins (AD SVC) $ 757,000 162% TR7,000  2.5% 807,000 2.5% 827,000 2.5%
F2 |Vel's Assistance (PUB SVC) § 125000 -16.7%| $ 145000 16.0%| $ 150,000 34%| 8 155,000 3.3%
F3 |[FINCOM Researve Fund $ 200000 0.0% 200,000  00% 200,000 0.0% 200,000 0.0%
|Fe9]ace. Costs - Financial $ 1002000 81%|$ 1,132,000 3.7%|$§ 1,157,000 2.2%|$ 1,182,000 2.2%
G1|SPED transp OOD (Sch) $ 1035000 -256% 1076400 40% 1,119,456 4.0% 1,164,234 4.0%
G2a|SPED tuition OOD (Sch) $ 5575000 4. 1% 5798000 40% 6,029,920 4 (% 6,271,117 4 (%
G2b|SPED contingency $ 470,000 100.0% 488,800  4.0% 508,352 4.0% 528,685 4.0%
C3|SPED offsets 00D {Sch)  § (1,600.000) 154%| (15600000  40%| (16224000  4.0%| (1,687.296)  4.0%
|GQB Acc. Costs - O0OD SPED $ 5,580,000 25%| % 5803200 4.0%|% 8035328 4.0%| 5 6,278,741 4.0%
H1 |Voc Schodl - NERMVS $ 640,000 118% 665,600  4.0% 862224  34.0% 927,913 4.0%
H2 |Voc Schaol - Minute Man $ 50,000 8.7% 52000  40% 54,080 4.0% 56,242 4.0%
Voe School - Essex North $ 180,000 5.9% 187200  40% 154,688 4 % 202 476 4 %
|Hes]Acc. Costs - Vocational $ B70,000 104%|$ 904800 4.0%|5 1,140,992 26.1%[$ 1,186,632 4.0%
J1 [Rubbish (DPW) $ 1,975,000 3.6% 2034250  3.0% 2,095,278 3.0% 2,158,136 3.0%
JZ [Snow and Ice Control (DPW) $ 675,000 0.0% 675000 00% 675,000 0.0% 700,000 3.7%
J2 [State Assessments $ 780,054 28% 799555  2.5% 819,544 2.5% 840,033 2.5%

Cemelery (DPW)

Jo9]Ace. Costs - Misce. $ 3,430,054 27%| % 3508805 2.3%|% 3,589,822 2.3%| 5 3,698,169 3.0%




READING PUBLIC SCHOOLS
The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

“Line” by Jonathan Nazzaro, RMHS Student enrolled in Ms. Kathleen M. Dailey’s AP Photography Class




Conitact Infoermaticon

Copies of the budget document are available at the Office of the Superintendent and on the Reading Public School’s
website at www.reading.k12 ma.us. For additional information or clarification on the School Committee’s FY24
Recommended Budget, please feel free to contact the Central Office Administration for assistance at 781-944-5800.
Also, please reach out directly to the Superintendent or Director of Finance and Operations:

Thomas Milaschewski, Ed.D. Susan Bottan, M.B.A.
Superintendent of Schools Director of Finance and Operations
781-944-5800 781-670-2880
Thomas.Milaschewski@reading k12, ma.us Susan.Bottan@reading.k12.ma.us

Phote Credits

With gratitude and appreciation, we recognize the work of the following RMHS students enrolled in Ms. Kathleen
Dailey’s Advanced Placement Photography class:

e Jonathan Nazzaro
¢ Hannah Righey

s Emily Bass

* Jackie Cole

¢ Mina Willander

o Rose Clark

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 2



Schooul Committee Members

Shawn Brandt, Chairperson

Carla Nazzaro, Vice Chairperson

Erin Gaffen, School Committee Member

Sarah McLaughlin, School Committee Member
Charles Robinson, School Committee Memher

Thomas Wise, School Committee Member

Ssuperintendent of Schoels

Thomas Milaschewski, Ed.D.
Reading Public Schools

82 Qakland Road

Reading, Massachusetts

Website hitp://reading k12.ma.us

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget



District l.eacership Team

Central Office Administrators

Jennifer Stys, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent for Student Services
Sarah Hardy, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent for Learning & Teaching
Michelle Roach, Human Resources Director

Susan Bottan, M.B.A. Director of Finance and Operations

Other District Administrators

Allison Wright, Special Education Director

Joanne King, Ed.D., R.1.5.E. Preschool Director

Heather Leonard, STEM Curriculum Coordinator

Erin Burchill, Humanities Curriculum Coordinator

Karen Hall, Coordinator of English Language Services

Kurtis Martin, METCO Director

Mary Giuliana, Director of Health Services

Catherine Franzetti, Director of School Nutrition

Christopher Nelson, Director of Extended Day, Drivers Education, and Adult and Community Education
Julian Carr, Network Manager

Joseph Huggins, Director of Facilities for Town and School Buildings

Kevin Gerstner, Facilities Manager

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget



Schoel Administrators
Reading Memorial High School
Kevin Tracey, Principal
Kadi Buckley, Assistant Principal
Jessica Theriault, Assistant Principal
Thomas Zaya, Assistant Principal, Athletics & Extra-curricular Activities
Jessica Callanan, Director of Academic Achievement, 9-12
A.W. Coolidge Middle School
Sarah Marchant, Principal
Brienne Karow, Assistant Principal
W.S. Parker Middle School
Rochelle Ruhina, Principal
Jason Peledge, Assistant Principal
Alice Barrows Elementary School
Alissa Gallegos, Principal
Birch Meadow Elementary School
Stephen Burnham, Ed.D., Principal
loshua Eaton Elementary School
Caitlin Shelburne, Principal
J.W. Killam Elementary School
Sarah Leveque, Principal
Wood End Elementary School

Nicole Schwartz, Principal

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget



Table of Contents

INTRODUCTORY SECTIOMN ittt s sris s s s aa b aa b0 860086008 £ S0 S0 0 SR SR LSRR 8RR EH LR E AL EA R EA R R SR SR b SR bR 3
SUPEMINEENAENT'S MESSAEE . ceoeeee ettt e ee et e et ee e m s ee e s aeeeem s anassmasaeemssan e smesanassnesaeamsnas e smsnanansnss e amsneeessnesaeansnan e amenanan 9
Finance Committee’s BUAEet GUITEIINGS ...t sneie e ae s nere e st se e sraeae st sebe e sbnt b se seae s et e been stuses sensasseassesesnacn 10
S5chool CommIttEe’s BUAZEL GUITANCE......cviiivirire e e e e e rererererererererererererenenereseresesenenenenenenenes 10
Mission, Vision, Statement of Equity, and Portrait of @ Graduate ... ..o e ee e e e e e 11

Budget Development Process and TITIEHNG i eeess s ieer s s et s eseess s beassssabesssesssssssbsssssarassssasssesssassssss 12

o A I ST To e =yl o T T T 14
The School Committee’s Y24 Recommended Budget Investment Priories ... ..o e e e 17
Major Focus Areas with No Impact to FY24 Recommended BUABET ... niicicnieiescneie e snene s seneasseaseesesenese e sensans 22

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended BUdget Priorities ..ttt tsssisien s s s s caen e 20

Preschool and Elementary LeVel PriDritIES. . ...c....co. oottt ettt ettt e st e e et eennae s e sran e e s e BT

B cfte Tl o LV W a2V =T B Lo (o 27
DISTHICE W LEVET PrIOITHES. ..ottt ettt st s et s s e 28
FITANCIAL SECTIOMN Lottt ceeteiet e et raea e eaeaseereameeeeaeaeasaraeasecaeaseeaeaeeeareeesa e caeaseeaseseeameeeeareca e secReaseeerereeareca s secasareeamamenareresarecasanes 31
The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget by Cost CaRtEr ..o i s e ssessssssserssssenes 32
AAMINISLIQEION COSt CENEET SUIMITIAIY .veeeeeveeeeeetee e e eee e ettt e sttt s s e e e e e te e e s nte e s s e e e assnte e s s anseesaate e e e anseesarannensnreensannnneessrnnnnen 35

Requiar Dy COSE CORLEE SUMMITIGIY ....o.ooeee oottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et e et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e vesnsnsnsenerenenenenene e B O

Special EJucation Cost CENEN SLITHTIAIY ........oc ettt ettt e ee e bt e e e bt e e e eaaee e s bme e e e b eeeansmsee s ebma e asteeesansmseeeesmeean 39

DiStriCt WICE ProQrams SUIMITIOITIES ..c.vivueeeeereieeeciteessseeeaessteesssinteesssseeeasssteesssanseesssneeasstees e snseessssnaeannteesaraneesassnneeensnressarnes 44

SCROO! FOCHTEIES COST CONECT SUITHTIQNY .. ce e oeeeeeee e e et e e et st st et st sa sa st st st st st sa sa sn sn sn sn sn sn st sn sn sn sn sn sn sn sn sn srmmmmmnnn sn sn sn sn sn sn snse D O

OTHER FUNDIMG SOURCES L. ittt et a e aeaeaceeeiea et e easaeata st e aeatbeasbeatae et et eea e e eRseensanta bt ataea bt et be s as nbanbaenineas 54
TS BT SUITIMIANY ¢ ctvereiiieieieieereieseueae e sereeestnerese seueas se e be e sbns s se sess s ot e beoe abnsbe oe aeas o ae e be o abnebe oe abnsse oe e se e abns b ss abnsbe oe e ss s nensasassbnssessseseses 55

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 6



SPECIAE REVENUE PGS cii i iieiiieieieieieiesinere i seueas s sereeeatnerese seuess st sebe e atns s os seas s ot sese e abnebe os seas s ot sese s atns b sn abasbe oe e ss s nensasas stnssessseseses 56

Federal and STATE GIAnTS ..o e e e e e s e e s e e se b e ea se e SE e SE R LE e SE b e e e b e e e e n e b s 58
FIVE-YEar Capital PIam «eo oot e et ee e e e e e e ee e m s ee e naseeemssae e smesanamsnasaeemssanansmssanansnan e amesanesnneaeeansnenanamenanan 60
APPENDICTES oo ettt it e sbes bt ab e sa s e sh e bbb £h 0 £ b b 18£8 8 4850 bbb 18£8 A8 bR A bR AR £b S AR bR A b b AR b b 61
APPENDIX A: Student Enroliment and STaff FTES. ..o e s e e srve e e 62
APPENDIX B: District Organizational StrUCEUIE ... oot eee et ee e e e e e te e e e ae e m s aeemsnes e em e anessneaenamsnan e emenanan 71
APPENDIX C: 2022-2023 Schoal IMProvamEnT PIERS oo i seieis s seiesssiiers s stsessss st tess st sstsss ssss se st ss s stasassssbssssss sessses 75

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 7



INTRODUCTG

“Double leaf” by Hannah Rigney, RMHS Student enrolled in Ms. Kathleen M. Dailey’s AP Photography Class

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget



superintendent’s Message

Dear Reading Community,

As we share our recommended budget for FY24, we wanted to start by thanking our entire community for the
continued support for our schools. While this budget reflects a significant financial contribution of each member of
our community, we also deeply appreciate all the time, energy, and advocacy that the community puts towards our
schools each day. We know our entire Reading community deeply values public education and takes tremendous
pride in our schools. | speak on behalf of our district as | share this sincere appreciation and gratitude to our
community.

The FY24 Recommended Budget reflects the perspectives of many of the district’s critical stakeholders and has been
developed through conversations with School Committee members, district and school leaders, educators, families,
and students. The investments in the recommended budget align to the three strategic objectives within our District
Strategic Plan:

e Supportive and Safe Learning Environment: We believe healthy and successful learning communities are a
prerequisite to achieving excellence and equity in schools. Healthy and successful learning communities exist
when all members of the community, no matter where they live, what they look like, what they believe, what
language they speak, who they love, or how they learn feel seen, valued, affirmed and connected. At both
the national and local level, our students are demonstrating significant social-emotional needs, as evident
through the U.S. Surgeon General’s Advisory on Protecting Youth Mental Health and an analysis of the results

of Reading's Youth Risk Behavior Survey by the Reading Coalition.
¢ Coherent Instructional Systems: We believe excellence and equity in schools is best achieved through high-
quality instruction. High-quality instruction is our best lever for improving outcomes for students, and in

particular, groups of students who have not met with success in our district. All students deserve challenging
and engaging learning environments that promote high levels of growth and achievement. The pandemic
has heightened both the challenge of addressing inconsistencies in learning for our students and the
opportunity for improvements and innovations in teaching, learning, and programming.

e School Operations: Efficient operational systems are at the foundation of the success of our students and
staff. Investments to improve for our students and staff will only hold across a system with the foundation
of strong operational systems.

The investments outlined in the FY24 Recommended Budget align with each of these three strategic objectives and will
support our district in living out our goal of providing every one of our students with an excellent educational experience.
We look forward to your collaboration and feedback throughout the budget process and as always, appreciate your
commitment and support of our schools.

In partnership for children,

Dr. Thomas Milaschewski, Superintendent

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 9



Finance Commitiee’s fudget Guidelines

PAITTRE F¥E4d.BL

BlinaReOF SINANEE COMMITTEE FY3a BUD IDELINES

F¥23 Appropriated Budget FY24 FinCom Guidelines % Change
FY2a vs. FY23
Operating Furnls 46,203,363 47,922,143 1,718,800
Special Fducation Accommodated Cosis 5,580,000 5,803,200 223,200
Total Finance Committee Guidelines 51,783,363 53,725,343 1,942,000|
% Percentage incregse 3.75%|

In October 2022, the Finance Committee voted for a FY24 budget guideline of 3.75%, which represents an increase
of $1,942,000 over the FY23 School Department Appropriated Budget. Since then, Townwide Accommodated Cost
savings have been identified. As a result, $131,260 of additional funds have been allocated to the School
Department’s FY24 Recommended Budget. These additional funds raised the total incremental increase in FY24 to
52,073,260, or 4,00%, over FY23. The Adjusted FY24 Budget Summary follows below:

Adjusted FY24 Budget FY23 Appropriated Budget FY24 Adjusted Budget $ Change
FY24 vs. FY23
Operating Funds 46,203,363 48,053,423 1,850,060
Special Education Accommodated Costs 5,580,000 5,803,200 223,200
Total Adjusted FY24 Guidelines 51,783,363 53,856,623 2,073,260
% Percentage increase 4.00%

Through the Town’s Community Priority allocation, $150,000 has been earmarked for the purpose of reducing the
Full-Day Kindergarten tuition fee Offset, bringing the community one step closer to providing Universal Free FDK.

In summary, the FY24 Budget is defined into the following sections:
1. Operating Funds - 51,850,060 is allocated to meet the increased costs of all contractual obligations,
mandated services, and investments aligned to the district’s strategic plan. Of this total increase over the
FY23 Budget, $1,176,905 will be allocated to pay for the baseline increase in personnel costs due to comply
with employment contracts and bargaining unit agreements.
2. Special Education Accommaodated Costs - $223,200 is allocated to Accommodated Costs, which includes out-
of-district special education placement tuition and transportation costs.

3. Town of Reading’s Community Priorities - $150,000 is allocated for use toward reducing the Full-Day
Kindergarten tuition fee.

Schuol Comimittee’s Buaget Guidance

Developing a school district budget that effectively aligns resources to strategic objectives to provide safe and
supportive learning environments, coherent instructional systems, and efficient school operations involves
considerahle collaborative discussion on how funds are spent. The Reading School Committee provided the following
guiding guidance to support the District’s Leadership Team in developing the FY24 Recommended Budget. The School
Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget has been developed in line with the following guidance:

® Consider a plan to incorporate ESSER-funded positions into the operating budget
® Continue progress toward Universal Full-Day Kindergarten

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 10



Incorporate recommenidations by DESE and Special Education Program Reviews
Support RMHS Innovation Pathways

Continue Middle School Curriculum Work

Increase time on learning at elementary schools

Maintain class sizes within School Committee guidance

Examine staffing schedules

Analyze workforce turnover toward increasing retention

Make decisions that are sustainable over time

® & S & & & & O

Mission, Visien, Statement of Equity, ant Portrait of a Graduate

Mission of the Reading Public Schools
Instilling a joy of learning and inspiring the innovative leaders of tomorrow

Vision of the Reading Public Schools

It is the vision of the Reading Public Schools to instill a joy of learning hy inspiring, engaging and supporting our
youth to become the innovative leaders of tomorrow. We will accomplish our vision by focusing on a few key
strategic initiatives that lead to a meaningful and relevant curriculum, innovative instructional practices, strong
analysis and thoughtful dialogue about evidence, a collaborative and team approach to learning and teaching, and
a safe and nurturing learning environment. The overall physical and behavioral well-being of our children will be our
top priority as students will not learn if they are not physically and psychologically safe. Education will truly be the
shared responsibility of both the schools and the community, with families playing active roles in the schools and
being full partners in ensuring the success of their children. In the interest of the entire Reading community, the
schoal district and town government shall work cooperatively and collaboratively. As educators and members of
our community, we helieve that implementing this vision is our ethical responsihility to the children of the Town of
Reading.

Reading Public Schools’ Statement of Equity

The Reading School Committee, Central Office, Directors, Principals and Leadership of the Teacher's Association
celebrate the diversity of the Reading Community and beyond by embracing differences to empower every student,
staff member and family of the Reading Public Schools. We embrace all members of the community no matter where
we live, what we look like, what we believe, what language we speak, who we love, or how we learn, consistent with
the human dignity of all. When we are unwavering in our commitment to equity, we support every student and staff
member in maximizing individual potential. This requires us to identify, analyze, and confront gaps in opportunities
and outcomes for all students.

Reading Memorial High School Portrait of a Graduate
RPS Graduates are leaders of their own learning journey who demonstrate kindness and empathy towards others and
a commitment to wellness. They persevere through challenges, embrace multiple perspectives, and aspire to be their
best selves in the service of others to better cur community and our world.

Learn - Grow - Teach - RPS Graduates are critical thinkers and creative problem solvers. They take ownership
of their learning journey and are open to struggle to foster personal growth. They are confident in their beliefs
and consider the thoughts and ideas of others. They embrace coliaboration to help teach others and remain
curious life-long learners.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 11



Empathize - Consider Perspectives - Practice Communal Care - RPS Graduates show kindness and empathy
towards others and a commitment to personal wellness and communal care. They are able to persevere
through challenges and demonstrate resilience. They authentically reflect through hearing and understanding
the experiences, perspectives, and needs of people around them. To navigate relationships with generosity
and patience, they listen actively and compassionately.

Engage - Serve - Thrive - RPS Graduates responsibly shape our world through collaboration with their
community. They engage with and communicate multiple perspectives, aspire to be their best selves in the
service of others in order to thrive, and bring their skills and knowledge to action for the benefit of each other
and our world.

Bucget Development Process and Timeline

Within the context of the Budget Guidelines established by the Finance Committee and School Committee, the
District’s Mission, Vision, Statement of Equity, and Strategic Objectives, the Leadership Team committed to conduct
a productive and an effective FY24 Budget Development Process. The Team collaboratively identified investment
priorities that would improve learning opportunities, access, and outcomes for students. The approach taken by the
district leaders is outlined below:

Ensured that the budget development process was collaborative, transparent, and represented all
stakeholders’ voices.

Identified priorities that reflect our commitment to inclusion and a sense of belonging for all students and
staff.

Prioritized investments in high-quality instruction and instructional systems.

Streamlined operational systems for efficiency and effectiveness.

Leveraged and maximized all sources of funding.

Made evidence-based decisions that were student-focused, data-driven, and intentional.

Worked collaboratively with the Town.

Baseline costs were calculated for all personnel and non-personnel accounts to ensure compliance with contractual
and legal mandates. Projected enrollment, class sizes, student needs, and known/anticipated spending trends guided
the process. The process taken hy our team to build the baseline budget involved the following:

Aligned budgets with employment contracts and negotiated bargaining agreements.

Calculated costs based on historical spending trends, known service and material rate changes, and
anticipated requirements.

Evaluated staffing schedules, student groupings, and caseloads based on student enrollment, class size and
student needs.

Redeployed existing resources, grants, and revolving accounts to support changes in baseline operating
expense and fund investment priorities.

Some ways in which personnel and non-personnel resources were maximized to support new investments to make
progress toward addressing strategic objectives include:

Personnel:
Recognized retirement savings.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 12



Shifted hourly positions to the Special Education 240 grant, eliminating a duplication of Massachusetts
Teachers Retirement System (MTRS) fees for licensed staff.

Allocated lunch time para wages to the Food Services special revenue fund.

Utilized METCO, Department of Public Health, and Special Education 240 grant funding.

Applied School Choice funding.

Built FY24 budget upon FY23 actual salaries which reflect Staffing Exchange, savings generated between
outgoing/budget salaries and new incoming staff.

Non-Personnel:

Considered a multi-year review of past, present, pending, and projected out of district tuition rates and
changes in placements.

Applied the increase in Circuit Breaker Reimbursement.

Reduced new employee physical examination requirements.

Canceling the Special Education Purposeful Opportunities for Successful Transitions (P.0.5.T.) contract.
Reduced and reallocated existing budgets bhased on historical spending patterns and anticipated future
needs.

In summary, the Leadership Team’s approach to the FY24 budget development process was highly collaborative and
accomplished the following:

Engaged all stakeholders in a collaborative process.

Ensured all contractual and legal obligations will be met.

Identified emerging priorities to support growth of all learners at all levels.

Maximized existing resources through redeployment of existing resources and leveraging all funds.
Considered enrollment projections, class sizes and teacher to student ratios, and learners’ needs.

The commitments made to the hudget and the perspectives gained from stakeholders were foundational to a
successful budget development process. The open, transparent, candid process resulted in a plan that built upon the
District’s Strategic Objectives to allocate existing and new resources {position roles, staff time and sources of funding)
in ways that will enable the district to provide a supportive and safe learning environment, coherent instructional
systems, and efficient school-operations. The actions associated with the budget development process and timeline
are summarized below:

July through October 2022:

Built a three-year enrollment and financial forecast of all costs based on known and anticipated factors.
Examined FY22 expenditures, anticipated FY23 needs in comparison to the appropriated budget.

Projected FY24 enrollment, class size, student groupings, staffing ratios, and identified changes in student
needs for the next year.

Built the FY24 personnel and non-personnel budgets from the bottom up, person by person and item by
item.

November and December 2022:

Collaborated with the district, school, and program leadership teams to identify, discuss, and define student-
centered budget priorities and examined ways to maximize existing resources across levels and programs.
Compiled budget data to support leaders’ progress toward building responsive building and program
hudgets. The budget tools created included the following:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 13



O Personnel reports — consisted of data by person, position, FTE, step, degree, FY23 budget and
projected salaries and stipends. Retirements and unfilled budgeted positions were incorporated into
the report. Enrollment by grade and school and projected elementary school class sizes were
assessed. Schedules for teachers and paraprofessionals were reviewed in the context of student
needs, groupings, and effective staff schedules. All funds were evaluated to determine how they
could be best used to support the district’s objectives.

O Non-personnel reports — consisted of data by line item, descriptions, and expenditures trends. Rather
than allocating a wholesale percentage increase across all services, supplies, and equipment, each
line-item budget was reviewed and evaluated. Several factors were considered before adjusting
haseline non-personnel expenses, such as the historic spending trends, projected use and prices,
availahility of end-year funds for pre-purchases, curriculum requirements, and enrollment and
staffing changes.

O Reflective questions - used to provide guidance toward identifying investment priorities that aligned
with the district’s strategic objectives:

© Rationale for Each Request - for each priority identified, the following guestions were answered:
What specific outcomes are expected? How will success be measured?, Where could capacity be
found to fund and sustain the investment within the existing budget?

January 2023:

Meaningful discussions about the recommended investment priorities and their tangible impact on the budget will
take place in public sessions throughout January 2023;

® January 5 - Superintendent’s FY24 Recommended Budget presented to the School Committee:
Administration, District Wide and Facilities and Capital Budgets

® January 9 - Superintendent’s FY24 Recommended Budget presented to the School Committee: Regular Day
and Special Education

® January 19 - FY24 Budget Hearing. Questions and Responses puhlished

January 26 - School Committee vote on the FY24 Recommended Budget

& January 27 - School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget submitted to the Town Manager

March 2023:
e March 1, 2023 - School Committee FY24 Budget Presentation to Finance Committee

April/May 2023:

e April 24, 27, May 1, 4, 2023 - Annual Town Meeting

FY23 Budget Review

The FY23 budget made great strides toward moving our district forward and we are grateful for the community’s
ongoing support. As demonstrated above by the approach and process we took to develop the FY23 recommended
hudget, certain items were prioritized to achieve the greatest and most immediate impact on student outcomes.
These investments in FY23 included [not in order of importance/priority):

e Reducing Full-Day Kindergarten Tuition, our first step toward moving closer to free Full-Day Kindergarten.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 14



Creating a dual role School Adjustment Counselor/METCO Coordinator at each elementary school through
the funding of 5.0 FTEs, with half of the cost funded through the operating budget and the other half through
the METCO grant.

Increasing School Adjustment Counselor support by 1.0 FTE at the middle school level and by an additional
1.0 FTE at the high school level.

Utilizing Endicott/Merrimack Fellows to increase support in bubble classes.

Creating an Academic Support Center through the investment of a 1.0 FTE Director of Academic Achievement
at Reading Memorial High School.

Increasing 1.0 FTE teachers in the English Language Learner department and translation services.

Increasing English Language (EL) Coordinator by .20 FTE to coordinate increased levels of EL services driven
by new student enrollment.

Increasing academic support to high school students’ return to school from hospital settings by increasing
staff by .20 FTE in the Stepping Stones program.

Engaging in Endicott College Dual Enroliment program at RMHS.
Participating in North Shore Community College Gateway to College program at RMHS.

Offering an introductory computer science course through multiple sections to create a foundation for future
computer science pathway at RMHS.

Increasing Social Worker by 1.0 FTE for the REACH program at the middle school level.

Adding a 1.0 FTE nurse, which allowed for the Director of Nursing to be released from direct services at RMHS
and R.LS.E. preschool to lead the District Wide health services program.

Increasing the FTE of the district data specialist hy .40 FTE.

Reallocating funds to the district-wide professional development account.

In addition to the items funded in the FY23 budget, our team identified important priorities we were unable to fund
in FY23 but deserved continued review and consideration. Those items are outlined below (nhot in order of
importance/priority), as written in the FY 23 budget book, with an update on the progress for each item for FY24,

Universal Free Full-Day Kindergarten to ensure equitable access for all new learners. The FY23
recommended budget lists a reduction in tuition from $4,450 to $3,600 to move closer to our goal of tuition
free kindergarten for all students. Our district is currently exploring various pathways to move us toward this
tuition-free goal and these pathways will be discussed and explored with the community.

(* The FY24 recommended budget reflects a drop-in tuition fee to 52,650)

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 15



¢ Full-time Elementary Assistant Principals to support day-to-day building needs and ability of school leaders
to prioritize improvements in teaching and learning. We believe that the addition of School Counselors
combined with the role of METCO Coordinator at every elementary school will support the principal in several
critical areas, including meeting the social-emotional needs of students, facilitating student support teams,
and serving as a liaison with families. In FY23, we will evaluate how these new roles impact the current need
of providing our elementary principals with more support through full-time Elementary Assistant Principals.
(* The FY24 recommended budget reflects full-time Assistant Principals at all five elementary schools).

¢ Sustain the role of Team Chairs in the operating budget. Several Team Chair roles {2.6 FTE} will be funded
through the ESSER grant until the end of FY23. In the meantime, we continue to evaluate ways to refine and
sustain these roles over the long term. In FY23, the role will expand to include planning interventions and
overseeing Student Study Teams.
(* The FY24 recommended budget sustains the Team Chair roles).

¢ Review of the elementary school schedule, including half-day Friday, access to enrichment opportunities
{(instrumental, world language), and staff collaborative planning. We have and will continue to engage in
conversations with our educators and community about how we can expand both time on learning and types
of offerings for our students. This review will take place throughout FY23.
{*While these conversations continue, there is nothing reflected in the FY24 budget on this item).

e RMHS Leadership Structure to facilitate increased coaching and feedback. We will continue to engage in

conversations with our educators and leadership team about how to use and revise our current leadership
structure to expand the quality of coaching and feedback for our educators across the building. These
conversations will continue in FY23.
(*Update: The addition of the Director of Academic Achievement has been instrumental in leading our RMHS
Instructional Leadership Team (ILT). The RMHS ILT, composed of RMHS Department Heads, has focused on
providing teachers with ongoing coaching and feedback within their departments. This has already led to an
increase in the amount of feedback provided to all teachers, particularly by their Department Heads).

s RMHS Computer Science Pathway/Program to provide students with access to a series of computer science
courses aligned to college and career opportunities. As we build an introductory computer science course in
FY23, we will also actively explore how we can build an entire pathway/program to offer in the near future.
(*Update: In FY24, we are launching two formal pathways at RMHS - information (Digital Media and
Computer Science) and Advanced Manufacturing [Engineering). More information regarding these pathways
can be found later in the budget book).

+ District-wide vertical alignment of math curriculum and pathways to ensure that students can move fluidly
between levels of math courses throughout middle and high school. In FY23, our district will explore how
students end up in the highest-level math courses at RMHS and seek ways to remove barriers that limit
students to access these higher-level courses.

(*Update: While these conversations and planning continue, there are no budget items listed in FY24 that
reflect this item).

¢ Review of the Social Emotional curriculum for all schools, district-wide. In FY23, we will continue our efforts
to support the social emotional needs of our students by assessing the current curriculum and materials in
use. The company that supports our current social-emotional K-5 curriculum, Open Circle, is no longer
publishing additional curriculum materials, supports, and resources. Therefore, we plan to engage in a

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 16



curriculum exploration process and potentially pilot curriculum in FY23 for a K-5 curriculum. At RMHS,
students in grades 9 and 10 are participating in an SEL program, Project Wayfinder, funded by the ESSER
grant through the end of FY24. We will assess the impact of this program to determine if it should be
sustained long-term.

(*Update: The FY24 budget reflects the continuation of Project Wayfinder and funding to pilot an SEL
curriculum Preschool-8).

+ Seal of Biliteracy Certification to recognize students who have achieved proficiency in two or more
languages. During FY23, we will pilot the assessment with a small group of secondary students to learn about
the process and systems for providing our students with access to this certification.

(*Update: The Seal of Biliteracy Certification was launched in FY23 and is also expanded in the FY24 budget).

¢ Comprehensive Professional Development opportunities for all instructional staff. In FY23, we will explore
models to provide our staff with expanded high-quality, job-embedded professional learning, such as
instructional coaches. We will engage in conversation with educators and leaders to identify areas of need
and opportunity.
(*Update: The FY24 budget reflects two K-8 math instructional coaching positions to provide job-embedded
professional development to teachers).

o Student Information Systems, Website redevelopment, and Technology service to support efficient and
effective scheduling, track attendance, receive and give information to students, staff, and community, and
improve technology service delivery to staff and students. We plan to launch focus groups in FY22 and FY23
to analyze our systems/structures in each of these areas and provide recommendations on how to move
forward.

(*Update: A new district website was launched in FY23 and we are continuing to explore the possibility of a
new student information system to better align with district needs).

The Schoul Committee’s F¥Y24 Recommienced Budget Investment
Friorities

Through large and small group meetings with and among instructional staff and leadership teams, investment
priorities that aligned with Strategic Objectives emerged. The FY24 budget investments are outlined below, organized
by the three strategic pillars of our District Strategic Plan:

Strategic Objective 1: Supportive and Safe Learning Environment
Strategic Objective 2: Coherent Instructional Systems
Strategic Objective 3: School Operations

Strategic Objective 1: Supportive and Safe Learning Environment: We have identified budget priorities that reflect
the need to prioritize supportive and safe learning environments for our students. They are:

¢ Middle School Adjustment Counselor/METCO Coordinator: We have an increased need to support the
social-emotional and behavioral health of our students. We will create a shared Middle School Adjustment
Counselor/METCO Coordinator position to support the social-emotional and behavioral health of students
and to support the goals of the METCO program at Coolidge and Parker Middle Schools. This role will mirror

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 17



the School Adjustment Counselor/METCO Coordinator roles placed in our five elementary schools in FY23
and the cost will be shared between the operating budget and the METCO grant.

¢ RMHS METCO Coordinator: The FY24 Recommended Budget supports the addition of a full-time METCO
Coordinator at RMHS to increase the academic and social-emotional support to all students. We project
nearly 1,000 students to be enrolled in RMHS with an anticipated enroliment of 29 Boston resident students
in 2023-2024. This role will be funded entirely through the METCO grant.

¢ RMHS Wayfinder Curriculum: Project Wayfinder is a social-emotional learning curriculum that supports
students' success in school and in life by teaching the skills needed to build belonging and the mindsets
necessary to facilitate personal growth. During the 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, Project Wayfinder was
implemented by RMHS counselors with students in grades 9 and 10 utilizing ESSER grant funds. In the 2022-
23 school year, teachers were also able to access the resources offered by this comprehensive curriculum,.
This budget allocation allows for the continued use of Project Wayfinder in the 2023-24 school year. In
addition to the SEL competencies RMHS students acquire from Project Wayfinder lessons, the
implementation of the program has also allowed guidance staff to huild stronger relationships with students
and better meet their individual and group needs.

# 1to 1 Nurse: This nurse is required to meet an individual student’s medical need for the student to access
the school setting.

s Social-Emotional Curriculum Exploration for Preschool to Grade 8: Social-emotional learning (SEL) supports
academic outcomes and school success for students. One way SEL is implemented in schools is through
explicit instruction of social-emotional competencies and skills. SEL instruction can be improved using a
research-based SEL curriculum. Consistent vertical implementation of an SEL curriculum builds common
vocabulary and understanding for students and staff. Currently, a variety of materials and methods are
utilized for SEL instruction in grades preschool to 8. Preschool teachers employ teacher-created SEL lessons.
The Open Circle curriculum has been in place at the elementary level for many years. At the middle school
level, teacher-created SEL lessons are delivered during the advisory block. With the increased and changing
social-emotional and behavioral health needs of students, an exploration of a consistent SEL curriculum is
needed. Funding in FY24 will facilitate this work. Funding will support staff stipends, acquisition of curriculum
tools to examine, travel to visit other sites, and potential professional development.,

+ Secondary Counselors (2 from ESSER grant): Secondary counselor roles were developed to address the
increased need to support the social-emotional and hehavioral health of our students. These roles were
funded through the ESSER grant but a portion of the salaries will now be incorporated into the FY24 operating
hudget.

Strategic Objective 2: Coherent Instructional Systems: Additionally, we have identified budget priorities that reflect
the need to prioritize coherent instructional systems, directly connected to improving student academic outcomes.
They are:

+ Elementary Assistant Principals (5): Investing in building leadership is at the core of improving academic
outcomes. A 2012 study of the impact of principals noted that “highly effective principals raise the
achievement of a typical student in their schools by between two and seven months of learning in a single
school year; ineffective principals lower achievement by the same amount.”[1] Given this impact, a recent
research analysis by the Wallace Foundation noted “it is difficult to envision an investment in K-12 education

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 18



with a higher ceiling on its potential return than improving school leadership.”[2] While our district continues
to invest in professional development and individualized coaching for principals, our administrative structure
at the elementary level poses a barrier to leveraging the impact of principals on student outcomes. With the
significant changes in the field of education, especially within the last 5 years, the roles of building leaders
have become exponentially more challenging. Within Reading, our adoption of high-quality curriculum
materials, our increased enrollment of diverse populations, and our increases in student social-emotional
and academic needs have all added significant responsihilities and expectations to those leading our
huildings. These shifts also highlight the need for principals to act as instructional leaders in their schools. To
do so, it is necessary to provide the staffing required to ensure the responsibilities and management of our
buildings are done efficiently and effectively to create structures for success in our schools. To support all
our students, families, educators, and principals, elementary assistant principals will share building-level
responsibilities including (but not limited to) teacher evaluations, programmatic support, family and
community engagement, and responding to day-to-day needs, allowing our principals to enhance their own
capacity as leaders of learning communities. Overall, these new roles will provide our elementary schools
with the administrative leadership structure necessary to harness the impact of principal leadership on
students. This new structure will also create an internal pipeline of leadership talent to fill principal vacancies
as they arise in this district.

e K-8 Math Coaches (2): Research shows the significant power of an instructional coach, especially when done
in an intentional, structured system with clearly defined goals/roles; “instructional coaching had a greater
impact on instruction than almost all other school-based interventions...In fact, they determined the quality
of teachers’ instruction improves by as much or even more than the difference in effectiveness between a new
teacher and one with five to 10 years of experience. Similarly, student performance improved with
instructional coaching regardiess of whether a teacher was a novice or veteran.” (3} K-8 math coaches will
hring a shift in our professional learning structures, bringing previously externally provided training into our
district, working within our structures and alongside our educators. K-8 Math Coaches will support increased
implementation of adopted high-quality curriculum materials, improved instructional practices leading to
deepened opportunities for rigor in math learning, vertical and horizontal alignment, educator professional
learning thoughtfully and intentionally embedded into daily teaching and learning cycles. They will support
targeted training/professional learning opportunities, collaboration with teacher groups, and 1:1 coaching
and collaboration. Additionally, they will play a role in onboarding new staff, to ensure implementation of
our curriculum materials continues even beyond our initial adoption years.

+ Elementary Special Education Teacher: A Learning Center Special Education Teacher position will be added
at the Joshua Eaton School. The position is required to ensure compliance with IEP services.

+ Middle School Special Education Teacher {from ESSER grant): A program special education teacher position
will be added at Cooclidge Middle School. The position is required to ensure compliance with IEP services.
This role was funded through the ESSER grant and a portion of the position will now be incorporated into the
operating budget. The balance of the position will be absorbed within the FY25 budget.

[1] Attas./Awww. educationnext.ora/schont-leaders-motter

[2] Atta:/fwwwe, wallocefoundation. crg/arincipaisyathesis

[3] The Effect of Teacher Coaching on instruction and Achievement: A Meta-Analvsis of the Causal Evidence

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 19



¢ Multilingual Learner Teachers (1.5): During the first 5 months of the 2022-23 school year, 31 multilingual
learners (MLLs) enrolled in the Reading Public Schools, most entering with beginning-level English
proficiency. In previous years, approximately 30% of MLL students in RPS were beginners. As of December
2022, 63% of our 60 MLL students are beginners. According to DESE standards, MLL students must receive
English instruction from a Teacher of English as a Second Language (ESL). Recommended weekly instructional
hours are based on students’ proficiency levels. Beginner MLL students receive 7 to 14 hours of instruction
weekly, while intermediate-level MLL students receive 4 hours. Supporting the language development of MLL
students is essential to their academic and social progress in school. To provide the needed services an
additional 1.5 FTEs of ESL teacher positions are included in the FY24 Recommended Budget.

+ Special Education Team Chairs {from ESSER grant): To ensure consistency with practice and compliance, the
additional team chair positions allow each school to have at least one full-time special education
administrator. This allows the team chairs to have a direct role in instructional support within special
education classrooms. Additionally, they are responsible for implementing the reading protocol, as needed,
during the evaluation process to ensure all students have access to appropriate instruction and data
collection methods. The reading protocol is a researched based tool that Reading has adopted to ensure all
components of reading development are assessed. If an area of need is identified the protocol provides
guidance to select the appropriate instructional practices. This is a critical component to ensuring all students
are ahle to read and write effectively. These roles were funded through the ESSER grant but a portion of
salaries will now be incorporated into the operating budget.

o Team Chair Hours: There will be an increase in a team chair position from 0.6 to 1.0 FTE. This will allow there
to be a team chair for R.1.5.E. at the high school and continue the equitable share and OOD case management
that the position currently supports.

¢ Team Chair Stipends: Issue stipends to Team Chairs and the Special Education Literacy Coach appointed to
provide individualized Program Coordination to substantially separate Special Education Programs as
recommended in the FY23 Special Education Program Review. The Program Coordinators are working closely
with consultants to update Program Descriptions, create Points for the Teams to Consider (Exit and Entrance
Criteria), and create professional development plans to foster vertical alignment within the programs. While
completing this work the Program Coordinators will be observing, meeting with staff as well as soliciting
feedback from the parents/guardians of students enrolled in the program.

+ Full-Day Kindergarten Tuition Fee Reduction: Reading Public Schools remains one of about two dozen
districts that does not provide free, full-day Kindergarten for students. We are committed to moving toward
universal, free, full-day kindergarten for students. In FY24, we plan to drop the kindergarten annual tuition
fee from $3,600 to $2,650.

s Board Certified Behavior Analyst (BCBA): In alignment with the program review recommendations, this
additional BCBA will provide support for students enrolled in the 5.0.A.R/E.M.B.A.R.C. programs. This
position will serve students in Preschool to grade 12. The primary role of the BCBA will be to provide
consultative support to teams and families regarding evaluations, behavioral interventions, and data
collection.

+ Secondary Transition Specialist: As indicated in the program review, this position will provide direct
evaluation and transition planning support for students ages 14-22. This position will support teams and
students to identify the skills needed to further their post schooling endeavors. As part of the |IEP process for

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 20



all students there must be a transition plan beginning at age 14. The transition specialist will help develop
an evaluation protocol and education support to make sure all students who receive special education
services are prepared for their post-secondary transition. Additionally, for students who need more specific
job, leisure and life skills this position will help support community-based learning activities.

¢ RMHS Seal of Biliteracy Certification: Beginning in June 2023, RMHS graduating students can be awarded
the Seal of Biliteracy for demonstrating proficiency in two or more languages. In the spring of 2023, students
in grades 8 and 11 will participate in language proficiency assessments that would allow them to meet the
criteria for the Seal of Biliteracy. Twelve-grade students and other multilingual students were also given the
opportunity to participate in the assessments if they wished. In addition to supporting the Seal of Biliteracy
awards, language proficiency assessments are a valuahle tool for the world language department in
understanding the language development and growth of students and allow families and students to better
understand second language growth and development. Additional funding will allow the high school world
language department to expand the number of students participating in language proficiency assessments
by shifting administration from specific grade levels to specific courses. Thisis a stronger practice since most
world language classes include students from multiple grade levels. This spring, the world language
department will review the sequence of courses to determine how to best leverage language proficiency
assessments.

+ Mentoring for Year 2 New Teachers: Effective mentoring and induction programs are essential to training
and retaining high-quality staff. RPS’s current mentoring program provides new staff with an individual
mentor during their first year. The role of this mentor is to provide job-embedded support to develop the
knowledge-base and skills of new staff. Additional funding would be used for mentor stipends, allowing new
staff to continue to receive the support of a mentor in year 2. Not only will this improve the development of
new staff, but it enables RPS to meet the mentoring requirements DESE has outlined for districts.

o Curriculum Review Science: MA DESE Science, Technology, Engineering Frameworks were updated and
adopted in 2016; “The vision of the Massachusetts STE standards is to engage students in the core ideas
through the integration of science and engineering practices, while making connections to what they know
and the world they live in.”f4] The shift to the frameworks is built upon the guiding principles of relevance,
rigor, and coherence. The STE Curriculum Review process is intended to analyze our curriculum alignment
with the standards and in our RPS vertical articulation. The review process will deeply examine our STE
curriculum (with a focus on grade 6-12.) Funds will support teacher stipends, acquisition of curriculum
resources to review, travel to visit other sites, and professional development.

s Curriculum Review Middle School Literacy: A Middle School Literacy Leadership Team (MS LLT) was
developed in the 2022-23 school year to explore current curricular resources, tools, and practices in middle
school literacy. The goals of the team are focused on improving student achievement and growth in all
components of literacy instruction. Based on the work and recommendations of the MS LLT, we anticipate
continuing work in the 2023-24 school year to fully address MA DESE’s guidance around high-quality
curriculum materials and a new understanding of research in the field of literacy instruction. Funding could
include stipends, acquisition of curriculum tools to examine, travel to visit other sites, and potential
professional development.

[4] GESE Mramewnorks, 2016

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 21



s  Curriculum Review World Language: MA DESE World Languages Frameworks MA DESE World Languages
Frameworks were updated and adopted in 2021. These frameworks contain a shift in the methodology of
world language instruction to focus on functional communication and comprehension skills. Under the new
frameworks, world language instruction and assessment are driven by “Can Do” statements highlighting how
students are able to use and grow proficiency in the second language. To ensure RPS world language
curriculum is aligned with the shifts of the new standards, a curriculum review team will be formed. Funding
could include stipends, acquisition of curriculum tools to examine, travel to visit other sites, and potential
professional development.

Major Focus Areas with No Impact to FY24 Recommended Budget
Killam Clemeantary School Building Project:

On March 2, 2022, the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) Board of Directors voted to invite the
Statement of Interest for the J. Warren Killam Elementary School into the MSBA’s Eligibility Period. The 270-day
Eligibility Period formalizes and streamlines the beginning of the MSBA’s grant approval process and benefits the
Town by providing a definitive schedule for the completion of preliminary requirements, assisting with the
determination of financial and community readiness, and identifying needs for planning and budgeting. Successful
completion of all activities in the Eligibility Period will allow the Town to be eligible for an MSBA invitation to
Feasibility Study.

Town Meeting’s vote to appropriate $2.2M in November 2022 was among the final requirements for advancing
beyond the Eligibility Period. The affirmative vote by Town Meeting indicated to the MSBA that the town is likely to
support a project that emerges from the design phase and will provide the funding required to proceed through
Modules 2-5, including hiring an Owner’s Project Manager {OPM), a designer, and paying for several analyses and
studies related to the site that may be required. On March 2, 2023, the MSBA Board of Directors will reconvene to
evaluate Phase 1 deliverables and vote on whether to move the Killam Building Project into Phase 2.

The timeline below depicts the three phases of the MSBA process:

Prospective MSBA Timeline, beginning June 1, 2022:

Phase 1 Preparation:
Module 1 Eligibility Period/Preparation: ... iieesereiiseriensssivensasseens 270 days

Phase 2 Scope Definition:

Module 2 Project Team {OPM, DESIENET) .cccvvevvicriiminenrieiieirisiesesnssenssesssssesesens 150 days
Module 3 Feasibility StUdy ..o e 300 days
Module 4 Schematic DasigN ...t e s e 75 days
Module 5 Project Scope, Schedule & FUNding ..ooc.eoeeeeeeceeeee e 90 days

Phase 3 Scope Monitoring:
Modules 6-8 Detailed Design, Construction Documentation & Bidding ........... 1 year
CONSEIUCTION vttt raes s e sa e s resa s sra se s arssas sessssresnsssasareserarasensaranee 1.5 years

*Total ~ 3.5 years

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 22



*The timeline above represents maximum allowed durations. Many steps will likely overlap, resulting in a shorter,
3.5-year timeframe.

The Killam Elementary School completed construction in 1969 and has not undergone any significant renovations
since opening. While the facility has been well-maintained, it is now 53 years old and has several deficiencies. The
building is not fully ADA-compliant, including bathrooms and entry points to some classrooms and common areas.
The water fountains have been unusable for years due to lead levels, requiring the district to provide drinking water
through expensive and wasteful water bottles. Many of the windows and doors are original to the school, so they are
not energy efficient and create challenges with maintaining comfort levels. There is a fire alarm system, but no fire
suppression system. Sightlines to the main doors are poor, presenting a security concern. Due to the age of the
foundation, there have been some issues with water infiltration.

Programmatically, the building’s configuration also presents many challenges. Some classrooms and common spaces
are only accessible through other classrooms. The library / media center is an open space located at the “crossroads”
of the building, which makes it difficult to maintain a quiet environment or use the space for special education or
other services that may call for a degree of privacy. The needs of students and our understanding of how to provide
appropriate interventions have changed over the many decades since Killam was built, and the building does not
adequately support the space requirements for these needs. Tier 2 supports (such as small reading groups) are taking
place in open settings, including hallways. Spaces originally intended for storage have been converted to offices and
even learning spaces in some cases. The accessibility challenges of many of the building’s spaces significantly limit
the staff’s ability to creatively use the building’s footprint.

It could be possible to address some of these deficiencies through smaller renovation projects, but given the scope
of the needs, it is likely that any significant renovations would reach a threshold of 20% of the building’s assessed
value. This would trigger several compliance requirements that are currently grandfathered in (including ADA
compliance). As a result, while renovations are a possible outcome of the MSBA process, a new building may be the
more likely outcome.

The feasibility study will also consider solutions for other programmatic and space-related deficiencies in the district,
including, but not limited to: relieving capacity constraints at other elementary schools; eliminating the need for
modular classroom units; creating a single site to house the R.I.5.E. preschool program,; allowing for possible future
expansion of R.1.5.E. as new mandates expand the eligibility for access to R.|.S.E. services.

While the precise figures are to be determined, the MSBA program may provide reimbursement to the town for
nearly half of the cost of any project. RPS and town staff have been working diligently over the last several months
to meet the numerous requirements to graduate from the Eligibility Period into Modules 2-5, which will allow us to
form a project team, conduct a feasibility study, develop a schematic design, and pursue town and MSBA approval
to enter into an agreement around project scoping and funding.

Innovetion Pathways at Reading Memorial High School:

Reading Memorial High School {(RMHS]) is in the process of applying for Innovation Pathway Designations in the areas
of Information (Digital Media - Music Production and Computer Science) and Advanced Manufacturing (Engineering).
With the assistance of the Reading Chamber of Commerce and MassHire Metro North Workforce Board, RMHS
established partnerships with local industries to support the proposed pathways. Current industry partners include,
Weston & Sampson, TEALS — Microsoft, and Associated Builders and Contractors. RMHS is working to expand
partnerships as the year progresses specifically with Mitre Corporation and All That Music Academy in Stoneham.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 23



RMHS is also consulting with institutions of higher education to include The College of St. Rose, Middlesex Community
College, and UMass Lowell. Earning Innovation Pathway Designations from DESE is an honor unto itself, but which
also opens the door to planning and implementation grants of up to $100,000. RMHS applied for the initial $25,000
Innovation Pathways planning grant and will be notified within the next couple of months if a recipient. Earning the
planning grant and designations makes RMHS eligible to apply for a $75,000 implementation grant in the summer of
2023,

During the planning process, course pathways are being developed by RMHS content specialist faculty in conjunction
with industry partners that are serving as advisors throughout this journey. Any student can select a Pathway course
while in high school, but to complete a Pathway, students enter in grade 9 or 10,

The courses in the Computer Science (Information) Innovation Pathway include, but are not limited to:

Introduction to Computer Science
Introduction to Java

Dual Enrollment {DE) Computer Networks
Dual Enrollment (DE) Computer Ethics
Advanced Placement (AP) Computer Science A

The courses in the Digital Media (Information) Innovation Pathway include, but are not limited to:

Digital Piano

Technical Songwriting & History of Rock

Recording Digital Media

Digital Music Production & Advanced Digital Marketing
Advanced Music Production

The courses in the Engineering {Advanced Manufacturing) Innovation Pathway include, but are not limited to:

Introduction to Physics
Introduction to Engineering Design
Principles of Engineering {POE)
Environmental Engineering
Advanced Placement (AP) Physics 1

All Pathways conclude with either a capstone project that is overseen by a content specialist faculty member, or an
internship with one of the industry partners or other corporations with which RMHS establishes partnerships to
support student growth and engagement. Those working on this initiative at RMHS are extremely enthusiastic about
the opportunities that Innovation Pathways will cultivate for students. RMHS is also proud to partner with local
industries and universities to inspire Reading residents to attend school and start their careers in the rich industries
embedded throughout Massachusetts.

An Innovation Pathway presentation was presented to the School Committee on November 18, 2022, and can be
viewed at the following . More information will be communicated to the community with a specific emphasis on
current and incoming RMHS students and families. It is the collective hope that the new course and programmatic
offerings will engage students in deeper and meaningful learning experiences, while at the same time highlighting
the skill sets of our students and faculty.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 24



Dual Enrcliment Expansion &t Reading Memorial [igh School:

Reading Memorial High School has offered Dual Enrollment (DE) courses for students in the past through various
higher education institutions. These courses typically take place on college campuses. In the 2023-24 school year
RMHS is planning to expand DE offerings and hold a larger number of classes on campus at RMHS and within the
regular school day. RMHS is working with Middlesex Community College, a leader in DE programming for high school
students in the Greater Boston area, to expand opportunities for Reading students at a reasonable cost.

RMHS teachers are in the process of applying to be adjunct professors at Middlesex Community College and
proposing 100-level courses for next school year. In addition, RMHS department leaders are preparing course syllabi
for approval by the respective departments at Middlesex Community College. DE courses will be offered to seniors
that meet the prerequisites to include a 2.0 Grade Point Average or better, PSAT or SATs, and teacher
recommendation. During the course selection process in the spring, current juniors and their families will receive in
depth information regarding the expanded DE offerings for next school year. The new offerings do not negate
students taking courses on college campuses as has happened in the past, it is meant as a new opportunity for
students to earn college credits while enrolled in high school within the regular school day.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommendeda Budget Pricrities

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget Priorities summarized in the sections above represent a total
investment of $2,094,895. Of this total, 51,723,895 consists of new funding, $260,000 is supported through the
deployment of existing funds, and $111,000 is funded through grants. The FY24 priorities reflect an increase of 14.90
FTES over FY23, with 1.5 FTEs of this increase funded through grants. Each priority and their relative relationship to
the three overarching categories, 1.) provide a safe and supportive learning environment, 2.) build coherent
instructional systems, and 3.) increase operational efficiencies and effectiveness to support students is described
helow by level (Preschool and Elementary, Secondary, and District Wide):

Preschool and Elementary Level Pricrities:

Provide cperational and instructional support SCO0,0C0| 500,000
to Barrows, Birch Meadow, Joshua Eaton and
Killam Elementary School Principals to prioritize

Improvement i student outcomes.
Redeployed four assistant Principals stipends.

Elementary Assistant Principals

full Day Kindergarten (FDK] Tuition 2 Reduce FDK tuition by 50% from $3,600 to 250,000 250,000 0 500,000 0.0
Fee Reduction $2,650. This action increases access for

students and moves us closer to free full day

kindergarten.
loshua Eaton Special Education 2 Carry forward the 1.0 FTE Special Education o 34,233 0 84,233 1.00
Teacher Teacher hired in F¥23 for Learning Center at

Joshua Eaton due to enroliment shift and larger
class sizes/student caseloads,

Team Chalr Hours 2 increase R.ES.E. Team Chalr position from 50 0 37.823 0 37,823 0.40

i 00

FTE to 1.0 FTE.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 25



As noted in the table above, the FY24 Elementary {(Preschool to Grade 5) Budget Priorities are supported through a
total investment of 51,122,056 and 6.40 FTEs. This investment will be supported through $872,056 of new funding
and $250,000 of existing operating funds will be redeployed to support these priorities.

Research shows that investing in building leadership is at the core of improving academic outcomes for all students.
To create structures for student success in our schools, four assistant principals have been recommended for all five
largest elementary schools. These new roles will provide our elementary schools with the administrative leadership
structure necessary to harness the impact of principal leadership on students. Shifting our priorities for principals
away from operational responsibilities and more toward instructional leadership will enhance our principals’ capacity
as leaders of learning communities, ultimately raising the academic achievement of students in our schools. Existing
Assistant Principal stipends will be reallocated toward supporting this new investment.

Continuing the pathway toward Universal Full-Day Kindergarten, the FY24 Recommended Budget reflects the
incorporation of teachers’ salaries within the operating budget, resulting in the decrease of FDK tuition fees from
$3,600 to 52,650 in FY24. The Town’s contribution toward increasing access to all students through Community
Priority funding and the district’s reallocation of existing funds from across several accounts will bring our community
one step closer to providing free FDK for all students. Some ways in which personnel and non-personnel resources
were maximized to support new investments, including operationalizing the FDK program to reduce tuition fees, are
outlined on page 11 and include the following personnel and non-personnel changes to the baseline budget. These
changes released funds for focus on other investment priorities, not only at the elementary level but also at the
secondary and districtwide:

Recognized retirement savings.

Shifted positions charged to the Special Education 240 grant eliminating MTRS expenses.

Allocated lunch time para wages to the Food Services special revenue fund.

Applied School Choice funding.

Considered a multi-year review of past, present, pending, and projected out of district tuition cost rates and
changes in placements.

Applied the increase in Circuit Breaker Reimbursement.

Reduced new employee physical examination requirements.

® Explored the Special Education P.O.5.T contract.

Increasing the R.1.5.E. Team Chair’s hours will allow the district to continue the equitahle share and out of district
case management required to meet legal mandates and a Learning Center teacher hired in FY23 will be reflected in
the FY24 Recommended Budget at Joshua Eaton. This position ensures compliance with the delivery of services
defined on students’ Individual Educational Plans.

Priorities funded in the FY23 budget that will be carried over into the FY24 budget to ensure supportive and safe
environments includes one Adjustment counselor/METCO Coordinator assigned to each elementary school, positions
which are shared equally between the operating fund and METCO grant, and three Elementary School Teaching
Fellow positions to continue to support reasonable class sizes.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 26



Secondary Level Priorities:

e i

Middle School Adjustment Add METCGC/Adjustrment Counselor position to ) 55,500
Counselor/METCO Coordinator be shared between Coolidge and Parker Middle
Schools. This pasitian is funded equally by
aperating budget and METCO grant, .50 FTE
and .50 FTE

RMHS METCO Coerdinater 1 Move METCO Cocrdinator rele from Parker to 0 0 56,000 56,000 1.00
RMHS. This pasition is funded entirely by
METCO grant, 1.0 FTE

RMHS Wayfinder Curriculum 1 Sustain Wayfinder Curriculum in the RMHS o] 13,000 0 13,000 0
cperating budget, previously funded by ESSER
grant.

Secondary Transition Specialist 2 Provide direct evaluation and transition 0 79,596 0 79,596 1.00]
planning support for students ages 14-22,
as recommended in the Special Education
program review.

RMHS Seal of Biliteracy Certification 2 Expand the recognition of RMHS students who 2,000 0 0 2,000 o]
have achieved proficiency in two or more
languages.

Subtotal SEEondd 129,555 J I e

At the Secondary Level {grades 6 to 12}, the total investment amount is $206,096, of which $129,596 will be
supported through new funding, $2,000 to be redeployed from existing resources, and $74,500 funded through the
METCO grant. A total investment of 3.0 FTEs is associated with these priorities, of which 1.5 FTEs will be funded
through the operating budget and 1.5 FTEs through the METCO grant.

Building upon the successful elementary school model of providing a supportive and safe environment to all students
has been adopted at the middle school level through the addition of an Adjustment Counselor/METCO Coordinator.
One Adjustment Counselor/METCO Coordinator is recommended to be shared between Coolidge and Parker Middle
Schools to increase the academic and social-emotional support to all Boston and Reading resident students. This
position will be funded through the operating budget and the METCO grant. In addition, a METCO Coordinator is
recommended for assignment to Reading Memorial High School. The METCO Coordinator position at RMHS is
expected to increase the academic and social-emotional support to all Boston and Reading resident students and will
he supported entirely through METCO grant funding.

Sustaining Project Wayfinder, a social-emotional learning curriculum implemented by RMHS guidance staff, will allow
the district to support students’ success in school and in life by teaching the skills needed to build belonging and the
mindsets necessary to facilitate personal growth. ESSER grant funds were used to deliver this program during the
2021-22 and 2022-23 school years. The cost of this program is recommended to be adopted by the district in the
FY24 Recommended Budget.

The Special Education program review conducted in FY23 highlighted the need for a Secondary Transition Specialist
to provide evaluation, transition planning, and post-school skills development support for students ages 14 to 22.
This position is reflected among the priorities at the secondary level for FY24 investment.

The expansion of the Seal of Biliteracy Certification, which was funded initially in FY23, will be funded through the
reallocation of existing resources, and will allow the high school world language department to increase the number
of students who are given the opportunity to achieve the Seal of Biliteracy for demonstrating proficiency in two or
more languages by participating in proficiency assessments.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 27



Cistrict Wide Level Pricrities:

ESSER-Funded Positions

Begin a two year process of funding a porticn
of 1.0 FTE M5 Special Education Teacher, 2.0
FTE Guidance/Counseling, 2.6 FTE Special
Edlucation Team Chairs as ESSER funds in FY23
and in FY24. ESSER Tuters will not be
consalidated into the Operating Budget.

.Iml IhMIMumlmu;

i

Furd:

pel

neg Oy
I
G

204,186

Total FTH

I
HH )

1 to 1 Nurse

Meet individual student need

59,035

59,035

Social Emotional Learning (SEL)
Curriculum Exploration

Provide time and opportunity to assess SEL
programs for implementation n FY25 for
Preschool through grade 8

5,000

5,000

instructional Math Coaches

K-8 Math Coaches will support increased
implementation of high quality eurriculum
materials, improved instructional practices,
vertical and horizental alignment, and
professional learning embedded into daily
teaching and learning cycles.

130,000

180,000

2.00

Multi-Language Learner Teachers

Carry forward 1.5 FTE hired in FY23 to support
surge in mult-language learner enrollment
districtwide to align with DESE
recommendaticns for time on learning.

115,022

119,022

150

Board Certified Behavior Analyst
(BCBA}

Hire Preschool through grade 12 additional
1.0 BCBA to provide support for students
enrelied in the 5.0.A.R./E.M.B.AR.C.
Programs in alignment with the Special
Education Program Review
recommendations.

85,000

85,000

1.0¢

Team Chair Stipends

Issue stipends to Team Chairs appointed to
provide individualized Program
Coordination to substantially separate
Special Educaticn Programs. These
stipends will be funded through the
Special Education 240 grant.

32,500

32,500

Mentoring for Year 2 Teachers

Complete plan and develop coordinated
mentoring program for instructicnal staff,
including paraprofessionals. Comply with DESE
requirements.

30,000

30,600

Curriculum Content Cycle

Formulate plan that incorporates curriculum
content review cycle and instructional
leadership structure to improve student
academic outcomes in three content areas:
Middle School titeracy, Grades 7-12 World
tanguages, and Grades 6-12 Science.

20,000

30,600

Annual Community Report

Publish annual Community Report to share
work of schocl district, engage residents, and
[ncorporate student voice.

8,000

8,000

Substitute Nurse wages

improve akility of the district to recruit and
assign substitute nurses by increasing daily
wage from 5175 to $225 to become
comparative with nearby communities. This
expense will be funded by the Department of
Public Health Grant.

4,000

4,000

The total investment required to support Districtwide priorities identified by instructional leaders and stakeholders
and align with all three strategic objectives totals 766,743 of which $722,243 is supported through new funding,

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget

28



$8,000 through existing funds and $36,500 supported by grants or existing resources. An addition of 5.5 FTEs is
associated with these priorities.

As ESSER Il funding comes to an end in FY23 followed by ESSER lll in FY24, a portion of positions previously supported
through this grant will be incorporated into the operating budget over the next two years to ensure compliance with
IEPs and support the behavioral health of our students: Middle School Special Education Teacher, Special Education
Team Chairs, and Secondary Counselors,

An increase in health support will be available through the addition of a 1 to 1 1.0 FTE Nurse to meet an individual
student’s medical need for the student to access the school setting.

With the increased and changed social-emoticnal and behavioral health needs of students, an exploration of a
consistent SEL curriculum is needed. Funding in FY24 will facilitate this work by supporting staff stipends,
acquisition of curriculum tools to examine, travel to visit other sites, and potential professional development.

K-8 math coaches will bring a shift in our professional learning structures, bringing previously externally provided
training into our district, working within our structures and alongside our educators. K-8 Math Coaches will support
increased implementation of adopted high-quality curriculum materials, improved instructional practices leading to
deepened opportunities for rigor in math learning, vertical and horizontal alignment, educator professional learning
thoughtfully and intentionally embedded into daily teaching and learning cycles. They will support targeted
training/professional learning opportunities, collaboration with teacher groups, and 1:1 coaching and collaboration.

Improving academic outcomes will be articulated through the increase in instructional support for English Language
Learners inthe form of 1.5 FTE teachers. As of December 2022, 63% of our 60 MLL students are beginners. According
to DESE standards, multi-language learners must receive English instruction by a Teacher of English as a Second
Language (ESL). These teaching positions are essential to carry-forward into the FY24 Recommended Budget to
provide needed services to students and comply with state regulations.

In alighment with the Special Education program review recommendations, an additional Board Certified Behavior
Analyst (BCBA) is needed to provide support for students enrolled in the 5.0.A.R./E.M.B.A.R.C. programs, Preschool
through grade 12. The primary role of the BCBA will be to provide consultative support to teams and families
regarding evaluations, behavioral interventions, and data collection.

Also recommended in the FY23 Special Education Program Review is a district-wide budget priority to expand the
role of the Team Chair to provide individualized Program Coordination to substantially separate Special Education
Programs. The expansion of the role will be compensated through a stipend, which will be funded through the Special
Education 240 grant.

The district’s current mentoring program provides new staff with an individual mentor during their first year.
Additional funding would allow new staff to continue to receive the support of a mentor in year 2. Not only will this
improve the development of new staff, but it enables RPS to meet the mentoring requirements DESE has outlined
for districts.

The FY24 Recommended Budget support for the Science/Technology/Engineering, World Language and Middle
School Literacy Curriculum Review process is intended to analyze our curriculum alignment with the standards and
inour vertical articulation. The review process will deeply examine our curriculum (with a focus on secondary.) Funds
will support teacher stipends, acquisition of curriculum resources to review, travel to visit other sites, and
professional development.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 29



Sharing the work of the school district, engaging residents, and incorporating students’ voices is the goal of the annual

Community Report publication. This report will be written, produced, and published with the support of our student
hody.

Reflected in the District Wide FY24 Recommended Budget Priorities is a recommendation to increase the substitute
nurse’s daily wage from $175 to $225. This increase will improve the district’s ability to recruit and assign substitute
nurses by hecoming comparable with other nearby districts’ daily wages.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 30



e
]

“Foliage” by Emily Bass, RMHS Student enrolled in Ms. Kathleen M. Dailey’s AP Photography Class

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 31



In October 2022, the Finance Committee voted for a FY24 budget guideline of 3.75%, which represents an increase
of $1,942,000 over the FY23 School Department Appropriated Budget. Since then, Townwide Accommaodated Cost
savings have been identified. As a result, $131,260 of additional funds have been allocated to the School
Department’s FY24 Recommended Budget. These additional funds raised the total incremental increase in FY24 to
$2,073,260, or 4.00%, over FY23. Combined with the $150,000 in funding associated with the Townwide Community
Priority for FDK, the S5chool Committee's FY24 Recommended Budget totals $2,223,260. The Finance Committee
Budget Guidelines, revised Accommodated Costs, and Community Priority for FDK are summarized in the table
below:

Adjusted FY24 Budget FY23 Appropriated Budget FY24 Adjusted Budget $ Change
FY24 vs. FY23
Operating Funds 46,203,363 48,053,423 1,850,060
Special Education Accommodated Costs 5,580,000 5,803,200 223,200
Total Adjusted FY24 Guidelines 51,783,363 53,856,623 2,073,260
% Percentage increase 4.00%
*Community Priority 150,000 150,000

TotalAdjustedlf 2

**Community Priority - to be applied toward Universal Full Day Kindergarten

The leadership team used financial, staffing and student outcome data to identify trends, analyze resource
allocations, and make strategic decisions. In the section to follow, the district’s finances are summarized and detailed
by Cost Center. The following information can be found within each subsection:

1. Summary of FY23 Appropriated Budget, FY24 Recommended Budget, and the dollar/percentage
change between the two.

2. Primary Function Description summarizing core services.

3. FY23 Appropriated and FY24 Recommended Budgets by org and object codes, in comparison with
actual expenditures {excluding end of year encumbrances) for FY20, FY21 and FY22.

4, Description of Personnel and Non-personnel Budget Drivers that have impacted and shaped the FY24
Recommended Budget.

The School Committee’s FYZ4 Recommenaed Buaget by Cost
Center

In comparison with actual expenditures (excluding end of year encumbrances) for FY20, FY21 and FY22, the table
helow provides the actual expenditures for FY20, FY21, FY22, the Appropriated FY23 Budget and the School
Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget for each of the five Cost Centers: Administration, Regular Day, Special
Education, School Facilities and Districtwide Programs, which includes Health Services, Athletics, Extracurricular
Activities, and Technology. Please note that the actual expended amounts below reflect the combined total of
expenditures and encumbrances reported at the close of each fiscal year. The table below also provides the

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 32



percentage change hetween the Recommended FY24 Recommended Budget and the FY23 Appropriated Budget by
Cost Center:

Summary of FY24 Recommended Budget by Cost Center Compuared with Prior Fiscal Years:

iNANES
| W%ﬂ

1]

O
Administration 1,116,630 1,229,548 S 1,268,745|S$ 1,303,760 1,311,157
Regular Day 27,237,804 28,965,873 $ 29,351,284 | § 29,705,173 31,954,246
Special Education 14,321,863 13,895,188 $ 14,963,132 | $ 16,931,141 16,716,166
School Facilities 1,608,219 1,693,091 $ 1,601,689 S 1,620,845 1,644,782
District Wide 2,021,650 1,827,722 § 2,308,084 2,222,444 2,380,272 7.10%

363 o523 | 4525

The five Cost Centers named above were established by a vote of the School Committee. In accordance with that
vote, during the current fiscal year, the administration is authorized to transfer funds within any Cost Center,
however, the transfer of funds between Cost Centers must be obtained upon a majority vote of the School Committee
through a recommendation at the time of the quarterly financial report presentations. The relative size of each Cost
Center using actual expenditures for FY20 through FY22, the Appropriated FY23 budget and the FY24 Recommended
Budget is illustrated in the tables on the page to follow:

Cost Center Perceniage to Total Budgets and Expenditures:

i
by

|

Recommefﬁ;ded FY24 Budéét

W Administration

W Regutar Day

W&pecial Education 20005
# Schoal Facitities 1000
e Disteict Wide GO B om LB o W owm s N
Actual Actust Aotaal Fiiel Rarammeneod
Expeadag Expended Expended Budget Budgat
[0 il ryzz rYas ¥4

W Adirimiskration W Regular Day MSpecial Education © School Facilities B Mhslncl 'Wide

lllustrated in the pie chart above, the percentage of each Cost Center to the total FY24 Recommended Budget. For
example, the chart reflects 59.08% of the FY24 Recommended Budget is allocated ta Regular Day expenditures. The
bar graph reflects the percentage of each Cost Center’s actual expenditures at the end of each fiscal year. FY20
through FY22, along with the FY23 Appropriated and FY24 Recommended budgets.

Financial and narrative overviews for each Cost Center are found in the section to follow including a description of
changes within each Cost Center’s recommended personnel and non-personnel funding to meet all contractual and

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 33



mandated obligations and to address investment pricrities in the daily delivery of academic, social, emotional, health
and extracurricular services to our students.

In the table below, personnel and non-personnel actual expenditures are reflected for FY20 through FY22, the FY23
Appropriated Budget and the FY24 Recommended Budget. Personnel budgets consist of professional salaries, clerical
salaries, and other salaries and non-personnel budgets consist of contracted services, supplies and materials and
other expenses categories. These categories are defined by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education
(DESE) with their chart of account, which are requirements for reporting expenditure data from school committee
appropriations. More about DESE’s chart of accounts and criteria for financial reporting can be found here:

FY24 Recommended Budget by Categories of Spending Compared with Prior Fiscal Years:

:
m |||m

Professional Salaries & 32,380,249 S 32,748,702 & 34,671,832 | 35997172 39,878,042 10.78%
Clerical Salaries $ 917,050 $& 960,784 $ 978,417 | ¢ 1,032,667 |$ 1,050,750 1.75%
Other Salaries & 4273723 S 4264215 & 45725118 5,375085]%S 4,559,472 -15.17%
Contract Services $ 2,261,470 § 2,184,659 $ 2,831,163|S5 2,831,354 2,794,720 -1.29%
Supplies & Materials $ 1,374,922 $ 1,953,258 5 1,574,938]5S 963,940 | 5 991,711 2.88%
Other Expenses $ 5098751 $ 5,499,804 $ 4,864,073|% 5583,145]% -15.25%

4,731,928
i 4.2

[T 1l

The table above reflects expenditures and budgets by category of spending established by DESE. The personnel
related budget category consists of professional salaries, clerical salaries, and other salaries such as sick leave buy-
back. The non-personnel budget category consists of contracted services, supplies and materials, and other expenses,
such as equipment. In addition to contractual obligations and mandated services, spending trends and projected
student needs were factored into the allocation of funds when developing the FY24 Recommended Budget.
Reviewing per pupil instructional supplies by school is one of several data points the district uses to review allocation
of funds.

Principals and School Secretaries were instrumental in identifying students’ projected needs:

Instructional Services, Materials, and Equipment Per Pupil Budget Allocation:

October 1, 2022 App::pzrigated\ Fr2s | FY24 Projected Recniyr:znd\ed Y24 .
Enrollment h Per Pupil |  Encoliment - Per Pupil
Instructional Instructional

Barrows 356 & 63,862 % 179 354 § 63,962 S 181
Birch Meadow 358 & 53,665 % 15C 365 S 54,050 S 148
Eaton 389 & 62,741 & 161 396 5 63,365 S 160
Kitlam 406 S 61,195 s 151 406 5 61,240 S 151
Wood End 246 & 50,537 5 205 234 5 50,887 S 217
Coolidge 429 % 52,760 § 123 408 53,260 ¢ 131
Parker 464 & 59,655 % 129 457 § 60,155 S 132
RMHS S 174,645 S 1589 198,805 S 183

T

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 34



Instructional services, materials, and equipment budgets for each school are outlined above with FY23 Actual and
FY24 Projected Enrollment. Shifts in actual versus projected enrollment, unanticipated student needs, needs of
substantially separate programs, economies of scale, stages of equipment renewal, specific school year needs, and
the level of prior year pre-purchases of instructional materials and equipment supported by district-wide end year
savings can impact the funding amounts and ratios across schools and between fiscal years.

Administration Cost Center Summary

FY23 Appropriated Budget: 51,303,760

FY24 School Committee’s Recommended Budget: 51,311,157
$ Change: $7,397.00

% Change: .57%

Primary Function: The Administration Cost Center includes the salaries and expenses for Central Office and some
District-wide administration which includes the following primary functions: School Committee, Superintendent,
Assistant Superintendent, Business and Finance, Human Resources, and District-wide Data and Information
Management. The Administration Cost Center currently accounts for 2.43% of the total district budget. FTEs for this
Cost Center are found in Appendix A.

Budget Detail by Administration Cost Center:

M === _-=

Administration $ 1,116,630 S 1,229,548 5 1,268,745 |$ 1,303,760 | 5 1,311,157 0.57%
Professional Salaries $ 627,466 & 675,526 5 624,427 | & 676,407 | 707,915 4,66%
Administrator $ 507971 § 518082 5 521,702 |$ 509,850 | § 526,748 3.31%
Director $ 78,693 $ 68,077 S 116,769 | S 123,600 | 5 137,350 11.12%
Employee Benefits 5 - 5 48,027 ¢ 246218 - S - -
Manager ) 40,802 $ 41,3406 % 43,494 ) $ 42,957 | s 43,817 2.00%
Clerical Salaries [ 278,807 § 333,726 S 330,145 | § 361,443 | S 357,167 -1.18%
Administrative Assistant $ 290,401 S 330,471 § 352,390 | $ 386,443 | & 401,873 3.99%
Employee Benefits S 3,407 $ 3,255 % 2,755 S - S - -
Revolving Fund Support S {15,000) $ - S {25,000)] & {25,000)] 5 {44,706) 73.82%
Contract Services S 90,100 § 97,244 § 96,827 | $ 99,000 | $§ 91,715 -7.36%
Consulting Services S 11,500 $ 20,500 $ 28000 S 12,000 | & 8,000 33.33%
Labor Counsel s 32,647 $ 32,264 $ 18,594 1§ 33,5005 36,515 5.00%
Telecommunications S 45,953 § 44,480 3 50,233 | S 53,500 | S 47,200 -11.78%,
Supplies & Materials S 3477 S 3,178 % 2.922]% 3,700 | S 2,700 0.00%)
Office 3 3477 % 3,156 S 2,678 | 5 4,700 | 4,700 0.00%)
Professional Development S - S 22 3 244 1% - 5 - -
Other Expenses $ 116,780 § 119,874 S 154,425 | § 162,210 | S 149,660 -7.74%
Advertising 3 505 § 1,855 S 35175 5550 | 5 4,550 18.02%
Awards $ 836 $ - $ 3,973 | % 800 | S 600 0.00%
Dues & Memberships 5 16,374 § 15,056 $ 16,293 | & 20,500 | S 20,500 0.00%
Employee Benefits ¢ 26250 § 27125 $ 28,175 ¢ 30000 ¢ 35,000 16.57%
Equipment $ 5872 $ 5891 % 21,184 | $ 9,000 | $ 9,450 5.00%
Furnishings S - S - $ 12,716 | - S - -
Hiring and Recruiting $ 33,128 $ 36,755 $ a0,024 | ¢ az000]% 17,000 59.52%
Postage s 4336 $ 2,927 § 2,765 1S 3,560 | S 3,560 0.00%
Professional Development ) 8,902 § 8,842 & 13,614 1 $ 2580015 25,800 0.00%
Publications $ - $ - $ - $ - 5 8,000 100.00%,
Software Licensing & Support s 20,578 & 21,812 ¢ 21,636 | S 23,500 | s 23,500 0.00%
| g -8 g 427 3 1,700 0.00%)
"mi T 18 I T % i M

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 35



Administration Budget Drivers:
The changes between the FY24 Recommended and FY23 Appropriated budgets are summarized below by personnel
and non-personnel categories:

Personnel -Salary differences in the FY24 Recommended Budget reflects staffing exchange, step, degree
changes, and the cost-of-living salary increase in compliance with employment contracts and bargaining unit
agreements approved by the School Committee. The FY24 Administrative Personnel budget also reflects the
new Offset for School Choice Funding totaling $45,000, which is generated on School Choice Students
enrolled in the 2022-2023 school year. The funds “earned” in FY23 will be allocated to support Districtwide
Regular Day and Special Education and Student Services. For the purposes of budgeting FY24, the offset of
School Choice Funds his resting within the Administration budget. Lastly, an increase in Employee Benefits,
specifically the participation in TSAs (Tax Sheltered Annuities) has been increased to better align with
trending costs. Decreases in the personnel budget are reflected in the Employee Physicals line item, as the
district shifts its requirement to job-related employees. In addition, the Advertising line item has been
decreased to reflect actual spending trends and anticipated needs. Hiring and Recruiting Expenses have
decreased in FY24 following the boost in investments made in FY22 and FY23 and due to a reduction of
$20,000 generated by refining the requirement for new employee physical examinations.

Non-personnel — Due to a 9% increase in legal fees, the Lahor Counsel line item has increased. Also, the
district will allocate funding to publish an annual Community Report to share the work of the Reading Public
Schools with our residents. Students will be involved in the development, design, and production of this new
annual report. Offsetting this increase are reductions in Consulting Services, specifically auditing fees, for
Student Activity Account Audits will be conducted through an internal process in alighment with DESE
guidelines. Telecommunication services have also bheen reduced due to shifts in service. hetter aligns the
hudget with trending usage and costs. The redeployment of existing resources to expand our efforts in
recruiting a diverse workforce is also reflected above. Reading Public Schools is committed to recruiting a
diverse and high performing workforce,

Regular Day Cost Center Summary

FY23 Appropriated Budget: $29,705,173

FY24 School Committee’s Recommended Budget: $31,954,246
$ Change: $2,249,073

% Change:7.57%

Primary Function: The Regular Day Cost Center encompasses all personnel and non-personnel expenses related to
delivering core, general education instructional programs to our students. Personnel costs for school principals,
instructional and support staff, as well as non-personnel costs related to curriculum materials; professional
development; instructional materials, supplies, and equipment; instructional technology; library materials and
technology; and other instructional services are captured in this Cost Center budget. The Regular Day Cost Center
hudget accounts for 59.08% of the total School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget. FTEs for this Cost Center
are found in Appendix A. FY24 Recommended Budget detail for Regular Education follows below:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 36



Budget Detail by Regular Day Cost Center:

$ 27,237,804

Regular Day § 28965873 § 29,351,284 |$ 29,705,173 | § 31,954,246 7.57%
Professional Salaries $ 23,711,443 S 24,034,487 § 25095447 | § 26,334,061 |§ 28,517,342 8.25%
Assistant Principal S 488,479 S 477,476 S 499,142 | $ 508,014 | 5 1,151,978 126.76%
Department Head Stipends/Salarid 5 346,219 $ 335,857 5 397,158 | ¢ 408,160 | $ 442,178 8.33%
Employee Benefits S 10,500 S 56,933 5 29,583 (¢ 41,8001 5% 39,850 -4.67%
Guidance S 388,482 S 403,727 5 430,408 | 5 507,708 | 5 556,736 9.66%
Instructional Specialist S 238,428 S 240,344 S 172,882 | S 286,796 | S 471,778 64.50%
Library $ 638574 $ 628,255 $ 654,748 | ¢ 683,219 | s 706,776 3.45%
Principal $ 895,728 $ 1,028,827 § 1,042,233 | $ 1,081,635 ¢ 1,076,259 -0.50%
Psychologist S 921,954 S 974,404 S 900,044 | 1,249,052 | 5 1,486,448 24.21%
Reading S 611,771 S 626,099 S 650,615 | & 654,936 | 5 675,878 3.20%
Reveolving Fund Support 5 (800,000) & (1,050,000} S (893,956)| ¢  (1,100,000}] $ {600,000) -45.45%
State Grant Support 5 {70,000} $ {70,000} S - 13 - 15 - -
Stipends $ 232,719 $ 203,187 $ 208,095 $% 255,600 | 5 278,400 8.92%
Substitutes $ 92323 $ 110,853 $ 83,730 | $ - s - -
Teacher $19,310,787 $ 18,753,323 $ 20,582,159 |$ 21,431,778 | $ 21,873,850 2.06%
Technology Integration $ 305467 $ 315,002 $ 328,605 | ¢ 335,362 | s 357,211 6.52%
Clerical Salaries S 470,796 & 456,161 § 480,959 | & 489,970 | S 504,652 3.00%
Employee Benefits S 14,348 S - S - s 4500 S 4,500 0.00%
Secretary $ 456,448 $ 456,161 $ 480,959 | § ags,470 | $ 500,152 3.02%
Other Salaries $ 860,284 $ 816,652 $ 1,022,116|% 1,260,888 |$ 1,285,665 1.97%
Employee Benefits S - g 35 § - S - S - -
Paraprofessional S 718,403 S 768,312 S 768,282 | & 863,688 | 5 888,465 2.87%
Substitutes S 141,881 S 48,304 S 253,835 | S 397,200 S 397,200 0.00%
Contract Services S 116,993 & 138,979 & 328,287 | & 273,000 | $ 268,000 -1.83%
Instructional Services S 681 S 3,200 §$ 147,908 | § 65,000 S 60,000 -7.69%
Transportation S 116,312 § 135,779 § 174,542 | & 208,000 ] 5 208,000 0.00%
Tutoring Services S - g - S 583715 - S - -
Supplies & Materials & 871,509 & 1476285 $ 1,257,953 % 736,008 | 5 761,721 3.49%
Art S 36,568 S 22,132 % 30,597 | $ 24724 | S 24,724 0.00%
Business S - ) - S 751 % 1,500 | S 1,500 0.00%
Curriculum, Elementary s 120,827 S 620,156 5 638,193 | & 63,000 )5 63,000 0.00%
Curriculum, High School S 98,269 S 168,483 § 66| % 77,1001 5 77,100 0.00%
Curriculum, Middle School S 60,837 $ 8,254 5 8,625 |5 45,400 | 5 45,400 0.00%
Drama S - g - S 291]s - S - -
English Language Arts $ 29,111 $ 63,218 S 26,458 | $ 28,500 | $ 28,500 0.00%
Equipment S 351 § 1,476 S - S - S - -
Foreigh Language S 1,986 S 12,172 & 10,753 | $ 12,953 | $ 12,953 0.00%
Furnishings S 27,574 S 77,268 5 123,423 | § 8,750 15 8,750 0.00%
Guidance S 500 5 327 S 4211s 1,000 )5 15,000 1400.00%
Kindergarten S 1,935 § 696 5 956 | S 3005 300 0.00%
Library S 10,008 S 15,369 S 11,651 | S 10,702 | 5 13,150 22.87%
Library Technology S - s 298 S - s 1,000 | S 1,000 0.00%
Math $ 63,852 $ 16,636 $ 16,396 | $ 18,350 | $ 18,350 0.00%
Office $ 13,735 $ 11,361 $ 16,167 | $ 14,245 | $ 14,245 0.00%
Other $ 49,383 $ 95,248 S 41,144 | ¢ 3g,764 | ¢ 38,337 -1.10%
The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 37



Regular Day Cost Center, continued:

T ' ' : inefdedil  %CH

Paper S 29,956 $ 20,032 5 33344 |8 35,500 | & 35,500 0.00%
Paerforming Arts S 8,807 S 31,677 5 11,463 | s 12,250 | s 12,250 0.00%
Peripherals S - S 898 3§ - S - s - -

Physical Education § 2,242 & 60,337 § 21,608 | ¢ 9,050 | ¢ 9,050 0.00%
Printer S 12,607 S 9,664 S 14,071 ] s 19,850 | s 19,850 0.00%
Professional Development S 1,085 S 60 S 744 |5 5,600 | % 5,350 -4.46%
Psychology 5 - 8 - S - |8 460 | 5 460 0.00%
Reading S 23,660 S 39,286 S 16,316 | 5 16,100 | s 16,100 0.00%
Science S 70,187 S 34,010 S 21,501 | s 68,397 ]S 68,397 0.00%
Social Studies $ 3,345 % 3,554 § 9,545 | ¢ g,000] ¢ 8,900 0.00%
Software $ 70909 & 67,133 & 154,478 | § 149,108 | & 159,050 6.67%
Teacher Resources S 3,327 8 9,000 $ 2,508 |8 7,700 1% 7,700 0.00%
Teacher Supplies S 24,490 $ 37,674 S 40,373 |5 17,375 ] s 17,375 0.00%
Technology $ 88332 ¢ 48,241 $ 4,211 | $ 27,780 | ¢ 27,780 0.00%
Testing S 505 $ 360 S 338 5S 1,850 1S 1,850 0.00%
Workbooks & Consumables S 10,711 S 1,261 S 2,231| S 9,800 5 9,800 0.00%
Other Expenses $ 1,206,780 S 2,043,310 $§ 1,166,522 (S 601,246 | 5 616,366 2.60%
COVID19 Expenses S 499,103 S 275 S - s - $ - -

Dues & Memberships S 10,589 5 17,414 S 20,141 | s 12,659 | s 12,450 -1.65%
Equipment S 69,070 S 61,791 5 72,117 | 5 82,900]5s 91,520 10.40%
Field Trip Travel S - S - S 76 ]S s00|s 500 0.00%
Graduation § 9,428 ¢ 17,717 & 8,522 | ¢ g,000] ¢ 10,000 25.00%
Instructional Services S 1,389 § 21,221 S 3,898 | S 450015 9,500 111.11%
Other S 524§ 422 S 711 ] s 1,000]s 1,000 0.00%
Professional Development S 200,217 S 145,541 S 159,091 | $ 234,504 | & 234,713 0.09%
Software Licensing & Support S 72,802 S 110,572 S 117,907 | s 90,000 | & 90,000 0.00%
Technology S 342,312 S 1,668,357 S 734,050 | 5 136,183 ] s 136,183 0.00%
Travel § 1,347 & -8 - s 1,000 | & 1,000 0.00%
Tuition - Qut of District S - s - S 40,460 | § 30,000 | S 30,000 0.00%
Virtual School Tuition S - S - S 9,550 | s - S - -

- 3,954,240k

Regular Day Budget Drivers:
The changes between the FY24 Recommended and FY23 Appropriated budgets are summarized below by personnel
and non-personnel categories:

Personnel - Salary differences in the FY24 Recommended Budget reflects staffing exchange, step, degree
changes, and the cost-of-living salary increase in compliance with employment contracts and bargaining unit
agreements approved by the School Committee. Also considered in the Personnel bhudget are increases
related to retirements. Increases reflected within Budget Priorities described in the prior sections make up
the personnel cost increases in the Regular Day Cost Center:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 38



Personnel Budget Priorities:

e 5.0FTE Elementary School Assistant Principals

e Full-Day Kindergarten Reduction of Fee and Adoption into the operating fund {fee
reduced from $3,600 to $2,650)

e 2.0FTE K-8 Math Coaches

e 1.5 FTE Multi-Language Learner Teachers

e FTE Middle School Adjustment Counselor/METCO Coordinator {cost shared between
operating budget and METCO grant)

e RMHS METCO Coordinator (1.0 FTE funded entirely by METCO grant)

e Portion of ESSER Funded Positions {1.0 FTE Coolidge Special Education Teacher, 2.0 FTE
Counseling/Guidance Staff, 3.0 FTE Team Chairs)

e Mentoring Stipends for Second Year Teachers’ Program

e Curriculum Content Cycle Stipends

Non-personnel — The Regular Day budget reflects a slight shifting of resources to maximizing existing funds
in support of our budget investments, including the support of Project Wayfinder, the expansion of the
Biliteracy Certification, and the assessment of Social Emotional Learning programs for implementation in
FY25. In addition to supporting new needs, some existing services and materials/equipment are projected to
increase, including translation services, a new 3-year photocopier contract, curriculum software licenses,
library books, and graduation expenses.

Defined within the prior section and summarized below are the following non personnel budget priorities in
Regular Day:

Non-personnel Budget Priorities:
e Project Wayfinder Curriculum
e Seal of Biliteracy Certification
e Social Emotional Learning (SEL) Curriculum

Special Education Cost Center Surmmary

FY23 Appropriated Budget: 516,931,141

FY24 School Committee’s Recommended Budget: 516,716,166
$ Change:{ 5214,975)

% Change: (1.27%)

Primary Function: The Special Education Cost Center encompasses all personnel and non-personnel expenses
necessary to deliver special education and related services to students in our school community. As mandated by the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act {IDEA) and Section 504 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, we strive to
provide programs and services to allow our students with disabilities to be educated in the least restrictive
environment that enables them to make effective progress. FTEs for this Cost Center are found in Appendix A. In
FY24, the Special Education Cost Centers makes up 31.03% of the School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 39



Budget Detail by Special Education Cost Center:

Srp B

| ue

BUGHEECategony il N“

-

Special Education $ 14,321,863 S 13,895,188 $ 14,963,132 |5 16,931,141 |$ 16,716,166 -1.27%
Professional Salaries $ 7,100,261 $ 7,189,533 $ 7,827,486 |5 7,931,713|$ 9,491,998 19.67%
Administrator s 61,954 S 77,849 & 111,251 ] & 112,004 | $ 121,850 8.79%
Director 5 251,791 § 265,181 $ 258,545 | $ 274,072 | ¢ 250,948 2.51%
Employee Benefits s 1,950 § 1,950 $ 16,558 | § 1,100 | & 1,100 0.00%
Extended Year Services 5 122,864 § 126,403 $ 140,294 | $ 136,000 | $ 140,896 3.60%
Manager s 26,099 & 34,269 5 36,284 | § 26,184 | 5 37,858 44.58%
Nurse s 1,934 § - s 203 s 4,000]s 4,000 0.00%
Occupational Therapist s 287,203 § 315,833 § 326,100 | § 324,278 | 5 343,626 5.97%
Physical Therapist s 133,624 & 150,357 154,450 | & 158,150 | 162,222 2.57%
Psychologist $ 461,160 $ 489,803 $ 524,501 | & 621,814 | ¢ 620,532 0.21%
Pysical Therapist ) 0) s - S - ) - S - -
Revolving Fund Support 5 (280,000) $ {370,000) ¢ (376,985)| ¢  ta00,000)] & (400,000) 0.00%
Special Education Teacher S 4,486,205 § 4,599,141 S 4,828,588 |6 4934713 |8 6,122,301 24.07%
Speech Therapist s 800,981 & 811,309 § 876,353 | & 505,578 | & 886,798 -2.07%
Substitutes s 61,067 & 23,812 % 92,955 | § - s - -
Team Chair s 683,428 659,536 S 838,389 | $ 822,820 | 5 1,169,867 40.30%
Clerical Salaries S 100,400 §$ 102,856 $ 96,626 | & 110,382 | § 113,936 3.22%
Employee Benefits S - S 3,415 S - S - S - -
Secretary s 100,400 $ 99,441 § 96,626 | 5 110,382 | & 113,936 3.22%
Other Salaries $ 2117487 $ 2,056,991 $ 2,201,996 |S 2,661,184 |$ 1,783,996 -32.96%
Employee Benefits S 339 S 987 § 1,267 | $ - S - -
Extended Year Services S 49,807 S 18,884 S 43,006 | S 42,753 | 5 43,822 2.50%
Pzraprofessional $ 2,064,737 $ 2,033,760 $ 2,152,504 | $ 2,618431]% 1,740,174 -33.54%
Substitutes 5 2,604 $ 3,361 ¢ 5128 | $ - s - -
Contract Services $ 1,361,274 $ 1,384,094 S 1,473,081 |S 1,539891|$ 1,491,825 -3.12%
Districtwide Leadership s 55,359 & 61,863 S 85,5815 68,250 | 5 68,250 0.00%
Field Trip Travel 5 - 5 1,777 & - 5 1,500 | $ 1,500 0.00%
Instructional Services S - S 29,440 $ - S - 3 - -
Legal Services 5 83,695 § 110,479 § 54,431 | $ 130,000 | 115,000 -11.54%
Other Instructional Services S 6,220 & 8,622 S 16,305 | & 8,000]s 10,000 25.00%
Psychological Services S 1,500 § - S 3,691 S 8,500 s 8,500 0.00%
Pupil Transportation $ 1,000,390 § 941,304 & 1,657,417|$ 1,031,141 )% 1,062,075 3.00%
Testing & Assessment 5 16,696 & - S 5,192 S 6,500 | & 6,500 0.00%
Therapeutic Services 5 197,414 $ 230,609 $ 250,465 | $ 286,000 | ¢ 220,000 -23.08%
Supplies & Materials S 67,467 $ 141,516 $ 83,139 $ 52,482 | $ 53,209 1.38%
Equipment s 299 5 - s - s - s - -
Furnishings S 100 § - S - S 2341]6 - -100.00%
General Supplies s 2,957 S 1,270 % 429 & 1,000 1,000 0.00%
Instructional Equipment S - S - S 22918 20006 550 175.00%
Office s - s - 5 - s 1,000 | & 1,000 0.00%
Other S 378 S 187 3 1,060 $ 1,073 |3 1,500 39.74%
Postage s 1,844 § 211 % 116 | 6 1,816 | & 2,350 29.38%
Software s 307 $ 2,043 ¢ 348 | 3 - 18 - -
special Education 5 21,468 § 51,307 $ 57,456 | $ 18,395 | $ 18,245 -0.82%
Testing s 40,113 $ 86,499 S 23,501 $ 28,764 | 5 28,564 -0.70%

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 40



Special Education Cost Center, continued:

W “W i b

s ik

Experded

Actual Ack I Fiirral '
20—y

=2

Other Expenses $ 3574975 $ 3,020,198 § 3,280,805 | $ § 3,781,202 -19.83%
Advertising S 256 5 - S - S - S - -
COVID19 Expenses S - S 276§ - S - s - -

Dues & Memberships S 2,145 S 845 S 3,630 5 2,500]% 2,500 0.00%
Equipment S 1,174 § 1,163 $ 50,951 | & 4,200]$ 4,410 5.00%
Instructional Equipment S 2,493 S 3,339 S 3,569 | $ - S - -
Instructional Technology S 23,922 S 120,239 $ 2,531 5 5,000 )3 5,000

Other Fixed Charges S 24,500 $ 21,000 $ 29,970 | $ 23,000 | ¢ 23,000

Postage S 318 S 569 $ 1185 500 % 500
Professional Development S 9,677 S 17,346 $ 12,312 | $ 11,300 | $ 11,000

Pupil Transportation S 1,347 S 1,793 S 11,680 ] S 16,630 | S 16,630

Software Licensing & Support S 36,796 S 31,498 § 36,349 | $ 35,0001 % 39,000

Therapeutic & Adaptive Equipment S 15,604 § 3,567 S 1,151 ] 12,0005 12,000

Travel S 1,224 $ -8 700 | $ 2,500 | ¢ 2,500

Tuition - Qut of District $ 3,455,518 $  2,818568 ¢ 3,127,835|¢ 4518859 |¢ 3,664,662

4 4 S i

Special Education Budget Drivers:
The changes between the FY24 Recommended and FY23 Appropriated budgets are summarized below by personnel
and non-personnel categories:

Personnel - Salary differences in the FY24 Recommended Budgets reflects staffing exchange, step, degree
changes, and the cost-of-living salary increase in compliance with employment contracts and bargaining unit
agreements approved by the School Committee. Also considered in the Personnel hudget are increases
related to retirements.

Other changes within the Special Education Personnel Budget includes the shift of grant funded positions. By
removing ten Special Education Licensed Teachers funded through the Special Education 240 grant and
replacing those positions with paraprofessionals, the district saved nearly $80,000 in annual Massachusetts
Teacher Retirement (MTRS) expenses for use toward supporting other needs. The 24% increase in the
teacher budget line and the (34%) reduction in the Paraprofessional budget line reflects this shift. Another
notable change in the Special Education Personnel Budget is the first of a two-year adoption of positions
previously funded through the ESSER grant. Those positions include a Middle School Special Education
teacher and Special Education Team Chairs. Budget Priorities described the prior sections also accounts for
the increases in the Special Education Personnel budget:

Personnel Budget Priorities:

e FTE Special Education Learning Center Teacher for Joshua Eaton Elementary School

e FTE Secondary Transition Specialist

e FTE Board Certified Behavior Analyst (BCBA) for E.M.B.A.R.C/5.0.A.R. Programs for
Districtwide Services

e 0.4 FTE Team Chair increase for R.1.5.E.

e Team Chair/ Special Education Literacy Coach Stipends to Provide Program Coordination,
which are funded through the 240 grant

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 41



Lastly, also reflected in the Special Education Personnel budget are shifts in funding to align with spending
trends and needs. For example, additional funds have been allocated to the Special Education Coordinators
for the Extended School Year program, which operates out of two locations for five weeks during the summer
and requires considerable planning and supervision.

Non-Personnel - The Special Education Non-personnel hudget reflects some shifting of funds to align funding
with anticipated spending, such as the increase to support out-of-district transportation costs which are
expected to increase by $30,934 or 3%. Of special note are the reductions in Contracted Services, which
reflects the expected termination of an out of district contract with the P.O.5.T. program upon the graduation
of the one student enrolled, and the redeployment of Special Education tuition out of district services. The
reduction of this service is offset by an anticipated increase in other contracted direct services to students.

The district’s leadership team carefully examined the past practices for budgeting for Special Education
placements. The practice has been to ensure that within each fiscal year’s appropriation funding for tuition
is sufficient to cover all current and anticipated costs and be responsive to address the unpredictahle nature
of this need for service. The district has prudently and thoughtfully budgeted for each student enrolled in
out of district placements at the tuition rate expected. In the FY24 Recommended Budget, the tuition rates
were budgeted at a 5% increase for Collaborative and Residential placements and while Private Day
placements increased by 14%, which totaled an overall tuition fee rate increase of $458,941 over FY23.
Tuition for out of district private day tuition fees are set by the Commonwealth’s Operational Services
Division, formerly the Rate Setting Commission. Funds are also earmarked for students who are being
considered for or who may need an out of district placement, which totals $533,890 in FY24. Additionally,
funds equivalent to two unassigned out of district placement tuitions totaling $220,000 have been budgeted
to be responsive to unanticipated needs of enrolled or new students. Lastly, an ongoing annual prepayment
of tuition totaling $982,000 is factored into the budget. With these careful budgeting practices for tuition,
the district is reasonably protected from unanticipated out of district expenditures. At the end of each year,
the unspent tuition funds are reallocated for a one-time support of other needs with the district, such as the
purchase of classroom computers, added to the Special Education Tuition prepayment, and turned back to
Free Cash.

Conservative budgeting and thoughtful spending combined within a projected decrease in out of district
enrollment of students has allowed the district to meet the current and unanticipated needs for out of district
services and redeploy funds to support Tier 1 and 2 services districtwide. The projected decrease in
placements, some of which were unanticipated, is due to several reasons including graduating from and aging
out of placements, changing placements, terminated contracted placements, returning to the district, or
moving out of the Reading community. The Tier 1 and Tier 2 services where funds have heen redeployed in
the FY24 Recommended Budget include K-8 Math Coaches, Secondary Transition Coordinator, K-12 BCBA,
increase in hours and stipends for Team Chairs, Middle School Adjustment Counselor, Learning Center
Teaching at Joshua Eaton, and the first of the two-year process to absorb the salaries of a Special Education
Teacher, Counselors, and Team Chairs previously funded through ESSER. Investing in instruction and student
support versus one-time spending at the end of each year, will lead to higher outcomes in students’ academic
achievement, fewer students requiring specialized services, and more students shifting off IEPs.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 42



Special Education Program and Learning Center Descriptions

Much of the special education in-district budget funds the salaries of the special education teaching and
support staff, as well as related services, which includes our in-district special education programs and
learning centers as determined by Individual Education Plans (IEPs). Each school offers a variety of special
education and related services to meet the individual needs of students. Additionally, to provide a continuum
of special education and related services, Reading Public Schools offers several specialized programs which
are described below:

R.1.5.E. Preschool Program: Reading, Integrated School Experience: The R.L.S.E. program serves children
ages three and four, including those turning five during the school year, who have mild, moderate as well as
intensive special education needs. Educators support students early learning by providing education and/or
specialized services to support individual learning needs. Reading Public Schools provide early learning
experiences in the least restrictive environment, which usually includes placement with typical peers.
Children with and without disabilities are provided early learning opportunities to support language, literacy,
social/emotional, and physical development, while exploring rich content to develop children’s natural
curiosity in mathematics and science. Rich content and hands-on learning experiences are alighed with the
Massachusetts Curriculum Frameworks and Early Learning Standards. R.1.S.E. is currently located at Killam,
Wood End, and RMHS.

S.A.LL.-Strategies to Support Academics, Independence, and Life Skills: The S.A.LL. program provides
identified students with specialized and skills-based instruction through a madified curriculum primarily in
English Language Arts and math, as identified by individual student IEPs. Students are provided with inclusive
opportunities as indicated in their IEP. Students in the S.A.l.L. program benefit from direct and repeated
instruction with academic, life, social, and communication skill development. S.A.LL. is located at Wood End,
Coolidge, and RMHS.

S5.0.A.R.: Social Skills Organizational Skills Academics in Real World Situations: The 5.0.A.R. program
supports identified students with needs relative to social skill acquisition and application, as well as the use
of social language. Students in the 5.0.A.R. program benefit from support to independently engage in group
work/play and reciprocal conversations, convey thoughts and opinions, and understand nonverhal
communication. The program provides a continuum of support to develop students’ language needs which
could include the use of alternative and augmentative communication. Academically and behaviorally
students may present with grade-level skills or may require modifications of the academic curriculum and or
setting. S.0.A.R. is located at Birch Meadow, Coolidge, and RMHS.

E.M.B.A.R.C.: Education Meaningful Inclusion, Becoming Independent, Advocacy, Relaxation, and Leisure
Activities Community Integration: The EEM.B.A.R.C. program is the middle and high school continuum of the
S.A.l.L. and 5.0.A.R. programs which serve students primarily within substantially separate settings in the
areas of functional academic, life, social, job and communication skill development. The students in the
E.M.B.A.R.C. program requires highly individualized, consistent, and intensive special education and related
service with strong focus on transitional skills, activities of daily living, safety skills, and community access to
generalize skills taught in the classroom. E.M.B.A.R.C. is located at Coolidge and RMHS.

R.E.A.C.H.: Resiliency, Executive Functioning, Academics, Coping Strategies, Habits of Mind: The R.E.A.C.H.
program is a comprehensive educational program for students with significant emotional, behavioral
challenges and for some students, co-existing learning disabilities. There is a focus of building relationships
hased on empathy, trust, and mutual respect. R.E.A.C.H. is designed to meet both the shared and unique

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 43



needs of the students targeting age-appropriate academic, behavioral, and social development through a
foundational approach grounded in a positive behavioral support philosophy. Students require intensive,
direct, specialized instruction throughout the school day. The students are provided varied opportunities to
demonstrate their talents to build upon strengths and foster a sense of competence, and embedded robust
clinical, behavioral, and therapeutic supports. For the 23-24 school year schools the program is located at
Barrows, Grade 8 at Coolidge, Grades 6 and 7 at Parker, and RMHS.

L.E.A.D.: Language, Executive Functioning, Academics, Determingtion: L.EA.D. is a comprehensive
educational program for students with dyslexia and/or significant language-based learning disabhilities. The
students require a multi-sensory approach to support their reading, writing, listening, speaking and
organizational skills. Students require intensive, direct, specialized instruction throughout the school day
grounded in language-based methodologies. The students are provided varied opportunities to demonstrate
their talents and background knowledge to build upon strengths and foster a sense of competence while
developing their understanding of the general education curriculum concepts and enhancing their reading,
writing and executive functioning skills. L.LE.A.D. is located at Joshua Eaton, Parker, and RMHS.

Learning Center: The support provided within the learning center directly addresses the goals and objectives
outlined in the student’s IEP to acquire skills to access the general education curriculum. The students are
taught direct skills to ensure that they can participate in daily school life and activities while having access to
general education given special education support. The Learning Center is available at all schools.

Gistrict Wide Programs Summaries:

Total FY23 Appropriated Budget: 52,222,444

Total FY24School Committee’s Recommended Budget: $2,380,272
Total $ Change: $157,828

Total % Change: 7.1%

Primary Function: The District Wide Cost Center consists of the budgets for four functional areas that serve the
district: Athletics, Extra-curricular Activities, Health Services, and Technology. FTEs for this Cost Center are found in

Appendix A. The District Wide Programs make up 4.41% of the School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget.

Budget Summary of District Wide Programs:

. na
ndedill  Budget

702,808 | $ 691,105 |

Athletics S 614,322 § 518,856 S s 720,528 4.26%
Extra Curricular | S 98,608 S 97,145 § 121935 % 69,548 | & 78,087 12.28%
Health Services | $ 705,242 S 615,734 & 787,064 | % BOL94%|% 913,224 13.88%
Technology S 603,478 § S 696,277 |5 659,842]|5 658,433

40

-1

An overview of each District Wide Cost Center budget follows in the sections to follow:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 44



Athletics

FY23 Appropriated Budget: $691,105

FY24 School Committee’s Recommended Budget: $720,528
$ Change: 529,423

% Change: 4.26%

Primary Function: The Athletics program budget funds the salaries and expenses necessary to operate the
High School athletics program.

Budget Detail by Athletics Cost Center:

mem Wmmm"m " ."'" s

Budget

......... ™ _— AceE) Actuallli  Fial “N

702,808

Athletics 614,322 S 518,856 S $ 691,105]% 720,528
Professional Salaries 62,539 $ 60,644 S 63,301|5 65242]% 66,873 2.50%
Director 62,539 S 60,644 S 633015 65242|6% 66,873 2.50%
Clerical Salaries 53,458 $ 54,186 S 54,702 | S 54,148 S 57,936 7.00%
Secretary 53,458 S 54,186 S 54,702 |5 54,148 |S 57,936 7.00%
Other Salaries 100,287 § 96,988 S 109,956 | S 83,460 | $ 95,689 14.65%
Coach 342,284 S 348079 S 4668505 469,460 (% 481,689 2.60%
Event Detail 4,903 S 909 $ 3458)s  s000]s 6,000 0.00%
Revolving Fund Support (246,900) $ (252,000) S (360,353)] & (392,000)] $ (392,000) 0.00%
Contract Services 255,953 § 166,618 & 377,034|S 397,955 $ 409,730 2.96%
Athletic Services 255,953 S 166,618 S5 377,034]5 397,955]S 409,730 2.96%
Supplies & Materials 100,602 S 74,093 S 33,344 | § 33,500 | $ 33,500 0.00%
Athletic Services 4,833 S 7307 & 10924|%  9000]% 9,000 0.00%
Office 1,035 S 982 S 672 |5 1,500 ] % 1,500 0.00%
Team 23,344 $ 8234 S 77563 15,0008 15,000 0.00%
Uniforms 71,390 $ 57569 $  13991]%  s000]s 8,000 0.00%
Other Expenses 41,482 $ 66,328 S 64,471 S 56,800 | $ 56,300 0.00%
Athletic Services 3,645 S 515 § 5465] 5 7,300 ] s 7,300 0.00%
Awards 328 S 1,279 $ 262718 2500]s 2,500 0.00%
Dues & Memberships 13,515 S 6135 ¢ 14870|% 14500 % 14,500 0.00%
Equipment 13,242 & 40279 $ 23942]% 1s,000]% 16,000 0.00%
Software Licensing & Support 10,851 S 18,120 S 1667115 16,500 S 16,500 0.00%
Travel - 5 - 5 89615 - S - -

Athletics Budget Drivers:
The changes between the FY24 recommended and FY23 appropriated budgets for the Athletics Cost Center
are summarized below by personnel and non-personnel categories:

Personnel- A cost of living salary increase established by School Committee and bargaining unit agreements.

Non-Personnel - The Athletics program offers 18 different sports for students enrolled at RMHS. Maore than
770 student athletes have participated on teams so far this year. On average, in recent years, total

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 45



participation was steady at about 1,200 students, excluding the Covid-19 pandemic impact on participation
in FY20.

Student Participation in Athletics:

21515 — ooy A 20%-15 WEEH 200071
50 a7 * 51 #
a5 38 36 41 a5 45 42
37 34 30 29 30 29 31
22 22 24 24 30 29 26
CRESEEOURNI 58 52 53 58 71 58 5%
FIELICH O CHBN e 41 55 58 59 54 53 64
L 109 103 102 89 34 74 79
15 13 14 15 11 15 12
17 20 22 20 25 19 18
49 53 54 57 52 49 62
17 22 21 20 17 14 21
71 79 88 91 94 66 68
46 69 76 84 73 53 77
66 65 61 50 * 63 *
61 77 70 67 * 53 *
92 99 111 103 * 97 *
69 58 78 76 * 53 *
67 70 67 b6 64 72 69
62 59 59 62 55 53 64
39 37 42 39 * 35 *
24 14 21 20 17 17 19
27 29 31 29 22 17 14
15 i8 17 15 * 9 *
14 17 13 16 * i8 *
44 44 37 42 40 49 43
37 31 23 21 23 14 22
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 19 N/A

11 [lIEGEE 1124 7

1184

[ ¥57

Exira-curriculor Activities

FY23 Appropriated Budget: 569,548

FY24 School Committee’s Recommended Budget: 578,087
S Change: $8,538

% Change: 12.28%

Primary Function: The Extra-curricular Activities Program budget funds the salaries, stipends, and a small
portion of the expenses necessary to offer extra-curricular activities at the high school. FTEs for this Cost
Center are found in Appendix A.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 46



Budget Detail by Extra-curricular Cost Center:

e g
“ T A : M uIﬂhlﬁlllllllllllllllllll ECommented | N
“ Mﬁ A II%
Extra Curricular $§ oBG08 $ 97,145 $ 121,935|5 695485 78,087 12.28%
Professional Salarias § 79329 § 45969 § 933185 49,148 5§ 48,687 -0.94%,
Coordinatar $ 31,270 5 30,322 $&  31,651|% 3.,871|% 32,509 2.00%
Revolving Fund Support S {15000) S {30,000} 3 - S (64,000} S {64,000} 0.00%
Stipends $ 63,060 $ 45647 & e6lLe67|s  sLzr7|s 80,178 1.35%
Contract Services s 10,589 5 1,815 & 162515  9,550| 5 18,500 93.72%
Other Student Activites | S 10,589 S 1,815 %  16251[S  9550]sS 18,500 93.72%
Supplies & Materials 5 - 5 1,665 § 147715 1,B50] 5 1,900 2.70%
Other Student Activities ] - ] - 5 - S 40015 400 0.00%
Performing Arts ] - ] 1,665 3 1,477 |8 1,450 | 8 1,500 3.45%
Other Expenses $ 8689 $ 47,695 § 10,889 5 9.000] 5 9,000 0.00%
Dues & Memberships S 80 S 675 3 g30]s 1,000] s 1,000 0.00%
Equipment $ 4952 % 35,467 S 397 | 3 3,000] 3 3,000 0.00%
Other Student Activities S 1,580 S - 5 3,125 S 2,000 s 2,000 0.00%
Royelties S 1,288 $ 10,553 § 65365 3000]S 3,000 0.00%

|m¥1f:l)lllll e

Extra-curricular Budget Drivers:
The changes hetween the FY24 recommend and FY23 appropriated budgets are summarized below by
personnel and non-personnel categories:

Personnel- Salary differences in the FY24 Recommended Budget reflects staffing exchange and the cost-of-
living salary increase in compliance with employment contracts and bargaining unit agreements approved by
the School Committee.

Non-Personnel - The Contract Services for Other Student Activities, which is the account used for
transportation expenses, has increased due to the rising student participation, number of outings planned
for students, and other opportunities for involvement offered at Reading Memorial High School. Student
participation in afterschool activities is rising in drama, band, and guard, post-Covid.

Student Participation in Extracurriculars:

I ——

[l

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 47



Health Services

FY23 Appropriated Budget: $801,949

FY24 School Committee’s Recommended Budget: 5913,224
$ Change: $111,275

% Change: 13.88%

Primary Function: The Health Services program budget pays for the salaries and expenses for servicing the
daily medical needs of the district’s student population of over 3,800 students, preschool through grade 12,
School nurses provide mandated health screenings, illness assessments, first aid, daily medication and
treatments, and support of students with chronic health issues including allergies, asthma, diabetes, and
gastrointestinal, autoimmune, and neurological disorders. We communicate with families and providers to
develop and maintain accommodation plans and individualized student health care plans to support medical
needs at school. School nurses are also part of the District Support team, which also includes school
counselors, social workers, and school psychologists. The team meets monthly to discuss best practices and
receive training and updates to support student mental health. FTEs for this Cost Center are found in
Appendix A.

Budget Detail by Health Services Cost Center:

913,224

Health Services § 705,242 ¢ 615734 S 787.064 |5 801,549 |5

Professional Salaries $ 625493 & 567411 $ 726,239 |5 746,925 | § 857,865 14.85%
Director $ 83,700 ¢ 86327 S 86433|% orom0]s 02,854 1.95%;
Nurse $ 541,793 ¢ 481,083 S 630,806 | ¢ 655,845 | 5 765,011 16.55%

Clerical Salarias $ 135589 $ 13855 § 159865 167245 17,059 2.00%
Secretary $ 13583 $ 13855 S 15936 |S 16724 |5 17,058 2.00%
Other Salaries $ 7,902 & 2492 § 3,103|$ 150005 15,000 0.00%
Substitutes S 7,902 5 2492 5 3,103|s 150005 15,000 0.00%

Contract Sarvicas s g,759 § 8OO0 & B720|$ 9000]|5 9,000 0.00%
Professional Development ] 755 § - ] 72018 LoOO|S 1,000 0.00%
schaol Physician 3 2,000 S 8000 $ 8000|% 8000|% 8,000 0.00%

Supplies & Materials $ 43912 §& 20,150 S5 130565 9500]5 9,500 0.00%
COVID19 Expenses 5 79,18% 5 1,777 S 280 | s - 5 - -
Medical $ 14,335 5 14,315 § 12,232|S 80005 9,000 0.00%
Office 3 388 S 1,058 S 544 | $ 500 | 5 500 0.00%
Other Expenses $ 5586 § 3826 & 1596035 48005 4,800 0.00%
Equipment S - S 598 & - ] - 5 - -
Medical S 5,579 § 3,228 $ 19960|S% 4805 4,800 0.00%
Postage ] 75 - ] - ] - 5 - -

5 4. | I

Health Services Budget Drivers:
The changes between the FY24 Recommend and FY23 Appropriated budgets are summarized below by
personnel and non-personnel categories:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 48



Personnel- Salary differences in the FY24 Recommended Budget reflect staffing exchange, step, degree
changes, and the cost-of-living salary increase in compliance with employment contracts and bargaining unit
agreements approved hy the School Committee. An increase in the per diem rate of substitute nurses will
be supported through the Department of Health grant. The addition of a new 1.0 FTE 1 to 1 Nurse is
recommended within the new priorities category to provide health services support to meet a student’s
medical needs.

Personnel Budget Priorities
¢ 10FTE1to 1 Nurse
#® Increase per diem substitute nurse wages

Non-Personnel - No changes have taken place.
Technology

FY23 Appropriated Budget: 5659,842

FY24 School Committee’s Recommended Budget: 668,433
$ Change: $8,591

% Change: 1.3%

Primary Function: The Districtwide Networking and Technology Maintenance budget funds the salaries and
expenses required to operate and maintain our technology infrastructure including our wide area network,
wireless networks, servers, computer hardware and peripheral devices, clocks and bells systems and
telecommunications equipment. FTEs for this Cost Center are found in Appendix A.

Budget Detail by Technology Cost Center:

Technology 603,478

¢ 595987 3 696,277 | § 659,84z | & 668,433
Professional Salaries 82,726 & 83857 S 85802|% 87215]|S 88,962 2.00%
Manager 82,726 $ 83,857 S 85802|% 87,215|% 88,962 2.00%
Other Salaries 315,912 § 321,590 5 328,109 |S5 341,777 | S 348,621 2.00%
Employee Benefits - S 1,626 § 17265 - S - -
Technician 315,912 $ 319965 S 326,383 | S 341,777 |5 348,621 2.00%
Contract Services 80,203 § 99994 §$ 152,005|% 116,750 | $ 116,750 0.00%
Consulting Services 13,273 5 27,084 S 62345|5 25000]% 25,000 0.00%
Networking & Telecomm 6,680 5 6536 S 6936|5 15000]5 15,000 0.00%
Software Licensing & Support 60,250 S 65,975 S 82,720|% 76,7505 76,750 0.00%
Supplies & Materials 5220 $ 59,706 $ 24901|% 8000|5 8,000 0.00%
Information Management 5220 5 59,706 5 24901|5S 8,000| 5 8,000 0.00%
Other Expenses 119,417 $ 30,833 $ 105,460 | $ 106,100 | $ 106,100 0.00%
Information Management - S - § 23592]% - S - -
Networking & Telecomm - S 12,198 & 22,088|S5 12,400]5S 12,400 0.00%
Other -5 - 5 2074]5% s
Postage 33 35 -5 $ s
Software 119,311 $ 18,463 $ $ 5
Software Licensing & Support 73 5 5 $ s

'IllbtiﬁiIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII!

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 49



Technology Budget Drivers:
The changes between the FY24 Recommend and FY23 Appropriated budgets are summarized below by
personnel and non-personnel budget categories:

Personnel- Salary differences in the FY24 Recommended Budget reflects staffing exchange and the cost-of-
living salary increase in compliance with employment contracts and bargaining unit agreements approved by
the School Committee.

Non-Personnel - In FY24, no major changes are anticipated in Technology. However, work will be conducted
during the year to evaluate the district’s operational and educational technology needs, including an
assessment of all technology related services and equipment including a device renewal plan. An anticipated
outcome of this work will be an Educational and Operational Technology Plan. The plan will provide
recommendations for a sustainahle computer renewal plan and staffing structure to best support the
district’s growth in and reliance on technology to deliver instruction to students and operate an efficient and
effective school district.

Since 2015, the Technology Team has built a robust network infrastructure and the services provided to the
district have expanded to include telephony and phone services, clock and bell systems, intercom and paging
systems, management of the copier fleet and contracts, iPad devices, security system hardware, over 4,500
computers {one to one for students and staff), cloud-based services, single sigh-on services, data replication
services, hybrid school, public/town meetings, new website, electronic payment options, and employee
onboarding systems, and many others. The Technology team has leveraged automation, districtwide
standards and practices, and developed a highly unified and functional team committed to hard work with
no changes to staffing level or function since 2015.

Schooel Facilities Cost Center Summanry

FY23 Appropriated Budget: 51,620,845

FY24 School Committee’s Recommended Budget: 51,644,782
$ Change: 523,937

% Change: 1.48%

Primary Function: The Town of Reading’s Facilities Department supports the Reading Public Schools. The School
Building Facilities budget funds the salaries and expenses necessary to clean and maintain our eight school buildings,
preschool program, and central office spaces, which makes up 85% of the square feet of all municipal buildings, or a
total of 935,000 square feet. The percentage of work orders created and filled for all services, including but not
limited to preventative maintenance and building repairs, for our school buildings totaled more than 2,300 in FY22,
The Facilities Department also provides the necessary services to facilitate building use for internal and external
users. FTEs for this Cost Center are found in Appendix A. The School Building Facilities budget accounts for 3.05% of
the School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget.

The Facilities” Department’s Mission Statement is:
The Facilities Department supports the Town's Educational and Municipal Government functions through the
quality driven delivery of Facilities Services in a timely and cost- effective manner along with exceptional
customer service. Facilities staff members strive to maintain an efficient, safe, clean, attractive, and inviting
environment for all public buildings associated with the Town of Reading.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 50



Budget Detail by Facilities Cost Center:

st MG irgal ; I
nded  Expeidedil ' - ﬁ'ﬂ"""ﬁﬂ“ﬂ'
" [

1 il ’ﬁlﬁ'ﬂﬁl ﬁlIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII\HHHHHHH

MMWWW

School Facilities % 1,608,219 51693091 S 1601689 |% 1,620,845 | 5 1,644,782 14&%
Professional Salaries $ 90991 & 91,274 & 95812]5 ocacl |8 98,400 2.01%
Manager $ 80591 & 91274 5 958125 864615 98,400 2.01%
Other Salaries $ 871,850 $ 969,502 $ 907232]S 1,012,776 8 1,030,501 1.75%
Custodian $ 844469 S 857459 %5 836683 |5 928602)S 943,374 1.48%
Employee Benefits 5 9,178 § 521 5 2298 5 3,600 % 3,600 0.00%
Owvertime $ 28359 $ 55343 5 75258|5 712148 72,994 2.50%
Revolving Fund Support S (80,000} S - S (80,0004 5 (BO,000Y S {30,000} 0.00%
Substitutes S ©9,844 S 55179 5 729925  89300]S 91,533 2.50%
Contract Services $ 337,600 $ 287,915 $ 3739585 386,208 % 388,200 0.77%
Cleaning Services § 337600 5 287515 5 378958 |5 3862085 389,200 0.77%
Supplies & Materials $ 282,735 $ 175,665 $ 158145]$ 1178008 11%,181 1.09%
COVID1Y Expenses $ 1810/ & 15232 % - 5 - 5 - -
Equipment 5 202 5 17,888 S5 175755 5,000] 8 5,000 0.00%
Supplies § 101458 5 143,545 5 140569 |5  11z900] % 114,181 1.13%
Other Expenses $ 25043 $ 167,735 & 61543 ]S 75008 7,500 0.00%
COVIDIS Expenses $ 15000 § -8 - 5 - 18 - -
Equipment 5 8043 S5 164,780 S5 8506725 6,300] % 6,300 0.00%
Professional Development S - 5 1,955 S - 5 - S - -
Uniforms 5 1,000 $ 1,000 3 871 s 1,200] 1,200 0.00%

k= || 11 ' Bl 4

||

Facilities Budget Drivers:
The changes between the FY24 Recommend and FY23 Appropriated budgets are summarized below by personnel
and non-personnel categories:

Personnel- Salary differences in the FY24 Recommended Budget reflects staffing exchange, step, and the cost-of-
living salary increase in compliance with employment contracts and bargaining unit agreements approved by the
School Committee.

Non-Personnel - Slight increases in cleaning supplies, paper products, floor cleaning solutions, hand seap, and plastic
liners are reflected in the FY24 budget.

Closing

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget represents a thorough and thoughtful articulation of resource
allocations achieved through an inclusive and highly collaborative process. The FY24 Recommended Budget allocates
new funding and redeploys existing fundings to address many of the district’s priorities to achieve the district’s
following three objectives:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 51



Strategic Objective 1: Supportive and Safe Learning Environment

We believe healthy and successful learning communities are a prerequisite to achieving excellence and equity in
schools. Healthy and successful learning communities exist when all members of the community, no matter where
they live, what they look like, what they believe, what language they speak, who they love, or how they learn feel
seen, valued, affirmed and connected.

Strategic Objective 2: Coherent Instructional Systems

We believe excellence and equity in schools is best achieved through high-quality instruction. High-quality instruction
is our best lever for improving outcomes for students, and in particular, groups of students who have not met with
success in our district. All students deserve challenging and engaging learning environments that promote high levels
of growth and achievement.

Strategic Objective 3: School Operations
Efficient operational systems are at the foundation of the success of our students and staff.

The FY24 recommended budget maximizes resources through the practice of refining positions, reallocating
resources (time and funds) and leveraging other sources of funding wherever possible to create an effective and
efficient budget that meets all contractual obligations and legal mandates.

Best practices in school district budgeting extends beyond setting instructional priorities and preparing a resource
plan to pay for priorities and day-to-day baseline services. Essential to the budget process is the effective
implementation of the budget. Responsive oversight of the current year’s finances allows the leadership team to
assess plans, identify new opportunities to support students early in the school year, and take responsive action
toward supporting students’ academic outcomes. As additional savings are identified, new decisions will be made to
support students during the current school year. The continued monitoring of expenditures to maximize the use of
residual savings that may take place during the fiscal year will also reduce the amount of the school department’s
“turn back” of unutilized funds to Free Cash. The graphs below reflect the amount and percentage of end year
unspent funds returned to Free Cash.

Annual School Budget () Turned Back to

Annuai School Budget (%) Turned Bacic to
Free Cash Free Cash
. 3.73%
. AT 101%
'8 RAE] FYI0 Al

18 Fyde 20

Cost and performance analysis will continue throughout the year to maximize all sources of funding In pursuit of
achieving our strategic objectives. For example, master scheduling training programs are being provided to our
schools’ principals to maximize staff allocation and manage class sizes, as well as prepare thoughtful student
groupings to ensure effective class sizes. Building the capacity of our district leadership about the instructional
structures and practices that have the greatest impact on building a sense of belonging and academic excellence.
Lately, continued efforts to examine and maximize the use of all funds, including grants and special revenue funds
will support the leadership team’s efforts to effectively and timely respond to emerging trends and support the

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 52



development of a multi-year strategic plan. The development, implementation and ongoing assessment of a multi-
year resource plan aligned with strategic objectives is foundational to ensure all resources are thoughtfully used
and sustainable over time.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 53



OTHER

"UNDING SOURCES

“Directional Forces” by juckie Cole, RMHS Student enrolied in Ms. Kathleen M. Dailey’s AP Photography Class

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget



Offset Summary

Several fee-based special revenue funds and grants have been allocated to offset direct and indirect costs of the
operating budget. In the charts below, the reader will find a summary of current year and FY24 Recommended Budget
Offsets by special revenue funds compared with FY23’s Appropriated Budget and the allocation of FY24
Recommended Offsets by Cost Center:

| “N\NNNHWNNmm im :““““N““"‘\NN““““W“W |||||||||%l||||||||||||||||||||||||||iii

fith W“ it

““ h.mhﬁ.ﬁm T ‘ il ||ﬁlﬁu "
Athletics 392,900 392,900 - 0.00%
Drama Activities RMHS 34,000 34,000 - 0.00%
Drama Activities Coolidge 15,000 15,000 - 0.00%
Drama Activities Parker 15,000 15,000 - 0.00%
Extended Day Program 50,000 50,000 - 0.00%
Full Day Kindergarten 1,100,000 600,000 | (500,000) -45.45%
R.1S.E. Preschool Program 350,000 350,000 - 0.00%
Use of School Property 105,000 105,000 - 0.00%
Special Education Tuition 50,000 50,000 - 0.00%
School Choice - 45,000 45,000 -
Total 2,111,900 1,656,900 | (455,000)] -21.54%

Adbbiiritstra tion

F¥29'Recom

I

392,900

Athletics

Drama Activities RMHS 34,000

Drama Activities Coolidge 15,000

Drama Activities Parker 15,000

Extended Day Program 25,000 25,000
Full Day Kindergarten 600,000

R.I.5.E. Preschool Program 350,000

Use of School Property 80,000 25,000
Special Education Tuition 50,000

Schocl Cheice 45,000

Total 70,000 600,000 400,000 456,900 80,000 50,000

Apart from Full-Day Kindergarten and School Choice tuition, all other offsets will remain at the same level in FY24 as
budgeted in FY23. Through the support of the Town’s Community Priority allocation and the redeployment of funding
from several existing operating fund accounts, the reliance on the FDK tuition fees has been reduced in FY24, We
will continue to work toward providing free, universal FDK by reducing the tuition in stages through FY26. In FY23,
the district opened to School Choice students to allow students who live in other school districts to enter a lottery to
attend Reading Public Schools. In FY23, ten students participated in the program generating $45,000 of state tuition
funding, which is currently budgeted to Administration to be used for allocation to Regular Day and Special Education
instructional services.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 55



Special Revenue Funas

The district maintains thirty-one separate special revenue funds that were created and are required to be maintained
in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws and Department of Revenue Division of Local Service’s guidance for
Costing Municipal Services. Special revenue funds are established to dedicate a specific source of revenue from fees
or charges to pay expenses associated with providing the services for which the payment was made. Special revenue
funds also consist of donation accounts. The sources of revenue for these funds vary by the nature of the fund and
includes sales of meals, participation fees, user fees, ticket sales, donations, and tuition. The type of expenditure for
the funds also varies by the nature of the fund and include salaries, supplies and materials, technology, contracted
services, software licenses and other expenses. The FY22 and FY23 beginning year balances are provided in the table
below with the calculated FY22 Gain/Loss:

Special Revenue Funds

“‘“N‘“““““““““‘“N‘“N‘“N‘“““““““““‘“N‘“N‘“N‘““““““‘“N‘“N‘“N‘“““““““““‘“N‘“N‘“N‘“““““““““‘“N‘“N‘“N‘““““““‘“N‘“N‘“N‘“N‘““““““““““““““““N \\HH|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||\\\H\\\\H\\\\HH\\HH\\\||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||
-0 o

Athletlcs $ 187,133 | % 171,525| % (15,608)
Community Education -Drivers Education and Adult Education ] 85,214 | 5 94,027 | & 8,813
Community Education - Summer Programs 5 37,834 | 5 39,974 | 5 2,140
Drama Activities Coolidge 5 31,107 | S 38,355 (S 7,248
Drama Activities Parker 5 40,378 | 51,229 | 5 10,851
Drama Activities RMHS 5 60,706 | 5 74,113 | S 13,407
Extended Day Program S 156,766 | & 541,177 | § 384,411
After School Activities Parker S 59,989 | § 68,330 S 8,341
Extracurricular Parker S 3,860 | S 3,850 | § -

Extracurricular Coolidge S 4738 | S 4738 | % -

Extracurricular Band Activities 5 35735 | 5 30,704 | & (5,031)
Guidance Testing s 6,675 | S 10,397 | 5 3,722
Full Day Kindergarten Tuition S 621,284 | § 621,319 | & 35
RISE Preschool Program S 255457 | & 235065 | & (20,392)
Special Education Tuition $ 66,899 | § 66,892 | $ -

School Lunch Program S 769,302 |5 1,427,218| § 657,916
School Transportation 5 - 5 (100)| 5 {100
Use of School Property S 111,206 | 92,247 | & (18,959)
Lost Books 5 27,206 | S 27,902 | & 696
TOTAL Fee-based Revolving Funds S 2,561,489 | $ 3,598,979] $1,037490

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 56



i

) W“ JA

’ IIﬂ i Imﬁlﬂﬂ IIIH
Dlstrlct Donation Fund 5 14,031 | § 14,031 ] & -
Barrows Donations Fund 5 86211 5 26215 -
Birch Meadow Donation Fund S 6,836 | S 6,836 | § -
Joshua Eaton Donation Fund 5 2,506 | § 2,506 | § -
JW Killam Donation Fund 5 20,206 | § 20,206 | & -
Wood End Donation Fund S 5,336 | S 5,336 | S -
Coolidge Donation Fund 5 11,107 | § 11,107 | & -
Parker Donation Fund ] 9,092 1| & 9,002 | 5 -
High School Donation Fund S 13,754 | § 13,754 | § -
SEPAC Denation Fund 5 551 8 551 ] % -
Special Education Donation Fund ) 319 | § 319 | & -
TOTAL Gift/Donation Revolving Funds S 92359 | $ 92,359 | S -

A description of each category of the district’s special revenue funds is outlined below:

Athletics - Fees are paid by families for students’ participation in athletics.

Community Education, Drivers Education, Summer Programs— Fees are paid by families for students to
participate in drivers’ education and summer programs. Fees paid by individuals for participation in
Community Education events and courses.

Drama and Band — Fees are paid by families for students’ participation in after school drama and bands
programs,

Extended Day — Fees are paid by families for students to participate in extended day programs before and
after-school.

Extracurricular Activities — Fees are paid by families for students to participate in afterschool band and fine
and performing arts activities.

Guidance — Fees are paid by families for students to take PSAT, SAT and AP tests.

Full-Day Kindergarten — Fees are paid by families for enrollment in the Full-Day Kindergarten program.
R.L.S.E. Preschool - Fees are paid by families for enrollment in the R.1.5.E. preschool program.

Special Education Tuition — Fees paid by another public school district for students to attend special
education programs in Reading.

School Lunch — Revenues are generated through state and federal reimbursements and lunch-time a la carte
sales.

Transportation — Fees are paid by families for students to ride existing bus routes, based on seats available.
Use of School Property — Some community organizations which use school facilities pay a fee for space and/or
custodial coverage.

Lost Books — Fees are collected and used to replace lost or damaged books.

Gifts/Donations — Restricted donations for specific purposes and unrestricted donations for general use are
made to the School Committee for approval and acceptance in accordance with School Committee Policy

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 57



Federal and State Grants

In addition to the operating and special revenue funds, our district is supported in FY23 by state, federal, and private
grants. Grant expenditures are tracked monthly and reviewed periodically with grant coordinators. A list of the
grants, descriptions, and award amounts are provided helow compared with prior year awards. Grants are approved
by the School Committee as funding is awarded. The FY23 Quarter 1 balances for each grant awarded between FY20
and FY23 are provided in the table below:

AR RRIOANRRIANRNN | W
it

Beginning FY230Q1 |FY23 Projected| Beginning FY2301 Pr?ezje d Beginning FY23Ql FY23 FY23 Amount of F¥23Q1 FY23 p":_v::e y
Grant FY23 Year | Expended & End Year FY23 Year | Expended & o FY23 Year | Expended & | Remaini Projected End Expended | Remaining "
End Year ) FY23 Award . End Year
Balance Encumb. Balance Balance Encumb. Bajance Encumb. | Requirement | Year Balance & Encumb. | Requirement
Balance Bafance
STATE
METCO 5 -1 s -1 s | S 238005| 5 923365 145669 8 0|$ 8156995 47535 810946 s
Dept. of Public s aomnol s s ango0| s
Health
TOTAL STATE $ - $ - $ 233,005 3 0|S 855,699 S -
u FY23 P F_\‘B ¢
FEDERAL Kiltam, Eatont Parker nspent Parker, Eaton Projected End Parker, Killam, Eaton rojecte
‘Furned back End Year
Year Balance
Bajance
Title | S 21764 % 13521 5 -5 75320|5 4,250 5 71070) S 95672| 5 -1 s 95,672| % 0|5 91583 35 -8 91,584 %
Title 1l S 1,661] % 1661 § -l s 298355 17344 % 12,191 S 43,785 & 42,400 ¢ 1,365 & -1$ 45040 S -1s 45,040 S
Title IV 5 601) 5 601| $ -135 1,121[ 5 1,121] 5 -5 10000) % 1,618| 5 8,382 5 5 loooo| s -1 5 10,000| 5
IDEA 240 $  ansoz| S -1s -1s 1,895( % 1,895 § s 982238 19471]$ 78,752 § $ 1,112,484 |3 70656| 5 1041828( 8
|DEA 262 5 -1 s 5 -1 s - $ -1s 328] § 328( & -1 & $ 20718(% 16255 19,003 | § -
ARP 252 $ 161,187 5 1,490 5  139,748| 5
ARP 254 $ 19,824| S 5173 § 13,651| §
ESSER Il S 233305| 5 284535 204,83 & -
ESSER III S5 560,088| 5 9481|355  278162| 5 252,455
ACCEL MATH S 119,748| 5 119,748| § -8 -
TOTALFEDERAL | $ 64,628 ] - | % 107,371 § 83,261 51,342,150 $ 252,455 | § 1,279,826 ]

Descriptions and acceptable uses of each State and Federal grant follows below:
State Grants:

& METCO —the Metropolitan Council for Educational Opportunity is a state funded, voluntary educational
desegregation program designed to eliminate racial imbalance through the busing of children from Boston,
MA and Springfield, MA to suburban public schools in thirty-eight communities. These funds pay for program
coordination, transportation, instructional services, and community engagement related to Boston resident
students attending Reading Public Schools through participation in the METCO program.

® Department of Public Health — provides for mandated screenings, professional development, and substitute
coverage for nurses.

® Note —although not o gront, DESE reimburses school districts for a portion of out of district tuition plocement
and transportation costs. In FY 24, DESE will defray §1,581,286 tuition and transportation costs, charging
those expenses directly to the Circuit Breaker reimbursement fund.

Federal Grants:

e Title I - assists schools with high numbers or high percentages of children from low-income families to help
ensure that all children meet challenging state academic standards. These funds are allocated to
paraprofessional and extended school year instructional services.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 58



o Title Il A - provides supplemental resources to school districts to support systems of support for excellent
teaching and learning. The priorities of Title IlA are to: increase student achievement consistent with the
challenging State academic standards; improve the quality and effectiveness of teachers, principals, and
other school leaders; Increase the number of teachers, principals, and other school leaders who are effective
in improving student academic achievement in schools; and provide low-income and minority students
greater access to effective teachers, principals, and other school leaders. These funds are allocated to provide
professional development for teachers.

e Title IV - ensures that all students have access to a high-quality educational experience. The priorities of Title
IV are to: support well-rounded educational opportunities; support safe and healthy students; and support
effective use of technology. These funds pay for technology integration activities and materials for teachers
and classrooms.

# IDEA 240- provides appropriate special education services for eligible students and to maintain state/local
effort in special education. These funds pay for special education paras, BCBA, and professional
development.

® |DEA 262 - ensures that eligible 3, 4, and 5-year-old children with disabilities receive a free and appropriate
public education that includes special education and related services designed to meet their individual needs
in the least restrictive environment. These funds pay for early childhood instruction and professional
development.

® ARP 252 — addresses challenges related to the pandemic, including school re-entry, disruption in the
education of children with disahbilities, mental health services; sustainability; focuses on issues of equity in
special education and early intervention services. Funds are allocated to provide professional development,
instructional materials, and testing/assessment materials.

® ARP 264 - addresses early childhood special education and family engagement, such as improving systems to
assist with the transition from early intervention to pre-kindergarten to kindergarten to increase educational
outcomes for students. Funds from this grant are allocated to fund student assessment, induction, and
transition programs.’

® ESSER Il - addresses learning loss and provides mental health services and support. These funds are allocated
to pay for special education teachers, adjustment counselors and tutors and social-emotional curriculum.

® ESSER Il - helps schools safely reopen and respond to the academic, social, emotional, and mental health
needs of all students, particularly those disproportionately impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. These funds
are allocated to pay for team leaders, special education teachers, adjustment counselors and tutors.

® Accelerated Math - professional development for K-2 math implementation, print rescurces for those grade
levels, 1-year digital access for K-2, additional PD for year 2 supports, and additional teacher manual copies
to ensure all staff (special education included) have access to the curriculum resources.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 59



Five-Year Capital Plan

A Capital Project is a project that helps maintain or improve a Town asset. It is a new construction, expansion,
renovation, or replacement project for an existing facility or facilities. Typically, the project will have a total cost of
at least 510,000 and a life span of five or more years. Provided below is a five-year capital project plan for the school

district:

G4, GOEE Gpi

Request School Description FY 24 FY 25 FY26 FY 27 FY 28
Arc Flash Hazard Study District Wide Safety Assessment of Electrical Equipment 163,000 - - - -
Daors/Windows Districtwide Replacement/Repair of Doors/Windows - 25,000 40,000 40,000 -
Carpet/Flooting Districtwide Replacement of Carpeting/Repair of Floor - 66,000 60,000 - -
Alarm Panels Coolidge Replacement Alarm Panel - - 70,000 - -
Playground Surfaces RISE Preschoc! Replacement of RISE Playground - - 140,000 - -
Floor/Track RMHS Field House Replace Field House Floor and Bleachers 1,700,000

Total CORE 162,000 91,000 310,000 1,740,000 B

Request School Description FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28
Phones Districtwide Annual Repairs, Replacements As Needed 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Network Districtwide Annual upgrades to Network As Needed 100,000 100,000 125,000 125,000 125,000
Vehicles Drivers Ed and Food Services Vehicle Replacements - - 33,500 52,000 -
Security Districtwide Card Readers & Vehicle Barriers £5,000 - - - 475,000
Total SCHOOL 175,000 110,000 168,500 187,000 610,000
GRAND TOTAL 338,000 201,000 478,500 1,927,000 610,000
The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 60



[

“Delicate Pigeons” by Mina Willander, RMHS Student enrolfed in Ms. Kathleen M. Dailey’s AP Photography Class

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget

61



APPENDIX A: Student Enrsllment ang Staff FTEs

Student Fnrcliment

On October 1 of each year, Reading Public Schools are required to record, verify, and report the total number of
students enrolled by grade to the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE). DESE
and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts use October 1 enrollment to calculate Foundation Enrollment and Chapter
70 Funding. October 1 enrollment is also used by the district’s administration to project class sizes and to identify
trends in enrollment for subsequent years, which forms the baseline upon which the district’s personnel and non-
personnel operating budget is developed. The historical enrollment by school follows below with next year’s
projected enrollment:

Historical and FY24 Projected Enrollment by School:

A B

- ‘ ple} v
e 1 (e

A ice Barrows Elementary
Birch Meadow Elernentary 384 387 387 383

Jashua Eaton Elern entary 455 471 452 428
). Warren Killam Elementary 463 440 460 427
Wood End 338 335 316 319
A, Coolidge Middle 443 476 471 466
Walter S. Parker Middle 564 593 549 572

Rezding fdeniorial High
E Preschoal

104
s+

MIEE 3334

Total enroliment in the Reading Public Schools on October 1, 2022, was 3,851 students, which is .13% higher FY22.
Using the Cohort Survival Methodology and based on elementary neighborhood school assignments, projected
enrollment for FY24 is 3,808 students, which represents a projected decrease of (43) students or (1/12%) districtwide.

FY24 Enrollment Projections by School and Grade:

Reflected in the table below are FY23 actual enrollment and FY24 projected, or forecasted, enrollment by grade.
The change in the number of students by cohort and grade-level is illustrated. Cohorts have been color-coded for
easier reference:

FY23 Actual and FY24 Projected Enrollment by Grade:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 62



T ZE
I I T

RISE Preschogl

# Change FY24 v. FY23

In the table helow, historical enrollmentis illustrated from 2009-2010 through to enrollment projected for the 2023-
2024 school year. The reader can follow the migration of the number of students each year as students move through
the grade levels. Enroliment declines between the middle to high school transition, which is a trend worth exploring:

Historical Enrollment Migration by Grade:

R S Y
A e : 304
366 33 i ERREEC AR

355 326 Jlliser

Y] t
253 3216

fl
0
i
12 5
0
i
0
0

! 301 P e S

i e 132 bt ﬁ’&ef §§
inmimi 152 135 e
il 254 p=t]

gl

.-"s'&'g i
i gf 305 285 252
il § §

A three-year Cohort Survival Ratio (CSR) is the methodology used to develop enrollment projections for the Reading
Public Schools and is based on progression rates from grade to grade considering the number of live births, migration
in and out of the district, student retention and housing turnover over the three prior school years.

The CSR uses progression rates and considers housing growth, migration, retention, withdrawals, transfers, and
births over the three previous school years and produces reliable next year projections for enrollments in Grades 1-
12. However, the CSR is less reliable in predicting out-year enrollment as well as kindergarten enrollment. The CSR

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 63



aligns students enrolled in Barrows and loshua Eaton are assigned to Parker Middle School and students enrolled in
Birch, and Wood End are assigned to Coolidge Middle Schools. Students enrolled in Killam elementary schools are
typically allocated to both middle schools using a ratio of 66% Parker and 33% Coolidge for projection purposes.
These ratios were adjusted slightly for FY24 upon a closer look at fifth grade students enrolled at Killam, their sibling
group and the neighborhood districts where they reside.

Elementary Enroliment Projections:

Kindergarten enrollment forecasts are less reliable and are affected hy several factors including postponed
kindergarten enrollment, attendance at private full-day kindergarten programs, adoption, and housing turnover.
There are several sources of data used as the basis for predicting kindergarten enrollment including census data from
the Town Clerk, birth data from five years before kindergarten enrollment, and self-reported data from parents and
local preschools. For FY24 projections, Reading has used a three-year average of the birth-to-kindergarten ratio. This
method relies on census data from these sources, adjusted for postponements and retentions. Kindergarten
enrollment projections are further refined during the year based on self-reported data from parents and local
preschools. The district’s Special Education Department collects information from local preschools and parents of
age-eligible children for kindergarten enrollment. Final kindergarten projections are made once kindergarten
registration begins in the spring. The Town’s census data identified 284 students who fall within the age
requirements for entry into kindergarten compared to the kindergarten projection of 276 students. Not all students
who reside in Reading and who are of age will he enrolled in Reading Public Schools. Some families may choose
private or parochial programs, homeschool, or postpone entry. Other families with kindergarten age children may
move to Reading. Last year kindergarten enrollment equaled the number of kindergarten-aged students reported in
the Census data. Given our experience, kindergarten projections may be slightly low.

Enrcllment projections have been used to develop the next year’s budgets for staffing, learning spaces and non-
personnel supplies and services. Staffing levels at all grade levels are predicated upon the number and demographics
of students expected to be enrolled at the start of the school year. Using the progression rates calculated above and
making anticipated changes, elementary school class sizes have been projected for FY24 and are outlined below in
comparison with FY23 actual enroliment and class sizes. At Wood End, three third grade sections in FY23 have heen
consolidated into two sections in FY24, guided by the class size thresholds. It is important to note that three Teaching
Fellows remain in the budget to support elementary school class sizes:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 64



Reading Fubstic schoals Odtober &, 2022 EnvEiment
Elementary €lass Size Actuals Z0Z2-2023
Projected 2023-2024

Actual Class Bize, 2022 Peojected €lass

FoK 17 18 18 20 2 24 FDK 19 15 19 18 0 )
FOK 18 19 18 20 2 2z FDK 19 13 ) 18 2 2L
FOK 18 20 18 2t 20 21 FOH w 20 0 i u 2
# Sections 3 3 3 E} 3 E} 18 # Sections 3 3 3 E} E) 3 18
Total 53 58 55 61 62 67 a6 Total 58 sg 59 55 62 62 354
S s dhes DN i padosdn Tl Bt R G e o g A TIH i
EDK 19 18 17 19 18 19 FDK 20 21 18 17 15 19
EDK 20 18 17 13 20 20 FDK 20 21 18 17 19 20
FOK 19 18 18 20 0 18 FDK 21 2 18 12 19 18
20 20

# Secuions E) 3 3 4 E) El 15 # Secuions 3 2 El E 4 El 19

Total 58 55 52 78 58 57 asg Total 51 B4 54 52 7 57 365
JowiraE e

HDHK HDHK

FOK 20 21 20 23 24 # FO 21 21 n ey B 4

EDK 21 21 20 23 24 2 FDK 21 21 ol 20 M 2%

EDK 21 20 20 24 24 22 FDK 21 0 ol 20 1 )

# Secripns 3 El 3 El 3 E 18 # Secnions 3 3 El E] 3 El 18
Total 82 62 60 70 72 ) 250 Total 53 62 £3 Bl ) T2 396
[—

...
HDK 11 19 18 19 24 21 HDHK 11 an 13 18 18 23
FOK 17 18 18 13 24 22 FOH 18 a1 19 i 18 24
FOK 17 15 18 13 23 # FO 18 21 19 1% 18 4
FOK 17 20 0 FDK 13 18 15

# Sections 4 . Ej 4 3 3 21 # Sections 4 ES 4 Ef 4 El 21

Total 62 37 54 77 71 64 205 Total 58 £2 76 56 7 7 A06
it e -3 i Heim  Toit: Woodlind @ il g . e

FCK 17 22 14 17 24 20 FDK 14 18 22 15 pE] 23

FoK 17 22 16 16 24 ) FOK 14 15 L] 5 P 4

FOK 18 FOH

# Sections 2 2 2 3 2 2 13 # Sections E z 2 2 2 2 1z
Total 3 a4 ] 49 48 1 246 Total 28 a7 45 ETY 47 a7 234

T P — . - R
Ml s S wide TGE - : : . _am

38| [Total Sectlons 15 14 18 14 16 14 a8
1755| [Total Studemts 276 283 297 253 337 a9 1785

Total Sectlong 15
Total Studenty 284

The Reading Public Schools provides special education services to eligible students aged three to twenty-two years
deemed eligible through the special education team evaluation process. Eligibility is based on a determination that
the student has a qualified disability that will limit the student’s ability to achieve effective progress in the general
education program without specialized instruction. Instructional or other accommodations are outlined in the
student’s Individual Education Program (IEP). The table below shows historical data regarding the number of
students with IEPs based on October 1 enrollment data:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 65



Student Enroliment — Students with Individual Education Plans:

2013-14 4,432 767 17.31% 50
2014-15 4,407 809 18.36% 61
2015-16 4,394 791 18.00% 64
2016-17 4,377 727 16.61% 53
2017-18 4,275 724 16.94% 69
2018-19 4,270 752 17.61% a2
2019-20 4,202 727 17.30% 51
2020-21 4,000 711 17.78% 49
2021-22 3,846 682 17.73% 54
2022-23 3,851 061 17.16% 52

The Commonwealth mandates that special services required for students are defined on individual education plans.
Eligihility for special education services is based on a determination that the student has a qualified disability that
requires specialized instruction to achieve effective progress in the general education programs. Instructional or
other accommodations are defined in the students’ Individual Education Plan. The number of students on IEPs can
vary significantly from year to year. The table above illustrates the ehb and flow of the number of students who
received special education service in and out of the district, from preschool to 22 years of age during the last ten
years. From the academic year 2014 to 2023, total enrollment declined by {13%), the number of students on IEPs
declined by (14%) and the number of out of district placements declined by {4%). The number of students on IEPs in
the current academic year declined by (21) students, or (3%) over the last school year, and the number of students
receiving services in out of district placements decreased by (2) students in the last year. lllustrated in the table
above, the reader will note an increase in Out of District placements between FY21 and FY22, which was driven by a
significant increase in social emotional and behavioral needs that intensified during Covid closure. However, during
the prior year, between FY19 and FY20, the district experienced a decrease of (9) students enrolled in placements. A
similar decrease in out of district enroliment will take place between FY23 and FY24. We expected a decrease of {(9)
students to withdraw from placements for several reasons which includes leaving the Reading Public School district,
graduating from and aging out of placements, changing placements, or returning to the district. The district has
budgeted for seven additional students pending evaluation of progress and student needs.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 66



October 1, 2022, Student Enroliment — Multi-language Learners:

Multi-Language Learner Enroliment

Preschool 2 2

K 2 1 4 1 8

1 1 3 3 1 8

2 1 1 2

3 2 2 5 9

4 1 1 1 3

5 2 1 2 1 6

6 1 2 3

7 2 2

8 2 2

9 3 3

10 4 4

11 2 2
12

Total 2 4 4 9 16 3 1 6 9 54

October 1, 2022, Student Enrollment — Boston Resident Students

Boston Resident Enrcllment

PK
K 1 1
1 1 1
2 2 1 1 1 5
3 1 3 1 2 3 10
4 1 2 6 1 1 11
5 2 4 1 2 9
6 2 7 9
7 5 9
8 4 11 15
9 14 14
10 7 7
11 8 8
12 2 2
Total 4 11 8 6 8 10 23 31 101

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget



Staff FTEs

Provided in the section that follows are the annual district and school staffing reports, referred to as EPIMS. These
staffing data are required to be collected, verified, and reported to the Department of Elementary and Secondary
Education annually in October, which corresponds to the October 1 enrcliment report. The EPIMS report is a
comprehensive staff report by FTE of all positions in the Reading Public Schools except for service, operations, and
maintenance staff.

The EPIMS reports for FY22 and FY23 follow on the pages below. The first table reflects District Administration. The
subsequent tables provide total instructional staff FTEs by category of position:

EPIMS Instructional Staffing FTEs:

XEA G A% Y KT RN A b Y

EBUEATION

EPIMS Full Time Equivalent (FTE) by Job Classificaton for OCT 2022 (FY2023)

District 024460004 - Reading
Schook: 0000000 - District Toksl

Adwinistretors Curent FTE Previous Period's # Chanpe % Change

1248 Superintendent of SchoalsfC harer Schoal Leadey £ allaburative Directar .00 1.30 {043 0.0
1201 Agsistanthssociatel Vice Superintendenis 200 2,30 {rgHE 0.0¢
1202 School Businass O #cai 180 1.80 il .ot
12043 Other Bistrict Wide Administrators 1.80 1.60 {.04 n.o¢
1248 Human Hesources Dirsctor 1.00 1.80 ilH 0.0
1210 SupervisanUirecter of xuidance G40 &40 Q.03 0%
1211 SupervisanCirectsr ofPupil Perzonnal 0.00 i {043 0.0
1212 Specisi Educafion Admiristraior 1,08 1.30 i 0.0%
1213 SupervisanbirectenCoardinainr Ards 040 {40 0.8 060
1214 SugervisonbirectenCoordinator of Assessment 0.80 4.50 {04 0.04
1215 SuperasanbirectenC oardinater »f Curnculum 2.00 1.80 1.0¢ 1 Q0L00
1216 SupervisanUirecterCoordinator. English Language Leamer &G &30 2410 133.3%
1217 SupervisanCirectsnC oamdinaor: English 0.40 40 {043 0.0
1218 SupervisonDirectsnCoortinator: Fereign Lancuage 040 .40 i 0.0%
12178 SupervisonbirectenCoartingior: Histarw'Social Studies .40 .40 a.en n.oe
1220 SupervisonDirectenCoardinator: Librangehl edia 0.8 &.50 {.043 n.oe
1221 SupervisanDirectanCoardinator Mathematios 0.40 0,40 1.6 0.08
1222 SupervisanUirecterCoordinator Reading G0 &R0 Q.03 0%
1223 SupervisanCirectsnC oamdingtor Science 0.80 &30 {043 0.0
122¢ SugervisonDirectsnC oortinator: Technology 800 .30 i 0.0%
1225 SupervisanbirectenCoardinatnr of Prfessional Developmeant o.ag {180 0.8 060
1226 Gohool Nurse Leader 020 020 {.04 n.o¢
1345 PrncipalHeadmaster™™ eadmistress’d ead of Schogl 5.00 2.80 .28 2.30
1310 DepubyAssocatevice/Assistance Princpal -85 4.50 1.0% 21,48
1312 Schaoi Spectal Education sesminisirator 1010 1470 -{61 -5.60
1328 Other School Administratop'C oortinaior 800 .30 i 0.0%

Total Administrators 38.45] 36.40 205 B0
12058 SupervisonDirecter of CWTE 0.0z 0.50 {.04 n.o¢

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 68



EPIMS Instructional Staffing FTEs, continued:

Inetructional Siaff Cumrem FTE Previous Period's & Change o Change
FTE
2305 Teacher 237 08 232 42 4 64 zan
238 Co-Teachers 23.0% 22 50 0.58 28t
2347 Mirtual Teacher 0.08 4.40 0.00 o
2308 Mirual Co Teachar 0.0 iE1] 0.04 13143
230 Teacher--support contert insin ction 58689 6181 -2 22 =380
2325 Long Termn Subsditiis Teachsr 5.08 Bo0 ~3. 00 -37.58
2305, 2308, 2307, 2308, 2318, 2325 by Program Ama: General Ed. 25865 25872 £0.04 008
2505, 2368, 2307, 2308, 2310, 2325 by Program Amea: Spedal Ed B3 18 Ak {11 085 -1.38
2305, 2306, 2207, 2208, 2318, 2225 by Pragram Area: EELL 3.08 e 11} 0.5 42 80
2305, 2308, 2207, 2208, 2318, 2225 by Pragram Area: CWTE 003 aan 064 can
2330 finsiructional Coach 0.08 a.40 0.00 0.ae
Total Instructonat Statf] s24.54] 124,83 .02 0.00|
Inetructiona Sugpport Staff Cument FTE Pressious Period’s, # Change % Chanpe
FTE
3323 Tutor 1222 1238 .14 =118
332¢ Educational Interpreters 0.08 .40 0.00 g.qe
3325 Diagnosticand Ewaluation Stafi o.ve 4.40 0.7¢ 120.0%
3326 Recreation and Therapsuiic Recreation Specialists 1813 i 0 0.064 oae
3327 Rehabilitaiien Counselar 0.0 .40 000 g
3328 Work Study Coorlinator 0.08 .40 0.00 g0
3328 Guidance Counselor 8.88 &80 0.00 g.qe
3330 Librarans amf Medis Center Direciors. Ftid 775 0.85 0&2
3331 School Resource Dfficer 0.0 .40 000 g
3332 Family Engagement Coardinaior o.08 .40 0.04 g0
3248 Junior ROTC instructor 0.08 4.40 0.00 g.qe
Total structional Support Sat 27.32] 3671 0.6% 2.30)
Insfnactional Support and Special Educakion Staned Staff Cument FEE Previons Period's. & Changes % Change
FTE
3350 Schaol Adjustment Counselor -- Mon-Speciai Education £8.9% 350 5. G 128.20
3351 School Adjustmeni Counselor -- Special Education - - - -
3360 School Peychalogist — Noan-Special £ ducation 1163 1040 1.80 15.04%
3361 Schaol Psychalogist — Speciai Education 1.0 1.40 - -
3370 Schaol Social Waerker — Non-Special Education - - - -
3371 School Secial Worker — Special Education 5.08 340 204 §8.7¢%
ToG! Instructional Sepportand Hon Special £ ducation S| 20.50] 1390 5601 47.54|
Total Instructional § uppart and Special £ ducation St 6.0 4,0 200 5000
Total instrucionat Support and Special and Non-Special Education Shared Sutf] 26.50] 17 860 4804
Paraprofessional Cumem FTE Previons Period's. ¥ Changs o Changpe
FTE
401 Title | 111 .85 0.28 3085
432 English Language Learmer ELL} 0.0 340 0.04 6.3
4053 Carser and Wocational Tachnical E ducation (CWTE ¥ G.0% .40 0.0 G.ae
A4 Spacigl Education g5.8 24,599 0.20 .25
405 Other 21.0% 21.81 -0.81 -3.7%
\ Humber of instructional paraprofessionals who work in tametes sesietance or| 26.97] 1944 753 38.70|
406 M ondrstctional 4.08 4559 .43 -5.8%
\ Total Paraprofessional Statf] 14466 11264 0.8 4T
Special Educetion Related Stalf Cument FEE Previons Period’s & Chinmge % Change
FTE
3411 Audiclogist - - - -
3421 Oceupational Therapist 3.5 250 - -
3431 Physical Therapist 168 180 - -
3441 Crientation and Mobility Instruclor (Penpatologist} - - - -
3451 Specch Pathekgist 10.43 10.40 - -
3481 Other Related Special Educatien Staff 2.88 288 i1.C0y (2550
Total Special Educetion Refated Stat] 1E.36] 10.26] (1091 (5.2
The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 69



EPIMS Instructional Staffing FTEs, continued:

Medicall f Health Semices Curmemt FTE Previcus Period's # Change ‘% Chanpe:
FTE
5010 Phyeician 00 0.0 0.0 G.04
5015 Psychiatrist [iAr] 0.0% 0.0% G.04
5020 School Murze — Nan-Special Education %.30 9.8 0.4 C.00
21 Gchool Muse — Spedal Education G.00 0.0 008 g.0u
Tatalg Medical | Heslth Services w.89| .60 000 200
Offiee { Clefcal ! Admmimstrative Support Current FTE Previous Period's # Change b Chanpge:
FIE
§100  Administrative Aldes 760 8.08 1.00 16.74
§110  Administrative Clarks and Secretaries 16.50 10.5% 0.00 0.00
§120 Special Education Adminisiretive Aldes 131314 0.0% 0.06 G.00
§130 Special Education Administrative Clerks and Secretaries .80 1.0% iR1]13 G.0u
8140  inforrnation Services. & Technical Suppart 10.40 10.48 0.0 0.aa
G150 Othar Administraites S upport Personnel 1.80 0.0 1.08 160.00
Totaks OfFive ! Cletical | Administrative Support zﬁm| 27.9ﬂ| 200 7.2

District FTES associated with categories of staff not reflected in the RIMS Report are outlined in the table helow:

2 | T

i

Central Office 1150 11.90¢ 1340 14.00 14.00
Superintendent 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Assistant Superintendents 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.C0
Special Education Directar 0.50 C.50 1.00 1.00 1.00
Director Finance and Operations 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Human Resources Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Administrative Assistants 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Human Resources/Payroll Specialists 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Business Analyst 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Accounts Payable/Receivable Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Data Specialist 0.40 C.40 0.40 1.00 1.c0

Athletics 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
Assistant Principals 0.50 0.5¢ 0.50 0.5C¢ 0.50
Secretary 1.00 1.00 1.CO 1.00 1.00

[Extracurricular 0.50 .50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Assistant Principals 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 .50

[District Technology 6.20 6.20 6.20 6.20 6.20

Computer Technician 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.5C 5.50
District Administrator 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 G.70

School Facilities 18.50 19.50 19.50 19.50 19.50

Custodian 1850 185C 1850 18.50 18.50
District Administrator 1.Co 1.0¢ 1.co 1.0¢ 1.00
Grand T T 39 3 AeE a1.8

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget

70



APPENDIX B: District Qrganizational Structure

Town of Reading

The Town of Reading is in Middlesex County, Massachusetts, United States, some 10 miles (16 km) north of central
Boston. Reading was incorporated on June 10, 1644, taking its name from the town of Reading in England. Reading
encompasses 9.9 square miles and is located North of Boston with easy access to major routes including 125/1-95,
193 and routes 28 and 129. In addition, commuter rail and bus service are available in Reading. The Town of Reading
has a Representative Town Meeting form of government. Town Meeting is composed of 24 members from each of
Reading’s eight precincts for a total of 192 members. Reading also has a five member Select Board and a Town
Manager.

There are eight schools in the Reading Public Schools: Reading Memorial High School {grades 9-12), A.W. Coolidge
Middle School (grades 6-8), W.S. Parker Middle School {grades 6-8), and five elementary schools (grades K-5): Alice
Barrows, Birch Meadow, Joshua Eaton, J.W. Killam, and Wood End. Reading also has the R.1.S.E. Preschool program,
an integrated preschool, with classrooms located at Reading Memorial High School as well as in two elementary
schools, which typically changes from year to year depending upon availability of space.

District Leadership

School Committee
The role of the School Committee is to recruit, hire, evaluate, and make employment decisions on the
Superintendent; review and approve budgets for public education in the district; and establish educational goals and
policies for the schools in the district consistent with the requirements of law and statewide goals and standards
established by the Massachusetts Board of Education.
The Reading School Committee consists of six members elected by the voters of Reading for three-year terms. Each
year, two members’ terms of office expire and become open for re-election. The current membership and terms of
the Reading School Committee are as follows:
Shawn Brandt, Chairperson, Term Expires 2024
Carla Nazzaro, Vice Chairperson, Term Expires 2023
Erin Gaffen, School Committee Member, Term Expires 2023
Sarah McLaughlin, School Committee Member, Term Expires 2024
Charles Robinson, School Committee Member, Term Expires 2025
Thomas Wise, School Committee Member, Term Expires 2025
Under Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 70, the School Committee has the power to select and to terminate the
Superintendent, review and approve the budget, and establish the educational goals and paolicies for the schools in

the district consistent with the requirements of law and statewide goals and standards established by the Board of
Education.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 71



District Administration

The district is led by the Superintendent of Schools, the Central Office Leadership Team, District Leadership Team,
and Administrative Council. The Central Office Leadership Team includes the Superintendent of Schools, Assistant
Superintendent for Learning and Teaching, Assistant Superintendent for Special Education and Student Services, and
Directors of Human Resources Director and Finance and Operations. The District Leadership Team includes the
Central Office Leadership Team, the eight building principals, the R.I.S.E. Preschool Director, and the Assistant
Director for Special Education and Department Directors (Facilities, Food Services, Network Administrator, METCO,
and Health Services). The Administrative Council includes the District Leadership Team as well as all Assistant
Principals, Special Education Team Chairs and Program Directors.

Primary Function roles of the Administration Cost Center are described below:
Superintendent

The Superintendent of Schools serves as the chief educational leader for the school district. This position works with
the School Committee as well as with building administrators and Central Office administrators to develop the
district’s improvement plan, strategic goals, and objectives, to recommend a budget necessary to fund the districts
and schools’ strategic initiatives, and to ensure that funding is used to ensure the success of all students. The
Superintendent supervises and evaluates all Central Office Administrators and Building Principals. In addition, the
Superintendent co-supervises the Director of Facilities with the Town Manager.

Assistant Superintendents

The role of the Assistant Superintendent for Learning and Teaching and Assistant Superintendent of Student Services
is to provide leadership to district administrators, teacher leaders, teachers, and support staff in curriculum,
instruction, and assessment. The Assistant Superintendent for Learning and Teaching also supervises the Director of
Adult and Community Education, the Director of METCO, K-8 Curriculum Coordinators, and the Elementary
Technology Integration Specialist. The position is also responsible for coordinating the district’s professional
development and curriculum planning activities. The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education and Student
Services supervises the Directors of Special Education, R.1.5.E. Preschool program, Health Services, and the district’s
Team Chairs.

Human Resources Director

The Director of Human Resources oversees the functional area responsible for the recruitment and hiring of staff;
monitoring compliance with personnel laws, regulations, policies, and procedures; ensuring compliance with
collective bargaining terms and conditions; managing all Federal, State, and contractual leaves and personnel
accommodations and complying with federal and state reporting requirements. A key function of this department
has been the oversight and monitoring of all leaves of absence as defined by Federal law and collective bargaining
agreements.

Finance and Operations Director

The Director of Finance and Operations leads the school finance and operations, including budget, financial reporting,
payroll, accounts payable, accounts receivable, transportation, grants management, Medicaid reimbursement, and
purchasing/procurement, collaborates closely with school facilities and oversees network technology, school

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 72



nutrition, and use of school property. The Director of Finance and Operations supervises and evaluates the School
Nutrition Director and Network Manager.

Organizational Chart for Reading Public Schools

An organizational chart of the Reading Public Schools is provided below:

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 73



District Partnerships

Reading Public Schools are part of a larger community that believes in collaboration for the purpose of benefiting the
children of Reading Puhlic Schools. We are fortunate to have many important partners who enrich the lives of our
students through their contributions of resources — both financial and volunteer time.

Town of Reading

The municipal government of the Town of Reading is the district’s most important partner. We share in the tax
revenues that represent the voters’ commitment to a quality of life that values education, public service, and
community engagement. We also share many resources and collaborate to efficiently manage the operations of the
community.

Community Connections Group

Members of the town, school department and local recreation agencies meet once a month to determine the needs
of Reading's specialized populations and work together to create systems of support. Thus far, the group has been
abletoincrease translations for events, add specialized classes and are creating a list of supports and resources within
the community.

Reading Education Foundation

The Reading Education Foundation is a volunteer organization of Reading residents working in partnership with the
Superintendent of Schools and Reading Public Schoaols. Its mission is to support innovation and excellence within the
Reading Public Schools by raising and providing private money to fund initiatives that are beyond the reach of public
funds.

Parent-Teacher Organizations

Each of our schools is fortunate to have a PTO composed of parent volunteers who support teachers in each huilding.
This support includes parent education, teacher appreciation events, mobilization of classroom and school level
volunteers, and funding for technology, enrichment, and other special programs.

Parent Booster Organizations

Reading Public Schools are supported by a sizable number of parent booster organizations of parent volunteers who
raise, contribute, and dispense funds for the henefit of specific extra-curricular activities including athletic teams,
academic teams, and fine and performing arts.

Understanding Disabilities, Inc.

Understanding Disabilities, Inc. (UD) partners with Reading Public Schools to increase positive attitudes toward
people with disabilities. Thirty years of success teaching disability awareness in the Reading Public Schools has
supported the development of an innovative curriculum that supports inclusion and promotes respectful
interactions, which helps children process and understand the communities in which they live and develop healthy
relationships.

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 74



APPENDIX C: 2022-2023 School Improvement Plans

Setting the stage for the FY24 budget development process was the work conducted by the School Principals and
their school communities to develop the 2022-2023 School Improvement Plans. Overarching themes of providing
equitable and rigorous learning environments are summarized in each School improvement Plan (SIP). Links for each
school’s SIP follows below:

Elementary Schools

Alice M. Barrows Elernentary School

Birch Meadow Elementary School

loshua Eaton Elementary Schoal

LW, Killam Elemeritary Schoo!

Wood End Elementary School

Middle Schools

Caoclidee Middle School

Walter S, Parker Middle School

High School

Reading Memaorial High Schaol

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 75



“Books” by Rose Clark, RMHS Student enrolled in Ms. Kathieen M. Dailey’s AP Photography Class

The School Committee’s FY24 Recommended Budget 76



Town of Reading
Meeting Minutes

E&er = Committee - Commission - Council:

Finance Committee

Date: 2023-01-18 Time: 6:00 PM

Building: Reading Town Hall Location: Select Board Meeting Room
Address: 16 Lowell Street Session: Open Session

Purpose: General Business Version: Draft

Attendees: Members - Present:

Chair Ed Ross, Vice Chair Jeanne Borawski, Joe Carnahan, Geoffrey Coram,
Marianne Downing, Joe McDonagh (6:05 pm), Emily Sisson (remote), Mark
Zarrow

Members - Not Present:

Others Present:
Town Accountant Sharon Angstrom, Town Manager Fidel Maltez

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By: Jacquelyn LaVerde

Topics of Discussion:

This meeting was held in the Town Hall Select Board Meeting Room and remotely via Zoom.

Chair Ed Ross called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm.
Roll Call: Jeanne Borawski, Geoffrey Coram, Joe Carnahan, Mark Zarrow, Marianne
Downing, Emily Sisson (remote), and Ed Ross.

Liaison Reports:
Jeanne Borawski shared that the School Committee has held their budget meetings over the
last few weeks, and held a public hearing as part of their budget process.

Joe Carnahan noted that the Reading Municipal Light Department Board of Commissioners
and Advisory Board are holding a joint meeting to decide on rates for next year.

Emily Sisson stated that Recreation is getting quotes for Birch Meadow Phase I, which are
coming in higher than budgeted.

Marianne Downing stated that the Reading Center for Active Living Committee (ReCALC)
voted 7-0 to create a multigenerational center. All options for its location are back on the
table and the former Walgreens is not yet off the table.

Joe McDonagh joined the meeting at 6:05 pm.

Presentation by Town Accountant and Discussion on the FY2024 Spending
Scorecard and Financial Forecast:

Town Accountant Sharon Angstrom explained that it is unusual to make changes to
Accommodated Costs so late in the budget process, but Finance is working hard with the
Schools to get full-day kindergarten funded as soon as possible. The Schools had $250,000
in their budget, there was $150,000 budgeted for Community Priorities, but the School

Page | 1



Superintendent asked for another $100,000. Ms. Angstrom explained that she reviewed
accommodated costs and was able to adjust the natural gas line item. Gas rates are
expected to increase in May, for only one month of the fiscal year. But to prepare for the
36% increase, the line item was budgeted for a whole year of increased rates to bring up
the base. By adjusting the line, approximately $117,000 was made available, as it would
have gone back to Free Cash if not spent or reallocated at a future Town Meeting. But as a
result, it increased the operating budget for both Town and Schools. Ms. Angstrom asked
the Committee if they were still comfortable with using $3.28 million of Free Cash to
support the FY2024 budget, even though it now represents 4% of the operating budget,
instead of 3.75%, as they previously voted.

The Finance Committee members discussed and agreed with the change to the
accommodated costs, and that the use of $3.28 million of free cash was still appropriate.
They also expressed concern about the sustainable costs of free full-day kindergarten, and
the future use of free cash.

Future Meeting Agenda Items:
The Committee requested to preview the projected use of free cash at their first budget

meeting prior to hearing the School Department budget presentation. The upcoming budget
meetings will kick off on March 15t with the School presentation, and continue March 8™ for
the first half of the Town Budget, March 15t for the second half of the Town Budget and
possible votes on Annual Town Meeting warrant articles, and March 22™ if needed to
complete budget discussions and vote on the Town Meeting articles.

Approval of Previous Minutes:
On a motion by Jeanne Borawski, and seconded by Mark Zarrow, the Finance

Committee voted 8-0-0 to approve the meeting minutes of October 19, 2022.

Roll call vote: Emily Sisson — Yes, Marianne Downing — Yes, Mark Zarrow - Yes,
Jeanne Borawski — Yes, Geoffrey Coram - Yes, Joe Carnahan - Yes, Joe McDonagh
- Yes, Ed Ross — Yes,

On a motion by Jeanne Borawski, and seconded by Joe Carnahan, the Finance
Committee voted 6-0-2 to approve the meeting minutes of October 26, 2022, with
Geoffrey Coram and Ed Ross abstaining, as they were not present at that meeting.
Roll call vote: Emily Sisson - Yes, Joe McDonagh - Yes, Marianne Downing - Yes,
Mark Zarrow - Yes, Jeanne Borawski — Yes, Geoffrey Coram - Abstain, Joe
Carnahan - Yes, Ed Ross - Abstain.

On a motion by Jeanne Borawski, and seconded by Emily Sisson, the Finance
Committee voted 8-0-0 to adjourn at 6:57 pm.

Roll call vote: Emily Sisson — Yes, Joe McDonagh - Yes, Marianne Downing — Yes,
Mark Zarrow - Yes, Jeanne Borawski - Yes, Geoffrey Coram - Yes, Joe Carnahan -
Yes, Ed Ross - Yes.

Page | 2



il
)

-

I




UOISSNISI FZ A PUCAST  »

aureull], Juswdopas( 198png ¥7Ad e

SONLIOLIJ JUSWIISOAU 188PNY H7AT

juawdojpaa( 328png $Z A4 01 yoroaddy pue J0j) 1X93U07} .
Arewiuing [epueUl] 128png POPUSWIUIOIDY $7Ad o

SUONBULIOJUI Suimo][o) 21} opraoad [[im ucneiuasaad siy

g
i

&
2
=
[
-
g

O) dIRIL

@ g

1 0

rTmm

IBI3SAI

(s
@ g



%62
097°€22°C $
000041 $
09Z'1¢T $

%SL°E
000'Z¥6'T §
EYESCLESS

€9€°€8LTSS

g\uuuuuﬂw
4]

s
g
[
g

poud

W

p—
4

] wuumﬂ

£z xd 1300 abupy) abpiusitagd pauIquio’)
7 A4 -12A0 a8ury’) Je[jo(] PSUIgIUO)
M4 J10J A1I011 g AJIUnuwuion)

$1S07) PA1EPOWITIOIDY SONI[IA{] W] SSUIARS JO UONEBIO[Y

JUEBL

SSoU[apIng joopny posiAcy

EZ A4 4340 abBupyn abmuaiiag

€7 A J2A0 a8uey) Jejjo(

198png $ZAd
123png pajerrdoaddy €7 A4
SoUljopIny 1oapng Joniuio) Jouelly]

s
i
g
-
e
&
ﬂn
™4
(i
[ HHHHM

1 3Spny popud

7

P,



‘sjeoisAyd aadojdwa 'SaDIAISS PIIDRIIU0D UORLIISIUIUDY
‘syuatiAed-a.xd UI 9SLOIDUT UONINY poudIsSsSeun Ul aseadap ‘syuswaderd ut sagueys
‘S9D1AI9S ucneINpy [103ds JO UCHIBUIULIZ] ‘9SBAIDUL 0 IBalg HNIILY) - [DUUOSISJ-UON
U020 ATRJUDWIOD JO UOTEPIOSUOD 'SpuUnj 9210Y)
[00U2S £7Z A ‘SpuUnj 3d1AIaS poo,] ‘sjuatiained quesd g4 uead 0D LA ueld 0p7 - [9UU0SIad .
:sonuionid J1oddns 03 spunj anuaaal [eideds/syueis
ajgemausl pafeiaAd] pUe S30.IN05a1 SQrUILISNS paudiie A[[23133)12.1)5 - S532IN0SaY POZIUUIXe]R

Juauwidinba pue sasiagas ‘seyddns 10j 9o11d pue puewiap ul sagueyds pajeddpiue pue ‘spuat)y
guipuads 12110 pue 3sed ‘SIDBIIU0S IDIAISS UMOUY U0 Paseq - $1500 [ouuosiad-uou pajdolord .
'G06°9/LTT$ S[eIod suonedi|qo [BNIDBIIUeD UC pase( - $1S00 [suuosiad ur aseaunul paia{old .
:S3jepuell [B83] pue sucnesI[Jo [eNIOBIIU0) [[B 19)A - S198pnyg [ouuos.12d-uo) pue [ouuos.iad

'G68°€Z4 TS Sui 101 sanLiouid JUSUIISOAUL PSYIIUSP]
:SaA1aigQ 218918038 1DLIISI(] YU PRUdi[y - S31ILIOLIJ JU3WIIS3AU]

Wwepnyg il YL



‘DUIT} J2A0 2[GeUIRISNS aJe 1Y} SUOISIOSP o]l
"UOIJUS}2 SUISED.IDUI PIBMO] JIOAOLLING 22I0I0M IZA[BUY

'SOINPIYDS SULJELS SUIUEXY

'2OUBPING 9911107 [O0YDS UIIIM SOZIS SSB[0 UIRIUIR]

'S[OOYDS AIRIUDUIS[S 1B SUILLIES] U0 SWIT) 9SLa.DU]

A0 WINNDLLINT [00YIS S[PPIA 2NURUOTY)

‘sAemiled uoneaouu] SHAY 1oddng &

"SMITASY wirigold uoneonpy [enadg pue gSH Aq suoliepuswwiodst o3 puodssy .
398png sunjeaado ojur suonisod papuny-yassy aieaodaoour 03 ueid e J2pISU0y
4 [BSI2A1Uf) pJemo] ssadgoad anuniuoy .

IHNTEPIND
g 2PUNO) (00U - JUNdo2Ad(] 123png JOJ [Xa1007)

|

i
i)
=1y
-

Ll

i



'SOUWI0JINO0 JUIPNIS Ul SJUSUIISIAUI 9Z13LI0LId 03 Spunj anuaAa.l

[erdads pue jueld SUISEISA9] PUB $321N053.1 SunsSIxa sulAo[dapad £q $924n0S3J PIZIWIXEN
'SPooU JUapNIS pUe ‘SIZIS SSE[d ‘JUdW[[0IU

palosload Aq paping salepueul [e39] pue S10LIIU0D YIIMm A[dW0D 0] S1S0D SUI[aSe( pale[nd[e)
"SUTILIES] JUSpNIS Ul sured aonpoad eyl sa18ajeals usaaodd Uo SUOISIDAP 9yell pue SUOISSNISIp
INO JI9Y}INJ 03 YI0MISU [BUOINIISUI pUE ‘BIEP JUSPNIS ‘Sjuswissasse weagoad pas)
'$S9A102((0 21891k03S JOLISIP N0 M USI[e Jey) senLiold Juswlsaaul AJrpuapl

0} SISPES[ "PLIASIP pue ‘[00yds ‘Weidord yiim payiom pue SIap[oysa¥els YIIm pajnsuo’)

mmﬂ
i
{

g

JBQ

g
ymming
Mmu
g\umumﬂ
ymming
|
-

SSAD0LI - D m

rﬂm

QPIAS( Wepny Yz,



yz 1dy surSaq Sunespy umo,
T e IONTUWUOY) dIUBULY

: AJTUNUWWI0) 9Y] YIIM UOIIESISAUO0) U]

g7 'ug| 193png papualWoday SJuapuajuliadng uo ajoA 9PIWWOY) [00YIS +7 Al
6T ue| UOISSNISI(] 9a)31UIUI0Y) [0012S pue guLleay 128png a1qnd +Z Ad
6 ‘uef sV 398png +Z Ad
6 ‘uef uoneonpy [eadsg pue Ae(] JB[NS3Y :MIIAIdAQ 198pNyg ¥7 A
G ‘uef ueld [exde)/sanie,] ‘Opip 1ISIJ ‘DAIRISTUTPY :MITAISAQ 308pNg ¥Z Add
G 'uge( uonedqng 123png pue uonejuasaljjagpng sjuapuajuriadng 7 A

ISGUNIIN 23NIWUIO) [00YIS IV

pig ¥ X

=

aursuiLy, juawdoisa

>
O
—
k\
3
B
~

UNHHHHHHHHHHHHHM

[l



"JJE31S pUe SUapnis JIno Jo SS920NS aY3 JO UORepuUnoj 3yl e ale sualsAs [euonerado jusdiyyy
suonelddQ [ooyos ;£ a4123{qQ 216210.1S

JOLIISIP N0 UL SS9I0NS YIM 19W JOU SABY OUM SJUIPMS
J0 sdnoas ‘xenonaed Ul pue ‘Syuspnis 10j SatoIno gutaoldu 10j 19A3] 159 Ino S1 uononaisut Aienb-ysiy
SUII)SAS [EUONINIISU] JUIIYOY) 7 2A13I3[q I162)10.00S

"Pa1dUUO0D PUR PAULILJe

‘pPoON[eA ‘Usas [99] AJTUNWWOD Y] JO SIQUIDUI [[E UM ISTXD SOIMUNWUWIOCI SUIWLIBI] [NJSSIIINS pUe AYI[LOH
NDWUOoIIAUY sSunuwIed| 3jes pue aanyoddns : 1 aanaalqo 21621008

(O 18RS 121X]SY(] - 10Wdo2A3(] 123pny JO) 10

\W@
w{muuuum‘ﬁ“
Wﬂm

oy

i

)
W
e
1€ Psaal
i
i
ol
@ Ml




an

-

L
v e ﬁ
o
@ W
gﬁw !HH\HHM )
imm a) ;“
o W
@ N i
 yom—
aull H:::::::Hh m :
o= 5
&) e
ag‘m & “E
SR —
=2 e
® B
il

Suppor

:




i

|

@ &
=
B
2 5 2
=7 s
o = -

P @5
2o
on =
2 =
< O
S

-



k4

15
10118

bjecti
Operatl

»

@g

ic

Strateg




meHHH\H@
>

B0
w g
s o

g

%
g
>

o
w2
%

¥
ol

=2

]
]
£ Special Education

& Administration
B Regular Day

# School Faclities
& Disnigt Wids

ers

Cost Ce
Percentage to Tot

b 3

H\;HH HH\HHU




stration

mni

»

Adm

:$1,311,157

1i0l

vy i

1ses for Ce

i

Expe

_ 3
na

Office a



O::iiIIiIIiIIiIIiIIiIIiIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
,.!!I!II!II!IIIIIIIIIIIIIIII|II|II|II|IIIIII!!I!!I. ;
il il
HHHHH\H\HH\HHHH\H

I
>
o Q= ;S
= Ngg-ﬁam
iy S; < I~ E — E
. mH:»cc
Q\N
= ~t\'°°°°h
g ‘_T N E é-) %D
= gg*.’"’g%u;zﬁ
%@ ;%ggm_‘
=~ ._;_.CU
e 4—*%—‘:>£":
ﬁ.ﬂuau =
Ry
7
.954‘3
s-‘-f—}m
L“:E
= O
S K



and

1611
'VICES

»

catl

Siudeni Se

al Ed

»

CCl

gﬂwmm\ﬂ

o

EWr—

&

Total: $16,716,146
$ Change: ($214,975)

% Change: (1.27%)
Salaries, Services, Materials and

Equipment for All Special Education
Programs In-district and Out-of-district




mﬁlﬁiﬁiﬁﬁiﬁi"i" -’

i il

”‘\-‘J
= >
@ it QI iy
p ~y D ﬁ:m & gﬁ
e . e 5
: s )
i &'\l m 252-3 & ‘I:‘H CL}
2 S A — o
) &5 N 15 Lo
g &R - I~ & Em é‘l@
s’_ﬁ - . & S"::‘ o «t% g;;
- = %
HE; Qm@ \w m E’S tm
ot £ S -5
: CJ :‘\;;_a ox] e o
- C 2 Z o
S a3 -
e i
! a St
H|;q;£ ‘:m \L-Q
s E =
S8 2



||Illm o

wfaw
= o0
S -
Wm .‘E;; C% \w&
3 A5 2
iy o, 2SO
* o o RE D
N ™ g | '\CD QQ (f; ‘F.‘.m"
S S e's B AL TS
j@ Y . D T 2
- M Q wh Q )
S < oy Beowm 3 W
a m g t ' ﬂ-‘:: " ::M
‘ o om W W
D) s A & o
-@ ~y - by M ‘3‘: o
Ly AT S € .. W
QW " w cﬁ Cln) m q-wi
f R SR ¢ VR
A S T o B R
pog K5 IS
= ST R u &
= = o = 8 @
- & 7
9% m [ qm} Q“@
o = E
e L
g = g
o e
v 3!



n-m W’gg

&5 T
e .
o o
A S
) \WEI:E " F‘::: g:?
,m e~ B o T b
i 9 ¢] oy o e " pmed ]
w . (3‘\_\ o o B SR o T
T I838% 5
Um‘ =3 N ‘m ‘_&;
o - U G T < =
€= B ey O oA

S B o B

@ o (.G {.u q) i) q)
= 5§ S8 Y g ok
— ?5 u TS D S

Wi “ Q g:: e
m - £y o™ g R &
w v
g E "



sucnenogau oenuod doqe; sutwoddn .

aJnjonas pue uejd £50[0U0a) 9ATIRIISTUIWIPE PUR [EUCIIONIISU]

diysJapes| 9LIISIp pue jjeis [euononasut jo guipjing Loedeny

sweagoxd uoneonpa [e10ads 10L1SIP-Ul pausI[e-A][EJILISA PUR dAIIDJJ3-1S0T)
sAemyped [00ydS YSIH sAneAOUU]

SI9UIRd] [[B 10} Suonoauuod pue syioddng

UOIINIISUL Ylew pue AJeIall[ JO S[2AS[ JOYSIH

109{oad Suipjing [o0yds AIRJUDWIB]]

uauIesIapuny] Aep-[[nJ 3a.J4j [BSI2AIU[]

guruIeajuo aw],

D

=

sonmmaodd samn - FTx 1 puoidg



'$$920.4d JuawdoaA9p 193pNg SUYdI PUR SSWOIINO0 JIEN[BAY
*S9UI0JIN0 JUIPNMIS Ul suled aonpold 03 umouy

syroddns waa31-110ys paemol 103.11pald 01 A[1ed SSUIABS AJIIUIPI 0] S[BIDUBUL JOMNUOW A[9SO[D PUB SSISSY  »
pun, SAIISIY uoneonpy rerdads SUIYSI[QEISd PUE SUOIIN] IDLIISIP JO IN0 uonesnps jernads

Jojuawfed-aud yiim Surired ‘sasuadxs [eriualod pue umouy [[e 10)193png 01 SUIUuUod AQ MSLI 9SRUB
'SGUIABS 2InINJ Ul SURNSAT QW) JI9A0

SIUBPNIS J10J SAW0IIN0 1$9y3diy path jey) sweadoad z aa1], pue [ J3L, pue Judwdo[RAap JJeis urisoau] .
'S9[NpayYds
[euonoNIISUI pue ‘soned jels ‘ssurdnous juspnis surziwndo pue Suissasse Ag pajedoe £[9A1109))9

pue Auaniyye SI 198png (8101 39U JO %G8 syuasardal yorym 1e8png puuostad ayl jeyy aansuy .
‘sanuIold 121ISIP YIIm Sugi[e pue sjunoday

anuaAdYy Jerads pue ‘syuern ‘puny Sunetad() sederaas el ueid [eueul] Jeak-n N J1591RNS 31L3I) .

AM[Ieure)sng sulInsuy - ¥ x|l puosdd



10bpng bunp.aadQ Sz 3y1 01 p23abpng M 000°652$ “£Z/0£/6 Spua Bulpung YJSSq 10N,

Irey) wea ], ‘@duepiny I9yoea], qAdS - ALI ¥ MASSHx o

Jo3eurploo) 0) LA/ 10[asunoy) yusunsn(py “1032a01q - 414 09 :0JLAN  »
eIed [00YdSald -H.Ld €47 ‘292 AAdS VAAl

SydDd ‘sered - 14 S0'SZ :0¥Z A4S VAAT

SIOINL - LI 0L T TIRL

SJUern) ysnoayl popund H.1L4d vZAA

9ZAd PUB GZA] Ul 88pLiq 83ea1d 03 $Z A oaul Suro8 puny SUIA[0AIY [e10adS Ul 000 TZ9$ PoUIBIUIRY
YZAI U1 000°009% 0119SP0 AL WT' TS Padpay

ZZAA Ul 0SHF$ PUE £ZA4 U1 009°E$ Woa] FZ A Ul 0§9°Z$ UonoNpal asj uoniny anuijuo) .
TTo)IesIopury] Aep-[nyg

UONRULIONI] [RUOTIPPY - YT L1 puoiag



008'6VE 8TI0'PL8'LZ  %S'SP  68S'EIZ'8T  098'LYI'Y YIG'IZP'6T  E9E'EBLIS (o) £9E'E8L TS TV10L ANVYD
%T'E
000'6T £L6'T6S 0665  6EV'059 TV'SO0'STZ  YEOWE'SS.  SP80T9T 0 SYR'0Z9°T sajioed jooyds
%EY
- 126'TS0°T %095 89T'S66 720'SST 066'ZIT'T 08T'€92°Z 9gL'0Y  vEY'ZITT 2pIA 11ISI [I03-GNS
- T/8'TEE 09€5  S0C90% 06'9907¢ 75 0/56eE  TP8659 0 V8659 Adojouyday
- SYO'PET Or'T8  ZS8'BIT 8T'65.°SZT  ECEBV'OEY  SOT'T69 0 SOT'169 SIBIRPY
- 0/2'8E 01°'S9 €8TV 00°'S09y L0099°0F 815’69 0 81569 Jena1un) eaxy
- SELLHS 0E'8E  BTB'SES V8065 TE99Z'00E  S89TV8 9EL 'O 616708 S23IAI9S Y3 edH
:9pIM 3313510
%LTE
000'STZE LIB'TLE'D 0L°ES  09.'S6L°L 08'698'60E'E  OB'SLLVEL'S  SOK068°OT E9T'TF-  B9STEEIT uonesnpj jeRads
%'LS
- LE6'BST'ET D6'8E  9PO9ST'ST T0°S66PTF  OD'ZETVET'TT €L1°S0L°6T LTy 9/ '¥0L6T uoneInpj |esausn
%S'T
008'S T1Z'865 0TS LLT9T9 OV L06°TS 9Y'SL9VED  09LE0E'T 0 09L'E€0ET UCIENSIUIWPY

RIUF) 1503

‘boy/-qumoug  se.nypuady H je8png

140438 TVIDNVNH 3314VN0 ONODIS ETA4 .
ST00HIS J119Nd DNIQVad 4 .Hmuhm,:d CCZAd

UONRULIONI] [RUOTIPPY - YT L1 puoiag






